Public Document Pack

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Notice of Meeting and Agenda

Pensions Committee

2.00 pm Thursday, 23rd March, 2023

Carrick Suite, EICC, Morrison Street Edinburgh - EICC

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to attend.

The law allows the Committee to consider some issues in private. Any items under “Private
Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be recorded in the minute.

Contacts

Susan Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund
Tel: 07771 378 238
Email: han24S33@Ipf.org.uk

Lesley Birrell, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council
Tel: 0131 529 4240
Email: lesley.birrell@edinburgh.gov.uk



mailto:han24S33@lpf.org.uk
mailto:lesley.birrell@edinburgh.gov.uk

1. Quorum Check

1.1 The Convener will check to ensure a quorum is in attendance to
ensure the meeting can proceed.

2. Order of Business

21 Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

3. Declaration of Interests

3.1 Members of the Committee and members of the Pensions Board
should declare any financial and non-financial interests they have in the
items of business for consideration, identifying the relevant agenda
item and the nature of their interest.

4. Deputations

4.1 If any

5. Minutes

5.1 Minute of Pensions Committee of 7 December 2022 (circulated) — 7-14
submitted for approval as a correct record

6. Reports

6.1 Agenda Planning — report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian 15-24

Pension Fund (circulated)

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee - 23 March 2023 Page 2 of 6



6.2 Referrals and Recommendations from Pensions Audit Sub-Committee

6.3 Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update — February 2023 — report

25-48

by the Head of Internal Audit, City of Edinburgh Council (circulated)

6.4 Lothian Pension Fund — Proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 - 49 - 62
report by the Head of Internal Audit, City of Edinburgh Council
(circulated)

6.5 External Audit Plan 2022/23 by Azets - report by the Chief Finance 63-114
Officer, Lothian Pension Fund (circulated)

6.6 LPF Cost Benchmarking — report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian 115 - 120
Pension Fund (circulated)

6.7 2023-24 Strategy & Business Plan (including Functional Plan and 121 - 160
Budget) — report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund
(circulated)

6.8 2022/23 Business Plan and Budget Update - report by the Chief 161 - 178
Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund (circulated)

6.9 Administering Authority Discretions Policy - report by the Chief 179 - 190
Operating Officer, Lothian Pension Fund (circulated)

6.10  Risk Management Summary — report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian 191 - 206

Pension Fund (circulated)

7. Motions

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee - 23 March 2023 Page 3 of 6



71 If any

8. Resolution to Consider in Private

8.1 The Committee is requested, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the public from the
meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they
would involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraphs 1.3 and 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A of the Act.

9. Private Reports

9.1 Project Forth Update — report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian 207 - 218
Pension Fund (circulated)

9.2 Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund — report by the Chief 219 - 226

Operating Officer, Lothian Pension Fund (circulated)

Nick Smith

Service Director — Legal & Assurance

Committee Members

Councillors Watt (Convener), Burgess, Doggart, Nicolson and Neil Ross; John Anzani and
Richard Lamont.

Please note that members of the Pensions Board and the Independent Professional
Observer will also be invited to attend and participate in the meeting.

Information about the Pensions Committee

The Pensions Committee consists of 5 Councillors and 2 external members and is appointed

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee - 23 March 2023 Page 4 of 6



by the City of Edinburgh Council in its separate capacity as administering authority of the
Lothian Pension Fund. The Pensions Committee usually meets 4 times a year (every twelve
weeks).

This meeting is being held in the Carrick Suite, EICC, Morrison Street, Edinburgh. The meeting
is open to all members of the public.

Pension Board Members

Alan Williamson, Brian Robertson, Darren May, Jim Anderson, Sharon Dalli, Thomas
Carr-Pollock, Tom Howorth, Nick Chapman and Tony Beecher.

Information about the Pension Board

The Pension Board consists of 10 members, 5 members from the employer bodies and 5
members from trade unions representing members within the pension funds as set out in the
regulations.

The role of the Pension Board is to help ensure that the operation of the pension funds is in
accordance with the applicable law and regulation.

https://www.lpf.org.uk/us .

Independent Professional Observer

Andy McKinnell

Information about the Independent Professional Observer

The Independent Professional Observer is appointed by the Lothian Pension Fund to help
strengthen the Lothian Pension Fund’s governance. The role is to provide independent
observations to the Pensions Committee and Pension Board.

The purpose of the role is to enhance the scrutiny of the decision making and provide the
Committee and Board with additional experience and knowledge impartial from the Lothian
Pension Fund’s Officers.

City of Edinburgh Council Oversight

The City of Edinburgh Council has statutory responsibility to administer the Lothian and
Scottish Homes pension funds. In order to most effectively carry out that function (and to

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee - 23 March 2023 Page 5 of 6


https://www.lpf.org.uk/us

reflect the separate statutory responsibilities, and regulation, of the pension funds) the City of
Edinburgh Council has delegated management responsibility for the pension funds to the
Lothian Pension Fund Group and its two arms-length companies LPFE Limited and LPFI Limited.
Critical parent oversight continues to be carried out by the Pensions Committee and Dr
Deborah Smart, Executive Director of Corporate Services for the City of Edinburgh Council, as
the Administering Authority for the Fund, to ensure that its statutory functions are being
properly carried out.

Lothian Pension Fund Senior Leadership Team

The senior leadership team responsible and accountable for the business and activities of the
Lothian Pension Fund Group are:

David Vallery, Chief Executive Officer
Bruce Miller, Chief Investment Officer
Kerry Thirkell, Chief Risk Officer

John Burns, Chief Finance Officer
Helen Honeyman, Chief People Officer

Further Information and Contact

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact Susan
Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund, Atria One, 144 Morrison Street,
Edinburgh EH3 8EX, Tel 07771378238, email han24S33@Ipf.org.uk .

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting can be viewed via the City of
Edinburgh Council committee portal.

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee - 23 March 2023 Page 6 of 6


mailto:han24S33@lpf.org.uk

Agenda Iltem 5.1

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee Minutes

2pm, Wednesday 7 December 2022

Present:
Councillors Watt (Convener), Burgess, Doggart, Nicolson and Neil Ross; John Anzani and Richard
Lamont.

Pension Board Members present:

Jim Anderson, Tony Beecher, Thomas Carr-Pollock, Nick Chapman, Tom Howorth, Brian Robertson
and Alan Williamson.

Independent Professional Observer:
Andy McKinnell
Apologies:

Sharon Dalli and Darren May (Pension Board members)

1. Quorum

The Clerk confirmed that notice of the meeting had been given and that a quorum was present
and the Convener declared the meeting open.

2. Order of Business

The Clerk confirmed that there was no change to the order of business.

3. Declaration of Interests

Decision

To note there were no declarations of interest.

4., Minutes

Decision

To approve the minute of the Pensions Committee of 28 September 2022 as a correct record.

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee — 7 December 2022 Page 1
PENSION FUND

Page 7



5. Referrals and recommendations from Pensions Audit Sub Committee

John Anzani advised the Committee of the discussion and decisions taken at the Pensions Audit
Sub-Committee meeting on 6 December 2022.

(Reference — Pensions Audit Sub-Committee 6 December 2022)

6. Agenda Planning

An overview of proposed reports for Pensions Committee and Pensions Audit Sub-Committee
meetings for March and June 2023 was presented.

Decision
1) To note the agenda planning document for the March and June 2023 meetings.
2) To note that Pension Board Members were invited to comment on agenda items during

Committee meetings.

3) To note that the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee had agreed to hold an additional meeting
in March 2023.

4) To note that information security updates would be scheduled bi-annually in the agenda
planning document.

5) To note that a review of the committee agenda planning process would take place in early
2023 and that a proposed way forward would be presented to Committee in March 2023.

(Reference — report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted)

7. Stewardship and Engagement

An update was provided on the activity of the Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension
Fund in relation to the stewardship of their invested assets including the approach to
environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues.

Lothian Pension Fund incorporated ESG issues into investment analysis and decision making, voted
all of its shares and pursued a policy of constructive engagement on such issues. This was
consistent with industry best practice and its fiduciary duty to the members and employers in
those funds. LPF’s strategy of resourcing internal investment, operational and specialist legal
expertise provided further substance and resilience to that process.

Lothian Pension Fund had been a signatory to the Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) since
2008 and participated in the PRI’s Reporting Framework which was an annual assessment of LPF’s
Responsible Investment activities. Due to an issue with the PRI’s reporting system in 2021, this
year’s assessment was only made available in September 2022 and the next survey had been
delayed to 2023.

The stewardship report for the period covering the year to 31 December 2021 was presented in
compliance with the UK Stewardship Code 2020 and had been submitted to the Financial
Reporting Council for assessment.

[HOTH IAN Pensions Committee — 7 December 2022 Page 2

Page 8



LPF continued to participate in collaborative shareholder engagements through organisations
including the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), EOS at Federated Hermes and Climate
Action 100+ and was represented on the LAPFF Executive Committee. An update on LAPFF’s
activities was presented to members for information.

Approval was also sought for the updated Statement of Responsible Investment Principles (SRIP).
The SRIP set out Lothian Pension fund’s approach to the oversight and monitoring of the Fund’s
investment activities from a Responsible Investment and Stewardship perspective.

Decision
1) To note the stewardship and engagement update.
2) To approve the updated Statement of Responsible Investment Principles.

(Reference — report by the Chief Investment Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted)

8. Lothian Pension Fund Contract Awards (Period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022)

The Council’s Commercial and Procurement Services team provided support in relation to
procurement and payment operations.

An update was provided on the scope of contracts awarded by the Lothian Pension Fund Group for
the period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 inclusive of direct contract awards and not openly
tendered due to specific circumstances permitted in regulation and those awarded following a
waiver of the City of Edinburgh Council’s Contract Standing Orders.

Information was also provided on those contracts awarded directly by LPFI Ltd and LPFE Ltd in
respect of which the City of Edinburgh Council was not acting as administering authority.

Decision
To note the report and the authorisations made under the Scheme of Delegation to Officers.

(Reference - report by the Interim Executive Director of Corporate Services, City of Edinburgh
Council, submitted)

9. Business Plan Half Year Review and Budget Update

An update was provided on progress against the 2022-2023 Business Plan, performance indicators
and the actions to enable the Fund to meet its key objectives.

The report focussed on performance indicators, administration and member services,
investments, IT and change, governance, legal, risk and compliance, finance, people and
communications, membership and cashflow monitoring and investment strategy update.

Decision
1) To note progress of the Fund against the 2022-23 Strategy and Business Plan.

2) To note the specific updates on functional plans as well as performance indicators and
projects, membership and cashflow monitoring and investment strategy update.

[HOTH IAN Pensions Committee — 7 December 2022 Page 3

Page 9



3) To note that the outcome of the colleague engagement survey reflected well on the Fund
and management at all levels within Lothian Pension Fund and to pass on Committee’s
congratulations to the staff team.

(Reference - report by the Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted)

10. Contribution Stability Mechanism Review 2022

A review of the Contribution Stability Mechanism (CSM) had been carried out in advance of the
2023 Actuarial Valuation. The review considered the investment performance over the period 31
March 2019 to 30 June 2022 as well as the changes in market conditions over this period.

Since the review had been completed, there had been a period of volatility in investment markets
but remained within the ranges tested. Although the review indicated that the current CSM
remained fit for purpose, the Actuary had recommended that a full review be carried out in
advance of the 2026 Valuation.

The Fund was currently exploring the possibility of a merger with Falkirk Council Pension Fund
which also operated a CSM and, should a merger take place, a new funding strategy statement for
the new entity would be put in place which would detail operation of the CSM for the merged
fund which would also require approval by the relevant governing body.

Decision

1) To note the review carried out by the Fund Actuary to assess the continued suitability of
the existing Contribution Stability Mechanism.

2) To note that the review had indicated that the Contribution Stability Mechanism remained
appropriate for setting contributions for long-term secure employers.

3) To retain the right to review or withdraw the Contribution Stability Mechanism from any or
all employers as protection against extreme adverse financial circumstances.

4) To note that the Contribution Stability Mechanism, stipulating minimum contribution rates
payable, would require to be certified by the Fund’s Actuary at each statutory actuarial
valuation.

5) To note that should the proposed merger with Falkirk Council Pension Fund proceed, a new
Funding Strategy Statement and operation of the Contribution Stability Mechanism would
be decisions for the new entity’s governing body to take.

(References — Pensions Committee 11 December 2019 (item 5); report by the Chief Finance
Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted)

11. Risk Management Summary

In line with the Lothian Pension Fund’s (LPF) ongoing risk management procedures, an overview
was provided of LPF’s monitoring and assurance arrangements during 2022 noting any material
observations or exceptions.

[HOTH IAN Pensions Committee — 7 December 2022 Page 4

Page 10



The Risk Management Group continued to meet regularly to assess all elements of the LPF
Group’s risk framework including the risk appetite, register, overall assurance position and
any more granular risks escalation from other sub-groups.

Information was also provided on the background driving the intention to review the current
Risk Management Framework.

Decision
1) To note the LPF Group’s risk register and quarterly risk overview.
2) To note the intention of the Chief Risk Officer to lead a review of Lothian Pension Fund’s

Risk Management Framework during 2023 making enhancements to existing arrangements
and embedding any improvements as appropriate.

3) To commend the work of the risk and compliance, investment and IT teams who had
worked diligently to ensure the threshold was not breached during the transition period
relating to the FCA Regulatory Compliance — Variation of Permission.

(Reference — report by the Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund, submitted)

12. Project Forth

The Committee, under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, excluded the
public from the meeting for the item of business on the grounds that it involved the disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1.3 and 6 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act.

An update was presented on the proposed collaboration within the Local Government
Pension Scheme and the feasibility and evaluation work which had been undertaken to
progress the project.

Decision

Detailed in the confidential schedule, signed by the Convener, with reference to this minute.

(References — Pensions Committee 29 September 2020 (item 18), 29 September 2021 (item 14),
29 June 2022 (item 18), 28 September 2022 (item 15); report by the Chief Executive Officer,
Lothian Pension Fund, submitted)

[HOTH IAN Pensions Committee — 7 December 2022 Page 5

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6.1

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

Agenda Planning

Item number 6.1

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Audit Sub Committee (Committee) is requested to:

11 note the agenda planning document and the revisions to the agenda planning
document.

1.2  note that the Pension Board members are invited to comment on agenda items
during Committee meetings; and

13 note the introduction of the new governance portal.

David Vallery
Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

Contact: Susan Handyside, Governance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund

E-mail: Ipfgovernancecomms@Ipf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND Page 15



Agenda Planning

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

This report and the agenda planning document (appendix 1) provides the committee
with an overview of the proposed agendas for future meetings of the Pensions
Committee and Pensions Audit Sub Committee and the annual cycle.

There will, of course, be specific matters and papers which need to be brought to the
attention of the committees in addition to those set out herein.

This report also summarises the proposed revisions of the agenda planning
document set out in paragraph 4.3.

In addition, it recommends that timings are allocated to the agenda items for
committee and board members, to act as a guide, supporting the effective
management of meetings ensuring that they run to time.

Further to the above committee are asked to note the introduction of the new
governance portal which aims to improve committee and Pension Board members
experience, allowing greater flexibility to review and refer to current and previous
papers as well as provide a single place to access all LPF meetings.

Background

31

3.2

33

34

35

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

In order for the Committee and Pension Board to gain an overview of the content of
future meetings, and an awareness of the annual cycle of items, an agenda planning
document is submitted each quarter.

Committee meetings are held on a quarterly basis and additionally as required; the
Audit Sub Committee meetings are generally held three times a year.

In March 2019 the Pensions Committee approved a set of proposals to improve LPF
Governance which included establishing an online portal for all papers relating to the
LPF Group. In 2022 the Convene portal was procured.

In 2020 LPF investigated whether it would be possible for the unaudited Annual
Report and Accounts to be initially considered solely by the Audit Sub Committee,
therefore reducing the duplication of a significantly large report for the Pensions
Committee. However, after consultation with the external auditor, the Democracy,
Governance and Resilience Senior Manager and LPF’s CRO it was concluded that LPF
were unable to do this.

Committee also considered whether to remove the quarterly risk summary from the
December cycle of the Pensions Committee meeting, and instead requested the

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2

Page 16



Convenor of the Audit Sub Committee update the Pensions Committee on any
relevant points following the Audit Sub Committees own detailed review of the risk
register and processes that quarter. At the time committee requested that the
quarterly risk summary continue in addition to the In-depth risk summary being
considered by the Audit Sub Committee.

3.6  The committee agreed that only the Annual Group Governance update be removed
from the Audit Sub Committee agenda cycle.

3.7 In December 2022 it was reported to committee that another review of the
committee agenda would take place, the purpose of ensuring that the papers for
consideration were fully aligned with the terms of reference and where possible,
duplication of committee papers between audit sub-committee and pensions
committee be reduced where appropriate.

4, Main Report

4.1 The proposed agendas for the June, September and December meetings are set out
in the following tables, based on the usual Committee cycle plus any additional and
intra-cycle requests.

June 2023

Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee
e Referrals/ recommendations from e LPF Annual Report and Accounts
Pensions Audit Sub Committee (Unaudited)
e LPF Annual Report and Accounts e Internal Audit Update
(Unaudited) e Compliance and Risk Quarterly Update
e Statement of Investment Principles e IT Information Security Update (NEW)

¢ Joint Investment Strategy Panel Activity

e Annual Investment Updates — Lothian
Pension Fund and Scottish Homes
Pension Fund

¢ Annual LPF Group Governance Update

e Funding Strategy Statement

¢ Compliance and Risk Quarterly Update

e Project Forth Update

September 2023

Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee

e Referrals/ recommendations from e Audited Annual Report and Accounts of
Pensions Audit Sub Committee the Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish

¢ Audited Annual Report and Accounts of Homes Pension Fund
the Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish e Annual Report by External Auditor (if
Homes Pension Fund available)

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3

Page 17




e Annual Report by External Auditor (if e Internal Audit Update
available) e Fraud Prevention

¢ Valuation Update e Compliance and Risk Quarterly Update

o Stewardship Code Review

e Operating Plan and Budget Update

¢ Employer Covenant Review

e Lothian Pension Fund Contract Awards
Report

o Employers Participating in Lothian Pension
Fund

e Compliance and Risk Quarterly Update

e Project Forth Update

December 2023
Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee
e Referrals/ recommendations from ¢ |Investment Income review Cross
Pensions Audit Sub Committee border Withholding Tax
e Operating Plan and Budget Update e Global Custody Services Performance
e Employer Covenant Review e Pensions data Quality

e Compliance and Risk Quarterly Update e Internal Audit Update

e Additional Voluntary Contribution
(AVC) Review (NEW)

e Internal Audit Update

e IT Information Security Update (NEW)

e Compliance Update and Risk

Project Forth will be tabled if required. Management: In depth Review

Agenda Planning Review

4.2  Asrequested by the Audit Sub Committee and reported to the Pension Committee in
December, LPF have reviewed the papers that are presented to both Committees to
ensure all unnecessary reporting or duplication of business is removed where
possible.

4.3 Having reviewed the agenda planning document alongside the Committee Terms of
Reference LPF have confirmed that the balance of the two committees remains
appropriate. However, the following minor revisions are proposed to ensure
committee time is focussed on the most appropriate items:

e The Policies and Strategies Update, Delegated Authorities Update and
Regulatory Update titles have not been utilised for several cycles. Being
nonspecific they have been superseded by the practice of including
regulatory or policy updates in related reports or providing specific updates,
for example the annual governance update includes a review of all
governance policies.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 4
LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND Page 18



4.4
4.5

4.6

4.7

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

e Two papers presented to the Audit Sub Committee could also be withdrawn;
the EU tax claims and other income tax recoveries report and Irrecoverable
overpayment of pension — decisions made under delegated authority. Both
provide more detail than is required for sufficient oversight. However any
material concerns and overpayments over £3,000.00 will continue to seek
approval in line with council policy.

¢ Risk management- In Depth Review and LPF Group Controls and
Compliance is presented to the Audit Sub Committee Annually and will now
be merged to provide one Risk and Compliance update for the Committee,
further to this the quarterly risk update will include any relevant compliance
updates for both committees. The Chief Risk Officer will continue to refine
and review reporting throughout the course of the year, taking feedback
from committee and boards.

e Two new committee papers have been added to the Audit Sub Committee
cycle at the request of the committee; AVC review to be presented annually
in December and IT Information Security Update to be presented twice
yearly, June and December.

e The Benchmarking report which is presented to the Pensions Committee will
be presented in March instead of December to ensure the relevant data is
available timeously for committee reporting.

Appendix one of this report highlights the changes above.

In addition, it is proposed that timings are allocated to the agenda items for
committee and board members which aims to act as a guide, supporting the
effective management of meetings ensuring that they run to time. The timings will
only be available to committee and board members and not included on the public
agenda and pack.

As highlighted in the 2020 review and in paragraph 3.5 of this report, it is not
possible for the unaudited Annual Report and Accounts to be considered solely by
the Audit Sub Committee and therefore not possible to reduce the duplicate items.
However, by allocating more time to the Audit Committee for the duplicate items
and less time for the Pensions Committee it is hoped that the timings will reinforce
the Audit Committees role in providing the more detailed scrutiny and allow the
Pension Committee to rely on this to a greater extent and spend less time
considering the duplicate reports.

Governance Portal

In March 2019 the Pensions Committee approved a set of proposals to improve LPF
Governance which included establishing an online portal for all papers relating to the

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 5

Page 19



LPF Group. In 2022 the Convene portal was procured and LPF are now in the process
transitioning all meetings to the new Convene portal.

4.8  The Senior Leadership team, LPF Corporate Boards and JISP have also transitioned
their meeting packs to the portal. Throughout February and March the governance
team arranged training for board and committee members. The team will continue
to follow up with board and committee members to ensure any queries are resolved
and all members are comfortable with the new portal. All LPF oversight bodies will
be using the portal by the end of March 2023.

4.9 The Pension Committee and Audit Sub Committee reports and information relating
to the meetings will continue to be available via a link on the City of Edinburgh
Council’s website and, in addition, will also be available on the LPF website. Until the
new links have been established committee services will continue to publish the
agendas and packs via CEC’s modern gov portal.

4.10 For the remainder of the year the governance team will continue to develop the
portal capabilities and will keep committee informed of its development.

Future Pensions Committee and Audit Sub Committee dates

411 The Committee meeting dates for 2023/24! are set out below and calendar invites
have been issued to you. These meetings will be held in person with the option, if
required, to attend virtually.

Pensions Committee Audit Sub Committee

e Wednesday, 21 June 2023, 2.00pm, e Monday, 19 June 2023, 2.00pm,

e Wednesday 27 September 2023 at 2pm e Tuesday 26 September 2023 at 2pm
e Tuesday 5 December 2023 at 1.30pm e Monday 4 December 2023 at 2pm

e Wednesday 20 March 2024 at 2pm e Tuesday 19 March 2024 at 2pm

e Wednesday 26 June 2024 at 2pm e Tuesday 25 June 2024 at 2pm

5. Financial impact

5.1 None.

1 please note that the 2024 Pension Committee and Audit Sub Committee dates will be subject to change depending on
progress with Project Forth.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 6
LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND Page 20



6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1  The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the fund and they are invited to comment on the relevant matters
at Committee meetings.

6.2 There are no adverse health and safety, governance, compliance or regulatory
implications as a result of this report.

7. Background reading/external references

7.1 City of Edinburgh Council, Committee Terms of Reference (sections 13 and 24)

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 — LPF’s Annual Agenda Planning Cycle

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 7

Page 21


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49973/CommitteeTermsofReferenceandDelegatedFunctionsJune2022final.pdf

Frequency

Biennial

Annually

Pensions Committee

Audit Sub Committee

1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Actuarial Valuation: LPF SHPF (next report due Mar 2024) December or March
Funding Strategy Statement (review due June 2023 with final version N/A March
presented for approval in March 2024)
Pension Administration Strategy (presented in March 2022) N/A September
Administering Authority Discretions Policy. Next review due N/A September
September 2022
LPF Strategy and Business Plan and Budget March
Audit Plans (Internal and External) Draft internal audits and plan will be developed in consultation

with the Convenor of the Audit Sub Committee, the CEO (LPF)

and, if appropriate, the Independent Professional Observer and

circulated to the Audit Sub Committee members for comment. March
Polici ‘s e Ul G . icod Ponsi N/A
LPF Budget} March
Benchmarking - Investment and Administration Costs N/A March
LPF Annual Report and Accounts (Unaudited) LPF Annual Report & Accounts (Unaudited) June
LPF Internal Audit Opinion LPF Internal Audit Opinion June
Statement of Investment Principles N/A June
Joint Investment Strategy Panel Activity N/A June
Annual Investment Updates - Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish N/A June
Homes Pension Fund
Annual LPF Group Governance Update N/A June
Employer Covenant Review N/A September
Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension Fund and  Audited Annual Report and Accounts of the Lothian Pension
Scottish Homes Pension Fund (including the Annual Report by External Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund (including the Annual September
Auditor) Report by External Auditor)
Stewardship Code Review September

delegated-authority September
N/A Fraud Prevention September
Lothian Pension Fund Contract Awards Report N/A September




3 Times per
year

Quarterly

As

Pensions Committee

Annual Report by External Auditor

Audit Sub Committee

Annual Report by External Auditor

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

December (or
September if

available)
Behshiraddng BLEA Desermbker
NAA EU TaxClaims-and-Otherlncome Tax-Recoveries December
N/A Investment Income Review-Cross-Border Withholding Tax December
Stewardship and Engagement N/A December
N/A Pensions Data Quality December
N/A Global Custody Services Performance December
N/A Compliance Update and Risk Management: In-depth review December
LPF Group-Controls-and-Compliance December
N/A Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) Review December
Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund N/A March & September

N/A

IT Information Security Update

June & December

Operating Plan and Budget Update

Referrals / recommendations from Pensions Audit-Sub

N/A

N/A

Compliance and Risk Quarterly Update

March?, September
& December

June, September &
December

June, September &
December

Compliance and Risk Management Quarterly
UpdateSummary

. a-dept o ber)
Internal Audit Update

March, June,
September and
December

N/A
Del | authorities { . . } N/A
RegulatoryUpdate NZA

1 The March update will have the dual purpose of a business strategy update, budget review and budget approval for the forthcoming financial year.




11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Investment Strategy Reviews (at least every 3 years - next N/A
due June 2024)

vz abed




Agenda Iltem 6.3

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update - February 2023

Item number 6.3

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Audit Sub-Committee is requested to note:

1.1 Progress of delivery with the 2022/23 LPF annual internal audit plan, including the
outcomes of the recent Third-Party Supplier Management Audit;

1.2 Note progress with delivery of the Information Governance audit currently
underway;

13 Approve a request to defer the Information Security Arrangements audit to the
2023/24 Internal Audit Plan;

14 Note that the draft 2023/24 LPF annual internal audit plan is presented to the
Committee for review and approval in a separate paper at this meeting; and

15 Progress with implementation of agreed management actions from previously
completed internal audits.

Laura Calder
Head of Internal Audit, City of Edinburgh Council

Legal and Assurance, Corporate Services Directorate

E-mail: laura.calder@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 469 3077

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN &
PENSION FUND Page 25


mailto:laura.calder@edinburgh.gov.uk

Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update - February 2023

2. Executive Summary

2.1  This report provides details of the progress of Internal Audit’s (IA) assurance activity
on behalf of Lothian Pension Fund (LPF) overseen by the City of Edinburgh Council’s
(the Council) IA function.

2.2 Delivery of the four audits included in the 2022/23 IA annual plan agreed by
Committee in September 2022 are underway, with two audits complete and a
further audit currently in progress.

2.3 A report detailing the outcomes of the Third-Party Supplier Management is included
for the Committee’s review and scrutiny.

24 Due to unforeseen absence of key contacts, the Information Security Arrangements
audit has been delayed. It is requested that this audit is deferred to quarter 1 of the
2023/24 |A plan.

2.5 Itis IA’s opinion that the three audits due for completion in the 2022/23 IA plan will
be sufficient to provide an annual audit opinion for the year end 31 March 2023.

2.6 The draft 2023/24 LPF annual internal audit plan has been developed by the
Council’s IA function with support from PwC. The draft has been reviewed and
discussed with management and is presented to the Committee for review and
approval within a separate paper for this meeting.

2.7  Asat9 February 2023, LPF had 14 agreed management actions with one action
passed the original implementation date.

3. Background

2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Plan

3.1 A revised 2022/23 LPF IA plan consisting of four audits was approved by the
Committee in September 2022.

Internal Audit Follow-Up Process

3.2 IA follow up on progress with implementation of management actions arising from
IA reports. A risk-based approach to follow-up is applied, with all high rated
management actions validated by IA when presented for closure together with a
sample of medium actions. The remaining medium actions and low actions are
closed via a ‘self-attestation’ once confirmed as complete by management.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2
LOTHIAN &
PENSION FUND Page 26



4, Main Report

Progress with delivery of the 2022/23 LPF IA annual plan

4.1  The 2022/23 IA annual plan includes the following reviews:

e Project Forth — Programme assurance
e Third-party supplier management

e Information governance

e Information Security Arrangements

4.2  The Project Forth - Programme assurance review is complete with outcomes
reported to Committee in December 2022.

4.3  The Third-Party Supplier Management audit is complete with a report detailing
outcomes included at Appendix 1.

4.4  The Information Governance audit is currently in fieldwork and is due to complete by
end of March 2023 as agreed with management.

4.5 Planning is complete for the remaining audit of Information Security Arrangements
with a Terms of Reference and programme of work agreed. Fieldwork has been
delayed due to unforeseen absence of a key contact. In recognition that the key
contact will require time to return to work following absence and to ensure sufficient
time to complete this audit work thoroughly, it is proposed that that this audit is
deferred to quarter 1 of the 2023/24 IA plan.

4.6 Itis IA’s opinion that the three audits due for completion in the 2022/23 IA plan will
be sufficient to provide an annual audit opinion for the year ending 31 March 2023.

Status of Open IA management actions as at 9 February 2023

4,7  Asat9 February 2023, LPF had 14 agreed management actions (9 Medium and 5
Low) which were raised across the following audits:

e Project Forth - Programme Assurance (7)
e Bulk Transfers (4)

e Risk Management (2)

e Technology Model Development (1)

4.8 One management action has passed its original implementation date, details of
which are set out below:

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3
LOTHIAN &
PENSION FUND Page 27



Audit Action title / Rating Action and management update

due date
LPF2003 3.1.2: Post- Medium | LPF have produced user manuals and
Technology Implementation documentation for key/business critical
Model Activities systems and will review the requirements
Development and suitability of the currently available
31/12/2022 generic documentation for the others

during 2022.

The action to address the issue is partially
complete, however due to events out with
LPF’s control, unplanned leave by the issue
owner and delegate, is delaying
completion of this item. A revised date will
be provided in due course.

4.9 The remaining 13 management actions are not yet due for completion and
implementation is currently being progressed by LPF. Details of the management
actions are provided at Appendix 2.

5. Financial impact

5.1 Failure to close management actions and address the associated risks in a timely
manner may have financial impacts which are not yet measurable.

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1 IA recommendations are raised as a result of control gaps or deficiencies identified
during audits. If agreed management actions are not implemented, LPF will be
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant IA reports, including the potential risk of
non-compliance with applicable regulations.

7. Background reading/external references

7.1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

7.2 Lothian Pension Fund — Internal Audit Update as at 31 August 2022 (item 6.4)

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 Third-Party Supplier Management Internal Audit Report
Appendix 2  All LPF outstanding audit actions as at 9 February 2023

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 4
LOTHIAN &

PENSION FUND Page 28


http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
file://///corpad/departments/Fin/Finserv/InternalAudit/22_23%20Audit%20Plan/22_23%20Committee%20Reports/LPF/06%20Dec%202022/Lothian%20Pension%20Fund%20–%20Internal%20Audit%20Update%20as%20at%2031%20August%202022

6¢ obed

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Internal Audit Report
Lothian Pension Fund - Third Party Supplier Management

8 March 2023

LPF2203

Overall
Assessment

*€DINBVRGH?*

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




Contents

ST ol U 1AV T3 T3 = 3
B F 101 0 | 0T8T =T T = o]0 L= 5
FINdings and ManagemeEnt ACTION Plam .. ... r e s e s s e s s s e e s s s e e s s s e e s s s e e s s s e e e s s e e e s s n e e e 6
Appendix 1 — Control Assessment and ASSUranNCe DefiNITIONS .. ...uuueeuiis i r e s s e s st s s s s e e s sa e e s sa e e s sann e s rannesrans 16

T

jab)

«Q

(¢

w

o

This Internal Audit review is conducted by the City of Edinburgh Council for the Lothian Pension Fund under the auspices of the 2022/23 internal audit plan
approved by the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee in September 2022. The review is designed to help the Lothian Pension Fund assess and refine its internal
control environment. It is not designed or intended to be suitable for any other purpose and should not be relied upon for any other purpose. The City of
Edinburgh Council accepts no responsibility for any such reliance and disclaims all liability in relation thereto.

The internal audit work and reporting has been performed in line with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and as a result is
not designed or intended to comply with any other auditing standards.

Although there are specific recommendations included in this report to strengthen internal control, it is management’s responsibility to design, implement and
maintain an effective control framework, and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud. This is an essential part of the efficient management of
the Lothian Pension Fund. Communication of the issues and weaknesses arising from this audit does not absolve management of this responsibility. High and
Critical risk findings will be raised with senior management and members as appropriate.

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



Executive Summary

Overall opinion and summary of findings

Our review of Lothian Pension Fund’s (LPF) Third Party Supplier Management
Framework recognises that it has recently been developed and implemented
and that it takes time to embed such frameworks. The following findings have
been identified which are designed to enhance and strengthen LPF’s control
environment:

o Supplier management processes for Critical Suppliers — the criteria
used for identifying critical suppliers requires improvement to ensure they
are specific and consistent with regulatory expectations. Tier 1 criteria is
inadequate as it fails to consider a regulatory impact of engaging with a
supplier, while the criteria for Tiers 2 and 3 are ambiguous and too
subjective.

Contract exit planning — a strategy for contract exit planning or business
continuity for suppliers has not yet been documented or considered by LPF.

Design of the Supplier Management — the framework document requires
improvement to ensure it provides an adequate level of detail for Third Party
Risk Management on key areas such as: governing body responsibility for
oversight of outsourcing, intra-group outsourcing (LPFI and LPFE Limited),
defined risk appetite, risk and issue identification and management, and exit
planning.

e Supplier onboarding processes — supplier onboarding processes require
improvement to ensure they effectively manage supplier risk. Issues noted
include the lack of a Quality Assurance process following the materiality
assessment, and gaps and inconsistencies in the Legal review process.

TS obed

e Training and awareness — there is currently no supplier management risk
training and awareness programme for relevant LPF employees.

Overall
Assessment

e Ongoing monitoring and oversight — there is limited reference to City of
Edinburgh Council’s (the Council) role and responsibilities within the supplier
management framework. There are also gaps in the processes in place for
governance of the framework as well as in the management and oversight of
the supplier database.

Areas of good practice

Our review identified the following areas of good practice:

o LPF’s risk register includes supplier risks and consists of key metrics such as
impact, probability, target risk level, and mitigation actions.

e The Data Privacy Impact Assessment (DPIA) process is clear and consistent
with our discussions with LPF employees. The cooperative approach
between LPF (data processor) and the Council (the data controller) in this
process is adequate from a design perspective, and the Data Protection
Assessment (DPA) approach is successful in assessing the applicability of a
supplier DPIA.

Management response

The LPF Supplier Management Framework was developed during 2022 prior to
which LPF managed suppliers through a contract database that mirrored and
relied on CEC contract management processes. LPF had since acknowledged
the need to operate an appropriate standalone framework to facilitate the
management and oversight of LPF suppliers to mitigate risks in respect of
supplier underperformance or failure. This framework was rolled out during Q2-
Q3 2022, and during the period of the review, has only had a limited time to
embed in the business. Notwithstanding, LPF management welcome design
and operational observations at this early stage of the framework’s maturity
which provide an opportunity to reflect on areas which can be improved and
make enhancements as appropriate.

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



Audit Assessment

Control Control
Design Operation

Audit Area

Findings Priority Rating

Finding 1 — Supplier management processes for Critical Suppliers
Strategy & oversight, risk appetite, and
policy maintenance

N/A Finding 3 — Design of the Supplier Management Framework Medium Priority

Third-Party Supplier offboarding and exit Finding 2 — Exit planning

plans

Third-Party Supplier onboarding Finding 4 — Supplier onboarding processes Medium Priority
T0
gl\/lonitoring and oversight Finding 5 — Ongoing monitoring and oversight Medium Priority
D
e

=~ ARy

Nraining and communication

Finding 6 — Supplier Management training and awareness -

See Appendix 1 for Control Assessment and Assurance Definitions

° Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



Background and scope

Lothian Pension Fund (LPF) engages with a number of third-party suppliers
to support its business functions. These range from ad-hoc arrangements to
reliance on larger, more complex service providers. The effective
management of all third-party suppliers is key to ensuring business
objectives are met. It is therefore expected that Senior Management
demonstrates adequate and appropriate oversight, and that monitoring
controls are in place to enable a holistic and effective approach to third party
supplier risk management.

The objective of this review was to assess the adequacy of design and
current operating effectiveness against industry good practices, PwC’s
interactions in the market, and the key controls established (where
appropriate) to ensure LPF has appropriate processes and procedures in

Limitations of Scope

The following areas were excluded from scope:

e the Procurement function and its underlying processes were not within
the scope of this review

e the review did not intend to be a complete traceability mapping exercise
to regulatory/legislative requirements; hence we have not provided a
view or opinion on whether LPF is compliant with the relevant regulatory
requirements

e while this review considered due diligence and ongoing monitoring
requirements, a detailed review of risk domains such as Information
Security of third-party suppliers was not included in the scope of this
review. This will be considered as part of the LPF Information Security
Arrangements internal audit currently underway

TOplace to manage its third-party suppliers.

S
T

%The review also assessed the following LPF risks:

e recognising that the framework has recently been implemented and
therefore evidence of operational effectiveness may be limited, this
review focused predominantly on the design of the framework.

Reporting Date

Testing was undertaken between 13 January 2023 and 10 February 2023.

e Supplier and third-party systems - inadequate, or failure of,
supplier and other third-party systems (including IT and Data

security).
Our audit work concluded on 10 February 2023, and our findings and opinion

Our assessment included matters that we consider relevant based on our are based on the conclusion of our work as at that date.

understanding of the key risks to the organisation.

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



¢ abed

Findings and Management Action Plan

Finding 1 — Supplier management processes for Critical Suppliers

Critical supplier relationships should be managed in line with industry good
practices to ensure LPF can exercise effective management, governance and
oversight over critical outsourcing arrangements.

Our review noted the following issues with the design and operating
effectiveness of LPF’s supplier management processes for two critical
suppliers, Charles River, and Northern Trust:

1. Business case documentation for Charles River and Northern Trust
was not available therefore we were unable to assess whether
onboarding processes for critical suppliers are fit for purpose.

2. Supplier monitoring of Charles River has not been carried out in line
with the process detailed in the Supplier Management Framework, as
detailed notes of key review meetings for Charles River have not been
documented.

3. Due diligence has not been completed consistently, as documentation
provided (such as additional external assurance documentation) for
Northern Trust was not as comprehensive as that provided to us for
Charles River.

Finding
Rating

4. The criteria used to categorise Tier 1 suppliers does not refer to suppliers
which are ‘critical to the LPF Group’s compliance with law and/or
regulation’.

5. Management advised that an incident involving Charles River which
prevented LPF employees from carrying out their role occurred but was
not formally reported internally to LPF Risk & Compliance until two weeks
after identification, which indicates that internal compliance reporting
processes are not operating effectively.

Risks
Supplier and third-party systems

¢ inadequate risk management processes for critical suppliers could result in
regulatory censure as well as over reliance on dominant service
provider(s) for core functions, potentially leading to loss of service on the
collapse or withdrawal of that provider, and customer harm/loss. This risk
is further elevated due to a limited understanding of the critical supplier
risk profile.

e inadequate, or failure of, supplier and other third-party systems (including
IT and Data security).

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Supplier management processes for Critical

Suppliers

Recommendation

Agreed Management Action

Contributors Timeframe

1.1 Business case documentation for all critical suppliers

should be stored in line with LPF’s record keeping
policy.

LPF will review records for existing critical | Chief Head of 30/09/2023
suppliers, and ensure that business case Executive Legal (LPF)
documentation is stored in correct supplier | Officer (LPF)

files. Supplier management policy will be

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



updated to specify where supplier records,
such as business case, should be stored.

Ge abed

1.2 | Tier 1 supplier monitoring should be carried out in line LPF will carry out targeted training for Tier
with LPF’s documented supplier monitoring process. 1 supplier owners on monitoring, and
This includes the documentation and retention of consider appropriate oversight via RMG
detailed notes and individual meeting dates to ensure reporting.
that meetings are taking place in line with agreed
frequency.

1.3 | Due diligence should be consistent in terms of the level | As part of action 1.2, targeted training will
of scrutiny applied to critical suppliers. Management cover annual due diligence. Supplier
should ensure that annual due diligence for Northern framework document review will consider
Trust (and all Tier 1 suppliers) is aligned with Charles due diligence templates or checklists with
River in that recent vulnerability assessment results, set items, tailored to specific tiers.
penetration test reports and other external assurance
reports are obtained and reviewed.

1.4 | The tiering criteria used should be amended so that LPF will review and define the tiering
Tier 1 suppliers include those suppliers which are criteria (part of action 3.1), then review tier
critical to the LPF Group’s compliance with law or classification of existing suppliers.
regulation. Cost of the supplier contract generally
should not factor into the assessment of materiality
(e.g., Tier 2 suppliers). To avoid subjectivity, the tiering
criteria should include key areas highlighted by
regulators including the potential impact of a disruption,
failure, or inadequate performance of the firm’s
business continuity, operational resilience, and
operational risk.

15 Management should communicate the incident LPF will recommunicate existing incident

reporting policy to all LPF employees, to ensure that
incidents are reported in line with documented incident
reporting processes.

reporting policies to all employees.

Head of
Legal (LPF)

Head of
Legal (LPF)

Head of
Legal (LPF)

Chief Risk
Officer (LPF)

30/09/2023

30/09/2023

30/09/2023

30/06/2023

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management




. . . . Finding
Finding 2 — Contract exit planning Rating -
Contract exit plans should provide for all scenarios and should be periodically  Risks
tested and updated. Consideration should also be given to ‘stressed’ exits . .
. ) : o o I hird-
where withdrawal from a supplier relationship is sudden (such as liquidation or Supplier and third-party systems
insolvency); and viable forms of exit from supplier relationships from such e supplier Management Framework may not provide adequate guidance on

scenarios, with a focus on the ongoing provision of important business

services following a stressed exit.

roles and responsibilities for managing third party arrangements.

e exit plans are not fit for purpose, exceeding LPF’s risk appetite and could
expose LPF to business disruption.

During the audit we noted the following gaps in relation to exit planning:

1. LPF does not have a defined exit planning process or strategy.

2. LPF does not have exit plan templates in place.

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Exit planning

Ref. Recommendation

O
QD

(@)

M| 2.1 Management should define an exit planning process or
8 strategy for the exiting of a supplier relationship under
‘stressed’ and ‘non-stressed’ scenarios. This should
also consider the materiality of a supplier e.g., exit
plans for Tier 1 suppliers should be tested and signed
off by an appropriate level of management.

Agreed Management Action

LPF will define the supplier exit process, as
part of supplier management process review
and refresh. See action 3.1.

2.2 Management should create an exit plan template which
can be used as part of the Supplier Management
Framework.

LPF will create an exit plan template, as part
of the exit plan process. See action 3.1.

Owner

Chief
Executive
Officer
(LPF)

Contributors Timeframe

Chief Risk
Officer (LPF)

Head of
Legal (LPF)

30/06/2023

30/06/2023

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



/€ abed

Finding 3 — Design of the Supplier Management Framework

LPF’s Supplier Management Framework should provide end-to-end coverage Risks

of the Third Party Risk Management lifecycle.

Our review noted that the LPF Supplier Management Framework does not

include a sufficient level of detail around the following key areas:

1. Material outsourcing (e.g., outsourcing of an Important Business
Service including regulated activities) vs. non-material outsourcing

Supporting process documents
Approach to intra-group arrangements
Approach to contracting and written agreements

RACI matrix
Defined risk appetite
Risk and issue identification and management processes

© O N OR WD

suppliers

Supplier and third-party systems

Finding
Rating

Medium
Priority

¢ insufficiently articulated framework or supporting procedures and

guidance for the management of third-party supplier risk, resulting in a

oversight.

lack of clarity over roles and responsibilities, governance, and

e an inadequate governance framework and structure would fail to
ensure effective management of third party arrangements by LPF,
leading to potential undermining of LPF's ability to provide a continuous
and satisfactory service to its policyholders.

Roles and responsibilities (particularly with regards to the Council)

e receiving services without adequate contractual protection which could
result in LPF not being able to sufficiently control and monitor its
relationships with third party suppliers.

Exit planning and business continuity plans and processes for

10. Procedures for the identification, assessment, management, and

mitigation of potential conflicts of interest
11. Supplier incident reporting

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Design of the Supplier Management Framework

Contributors

Timeframe

Ref. nRecommendation Agreed Management Action Owner

3.1 | The Supplier Management Framework should be updated
to include the following:

1. Clarification on LPF’s approach to material outsourcing
and if/how it differs to non-material outsourcing.

2. Links to supporting process documents such as ICT

LPF will review existing Supplier
Management Framework document and
all related supporting document
(templates, checklists), and update. New
supporting documents will be created
where necessary.

Chief
Executive
Officer
(LPF)

Chief Risk

Officer (LPF)

Head of Legal
(LPF)

30/09/2023

Security assessment and DPIA guidance.

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management




g¢ abed

3. Detailed approach to intra-group arrangements 1) Existing Supplier Management Service

including LPFI and LPFE Limited. Framework review will be updated to Director,

4. A defined process for contracts and written ensure it covers: Finance and
agreements (e.g., at what point Legal function is e Onboarding process, including Procurement
engaged and relevant approval flow). approval flows and RACI matrix (CEC)

5. A RACI matrix which includes key business functions * Tiering criteria, and tiering approval _

(e.g., Legal, ICT Security, DPO, Board) and the checks Interim Head of
Council. e EXxit processes Commercial

6. Amendment to Roles and Responsibilities section to e Approach to outsourcing and
include the Council. * Approach to Intra-group Procurement

7. Risk appetite should be developed to detail how Key arrangements o Services (CEC)
Risk Indicators (KRIs) should be applied when * CEC role and responsibilities
managing supplier risk and linked to the LPF Group’s e Links or clarifications on
overarching risk management framework and risk appllqatlon of existing processes to
appetite. suppliers e.g. Contract review;

DPIA, IT assessment, risk appetite,
risk and issue reporting, incident
reporting, conflicts, business
continuity

8. Risk and issue identification and management process
should be outlined or linked within the framework.

9. A business continuity process for suppliers

10. A process for identifying and managing potential

conflicts of interest. 2) New supporting documents will be
11. A process for supplier incident reporting. created to cover:

e Onboarding process / checklist

e Exit plan template / checklist

e Legal contract review process /
checklist

e Legal standard contract template

e Critical supplier due diligence
review templates (may replace
existing monitoring template)

@ Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



6E abed

Finding 4 — Supplier onboarding processes

Finding Medium

Rating Priority
Robust onboarding processes help to support effective management and b) LPF’s contractual review checklist does not include the following
oversight of risks posed by new suppliers and the services provided by them. expected checks:
Our review identified the following issues which indicate that LPF’s onboarding * Right to audit
processes require further development to ensure that they are adequately e Supplier incident handling and reporting

designed and operating effectively:

1. There is no internal secondary review of the tiering assessment, or its
outcome carried out during the onboarding process. Therefore, there is

e Business continuity clauses

c) LPF’s contractual review checklist lacks clarity with regards to which
suppliers require a clearly defined set of KPIs.

limited assurance that the tier assigned to a given supplier is correct and

proportionate to the risk posed by it.

3. In addition, there is no mechanism in place to alert the ICT Security team
that a supplier ICT security assessment has not been carried out.

Certain aspects of the Legal review process do not provide adequate

contractual protection, including the following:

a) LPF’s standard Terms and Conditions do not contain the following

key clauses:

Risks
Supplier and third-party systems

¢ inadequate onboarding processes could result in LPF onboarding an

e Frequency of review of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) inappropriate supplier that is not capable of providing the required services

e Business continuity clauses
¢ Right to audit, incident handling and reporting
e EXxit planning and strategy

to the requisite level.

e inadequate, or failure of, supplier and other third-party systems (including
IT and Data security).

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Supplier onboarding processes

Agreed Management Action Owner Contributors Timeframe

Recommendation

4.1

Management should consider the inclusion of an
internal secondary review of the tiering assessment
and its outcome during in the onboarding process.

This should be carried out by an appropriate level of
management when a supplier’s tier has been
assigned.

LPF will implement a review of the tiering Chief Executive | Chief Risk 30/09/2023
assessment during the onboarding process Officer (LPF) Officer (LPF)
(action 3.1)

Head of

Legal (LPF)

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



0t abed

4.2 | LPF’s Supplier Contract Legal review process

should be amended to include the following:
1.

Addition of the following clauses to LPF’s
standard Terms & Conditions:
e Frequency of review of KPIs
e Business continuity clauses
¢ Right to audit
¢ Incident handling and reporting including
defined timelines
e Exit planning and strategy
Addition of the following checks to LPF’s
contractual review checklist:
¢ Right to audit
e Supplier incident handling and reporting
including defined timelines
e Business continuity clauses
LPF’s contractual review checklist should be
amended to clarify criteria for which suppliers
require a clearly defined set of KPIs. Generally,
language like ‘if appropriate’ should be avoided.

LPF will review the existing contract review
process, add suggested checks to the
checklist. (overlap with action 3.1).

Head of
Legal (LPF)

30/06/2023

4.3 LPF’s supplier onboarding process should include a

clear mechanism which notifies the ICT Security
team if an assessment is not carried out. This could
include the inclusion of a requirement to notify ICT
Security if a supplier service processes LPF
data/confidential data.

LPF will review the supplier onboarding
process as part of Supplier Management
Framework document update (action 3.1),
and introduce a clearer, centralised process
with defined approvals to be followed for all
new suppliers.

Chief Risk
Officer (LPF)

Head of
Legal (LPF)

30/09/2023

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management




.. : : : . Finding Medium
Finding 5 — Ongoing monitoring and oversight Rating Priority

Ongoing monitoring controls support LPF Senior Management and their ability Risks
to demonstrate adequate and appropriate oversight over supplier

i Supplier and third-party systems
management activities.

e management may not receive appropriate visibility of key risks, issues,
escalations, incidents, and threats preventing effective decision making,
remediation and management of third-party risks.

During the audit, the following issues were noted with regards to ongoing
monitoring and oversight:

1. LI?F’§ supplier databasg and the data fields included are not in line e the Supplier Management Framework may not provide adequate guidance
with industry good practices. on roles and responsibilities for managing supplier arrangements, which
2. The Council’s roles and responsibilities in relation to overseeing and could result in ineffective supplier risk management.

managing third party supplier relationships for LPF are not defined.

3. LPF’s governance structure does not sufficiently cover supplier
management.

s]'?Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Ongoing monitoring and oversight

(@)
] Ref. Recommendation Agreed Management Action Owner Contributors Timeframe
5.1 Management should consider the following actions: | LPF will enhance existing supplier database | Chief Executive | Chief Risk 30/09/2023
1. Inclusion of data fields to record recent supplier | to include additional data fields, including Officer (LPF) Officer (LPF)
assessments (e.g., ICT Security, The Data dates of IT assessment and DPIA, and links
Privacy Impact Assessment (DPIA) carried out to full records. Head of
Legal (LPF)

as well as their outcomes.

2. The supplier database should also be reviewed | A review of the database will be established,
by an appropriate level of management and the with results provided to senior management
results of this review should be stored as part of RMG oversight.
somewhere easily accessible to enable LPF
Senior Management to exercise effective
oversight of suppliers.

e Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



y abed

5.2 | The Council’s role and responsibilities in relation to | This will be documented as part of refresh of
supplier management and oversight for LPF should | Supplier Management Framework document
be defined in the Supplier Management Framework | (3.1).
document.

5.3 | Management should consider the following: LPF will update RMG responsibilities to

1. Inclusion of a supplier management section
within the Risk Management Group (RMG) pack
and Terms of Reference (ToR).

2. Addition of a version control and review history
section to the Risk Management Group’s Terms
of Reference. In addition, the Terms of
Reference should be reviewed annually to
ensure they are relevant and up-to-date.

3. Supplier management should be included as a
distinct agenda item at the RMG. The
discussion could include issues identified
relating to Tier 1 suppliers, recent Tier 1
suppliers onboarded, and consideration of exit
strategies and plans.

include supplier management, and consider
how best to incorporate into existing agenda
and Ml.

LPF will add document control to RMG
Terms of Ref, including version history and
frequency of review.

Chief Risk
Officer (LPF)

30/09/2023

30/06/2023

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management




Finding

Rating Low Priority

Finding 6 — Supplier Management Training and awareness

Training and awareness controls support core third party supplier Risks

management procedures and help to ensure LPF employees are aware of Supplier and third-party systems

their roles and responsibilities in relation to supplier management. e training is insufficient, inadequate, or misaligned to recognised good

During the audit, we noted that there is no risk training or awareness practices which could result in LPF employees not carrying out their role
programme in place at LPF for supplier management. as effectively as possible with regards to Third Party Supplier
management.

Recommendations and Management Action Plan: Supplier Management Training and awareness

Recommendation Agreed Management Action Contributors Timeframe
6.1 Management should consider establishing a supplier LPF will carry out training and awareness Chief _ Chi_ef Risk 31/12/2023
management risk training and awareness programme, for | following update of all documents and EX?CUt'Ve Officer (LPF)
o all employees and new joiners with a role within supplier processes referred to in other actions; and Officer d of
2 management. consider how to incorporate into existing | (LPF) Eea Ic()LPF)
.. . ega
@ The training and awareness programme should be annual training plan and onboarding. g
a reviewed annually or in line with any material changes to

ensure that it remains relevant and up-to-date, and
employees should be required to complete regularly to
ensure sufficient knowledge and awareness.

e Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



Appendix 1 — Control Assessment and Assurance Definitions

Control Assessment Rating

Well managed

Control Designh Adequacy

objectives

Well-structured design efficiently achieves fit-for purpose control

Control Operation Effectiveness

Controls consistently applied and operating at optimum level of
effectiveness.

Generally
Satisfactory

Sound design achieves control objectives

Controls consistently applied

Some
Improvement
Opportunity

Design is generally sound, with some opportunity to introduce
control improvements

Conformance generally sound, with some opportunity to enhance
level of conformance

Major Design is not optimum and may put control . .
Improvement biecti t risk Non-conformance may put control objectives at risk
Opportunity objectives at ris
Control Not . . Control not tested, either due to ineffective design or due to design

Tested N/A Not applicable for control design assessments only audit

1 obed

Overall Assurance Ratings

Some
improvement
required

EGEWIEE

The control environment and governance and risk management frameworks have
been adequately designed and are operating effectively, providing assurance that
risks are being effectively managed, and LPFs objectives should be achieved.

Whilst some control weaknesses were identified, in the design and / or
effectiveness of the control environment and / or governance and risk management
frameworks, they provide reasonable assurance that risks are being managed, and
LPF’s objectives should be achieved.

Significant and / or numerous control weaknesses were identified, in the design
and / or effectiveness of the control environment and / or governance and risk
management frameworks. Consequently, only limited assurance can be provided
that risks are being managed and that LPF’s objectives should be achieved.

The design and / or operating effectiveness of the control environment and / or
governance and risk management frameworks is inadequate, with several
significant and systemic control weaknesses identified, resulting in substantial risk
of operational failure and the strong likelihood that LPF’s objectives will not be
achieved.

Finding Priority Ratings

A finding that does not have a risk impact but has
Advisory been raised to highlight areas of inefficiencies or
good practice.
Low Priorit An issue that results in a small impact to the
y achievement of objectives in the area audited.
Medium An issue that results in a moderate impact to the
Priority achievement of objectives in the area audited.

An issue that results in a severe impact to the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

An issue that results in a critical impact to the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.
The issue needs to be resolved as a matter of
urgency.

Critical
Priority

Internal Audit Report: LPF2203 — LPF — Third Party Supplier Management



G abed

Appendix 2 - All LPF outstanding audit actions as at 9 February 2023

LPF — Bulk Transfers

Date raised

13/08/2021

Recommendation Title

LPF2001 - Rec 1.1 Management
oversight of external project
management

Recommendation

LPF management should review and project plans; delivery progress; and the overall project
RAG (red, amber, green) status to confirm their completeness and accuracy, and actively
challenge external project managers to understand the reasons for any delivery delays, and
their overall impact on the project. Details of this review and challenge should be recorded
in project board / governance meeting minutes and logs, with appropriate action
implemented by the external project manager to ensure that any concerns raised by the LPF
management team are effectively addressed.

Agreed Management Action

LPF commissioned specialist project management services from Hymans Robertson LLP in order to
draw upon its expertise and experience in large scale LGPS bulk transfers. Accordingly, in light of the
audit feedback, LPF sought and received comment from the company thereon. The key extract is:
“Each Highlight report has the narrative to acknowledge that dates can and do move throughout the
project —an example is noted as follows: Some milestone dates in the highlight report have altered
since the last report, this is due to movement on some activities and refining of the plan. We would
only expect to change any RAG status if there was a negative impact as a result of any delays. In a
project like this, we know that there are a number of activities where issues can arise that are outside
of our control, however we can we build in contingency to help manage them.

In both scenarios, the signing of the Actuaries letters and the provision of DSAs, there was no negative
impact on critical activities, therefore the RAG would remain Green and on track. Progress on each of
these areas were discussed at the project meetings. As a result of the feedback, for future reports, the
description of the RAG status at the foot of the highlight report will be updated to be more specific
around the impact of any date changes to avoid any ambiguity.” LPF echoes the sentiments expressed
by Hymans Robertson LLP. Accordingly, with an expectation that a RAG status would only change if
there was a negative impact as a result of any delays, LPF considers that the project management
provided appropriate oversight and control. As stated, however, to avoid any potential ambiguity in
future, suitable clarification will be embedded in procedures for any similar exercises.

Priority Rating

Low Priority

Date Due

31/12/2024

LPF — Bulk Transfers

13/08/2021

LPF2001 - Rec 2.1 Maintenance and
oversight of a data transfer issues log

For any future data transfer exercises, LPF should maintain a data transfer issues log that
should include but not be restricted to: A description of the errors identified; The date they
were identified; The significance of the errors (for example, high, medium and low); What
action is being / has been taken to correct the error;Who is addressing / has addressed the
error; and Date of resolution.The issues log should be reviewed by an independent team
member to: Confirm that all issues identified have a clear action, owner, and
implementation date for resolution; Confirm that there is satisfactory progress with
resolution of all significant issues prior to implementation date; andEnsure that any
concerns in relation to lack of implementation progress is escalated to senior
management.A sample review of actions completed to address data quality issues identified
should be performed prior to live implementation to confirm that issues have been closed
appropriately, and that evidence has been retained (where possible) to support their
closure. Appropriate evidence of this review (including details of the sample testing
methodology applied) should also be retained.

LPF accepts the recommendation.

As part of the process (outlined in the implementation study), the Fund’s software supplier Aquila
Heywood provided system generated reports reconciling the number of members transferred and
several data items. This provided assurance that data taken from the ceding funds and loaded into LPF
TEST service was identical. Any issues would have been flagged up at that time. Following receipt of
these reports (which showed that the information between ceding fund and LPF tallied), LPF carried
out a further data cleansing exercise using a portal created by the Actuary. This is an additional step in
the process that LPF chose to do to ensure the quality of transferred data (please see Appendix B of
the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement). The number of errors identified by this further cleanse was
extremely small and covered only minor issues. An example was a postcode warning for an overseas
pensioners — this is due to the difference in formats of UK and overseas postcodes. The small number
of errors identified could be resolved very quickly and easily. Further data quality assurance was
obtained in carrying out more than one parallel payroll run.LPF acknowledges that this transfer
included a relatively small number of members and that data in this case was of a high standard, and
that subsequent transfers may involve greater member numbers and poorer quality data.

Medium Priority

31/12/2024

LPF — Bulk Transfers

13/08/2021

LPF2001 - Rec 2.2 Completion of parallel
payroll runs

When performing parallel payroll runs to confirm the accuracy of payroll data prior to live
transfer, LPF should implement a formal process for confirming satisfactory completion of
the payroll run and / or ensuring that all issues identified are recorded in the issues log
(refer recommendation 1.1.). This could be confirmed via email to management confirming,
as a minimum:The source of the data used;The month for the payroll run;The name of the
team member who initiated and performed the payroll run;The name of the other team
member who closed the payroll run;Confirmation that significant issues were / were not
identified and will be addressed prior to live implementation; andConfirmation regarding
whether the live implementation date can still be achieved.

LPF accepts the recommendation.

Parallel payroll runs were carried out using a process set out by the Fund’s software supplier which has
been developed and used successfully on many other occasions, together with documented processes
for running payroll which are already fully documented and integrated within LPF. LPF’s decision to
carry out more than one parallel payroll run provided additional assurance that information supplied
was correct.

Medium Priority

31/12/2024

LPF — Bulk Transfers

13/08/2021

LPF2001 - Rec 2.3 Review of membership
communication listing

For future communications with members, LPF should ensure that:A reconciliation is
performed between the total members on the communication list to the complete list of
transferring members from the ceding funds;An independent review of is performed of the
nature of communications (communication labels) to be provided to members to confirm
their accuracy based on membership status and other relevant information;The listing
contains details of the preparer and reviewer, and relevant dates; andThe reviewed listing is
distributed by email communication to ensure a trail of accountability.

LPF accepts the recommendation.

Following the successful completion of the transfer, a system generated report listed all member data
required for communications. This report was generated for members of each ceding fund and
showed member status and member address. No differentiation in communication was required for
active and deferred members (i.e. all active members received the same letter, and all deferred
members received the same letter). As reports were produced by ceding fund and member status was

included, the data was available in order to successfully identify which pensioner letter was to be used.

Prior to sending letters, proofs were spot-checked against the initial report and LPF’s Communications
Partner reconciled the numbers back to the original report and confirmed with the Employer and
Member Payroll Manager.

Medium Priority

31/12/2024




9t abed

LPF — Technology
Model Development

03/03/2022

LPF2003 Recommendation 3.1.2: Post-
Implementation Activities

1. A post-implementation review on the migration to the new externally hosted LPF
technology network has not yet been performed or planned to identify improvements that
could be applied to subsequent projects.LPF management has advised that a post
implementation review will be completed by the end of December 2021. 2. Whilst user
manuals are in place for some LPF third party hosted systems such as Charles River, Altair,
and the Cased Dimensions technology, not all systems have manuals, such as Moorepay,
Legal e-sign, and Bamboo.

LPF have produced user manuals and documentation for key/business critical systems and will review
the requirements and suitability of the currently available generic documentation for the others during
2022.

Medium Priority

31/12/2022

LPF Risk Management 23/08/2022 LPF2103 2.1 Recommendation: LPF management should: a) Review the risks included in the risk registers and ensure they Likewise, we will look to re-review the sub-group registers (and tie-in with main group register) with Low Priority 31/03/2023
Maintenance of risk registers are appropriately articulated. b) Agree definitions of Low/Medium/High impact and these points in mind We will consider within Risk Management Group (RMG) and report back through
likelihood assessments and embed their application at risk subgroups.c) Review the controls Jthe usual channels with any updates arising.
listed in the corporate risk register to ensure that they are appropriately articulated in line
with the who, what, why, and how control description principles included at Appendix 3 in
this report. d) Ensure that all mitigating actions are specific, measurable, achievable,
realistic and timely.
LPF Risk Management 23/08/2022 LPF2103 1.1 Recommendation: Aligning ]1. Management should review the current population of LPF corporate risks to confirm that JWe will look to re-review our risks with this finding in mind and use it as an opportunity to step back Medium Priority 31/03/2023
corporate risks with strategic objectives |they are complete and ensure that they align with the strategic objectives and goals set out Jand consider more holistically the risks we capture and how we can effectively manage and cascade
and risk definitions in the LPF Strategy and Business Plan. 2. Risk definitions should be established for each risk |granularity of definition with both ongoing operational risk management and reporting/governance in
category; agreed by management; and communicated across LPF for ongoing reference mind. The Risk Management Group (RMG) does seek to do this on an ongoing basis, and to strike the
when identifying and assessing risks. important balance between maintaining and reporting on the right number of risks (omitting gaps) and
distracting the focus away from critical risks/strategic analysis with too much detail, but this is a
helpful and timely point to review this. We will consider within RMG and report back through the usual
channels with any updates arising.
LPF - Project Forth 11/01/2023 LPF2201 2.1 Recommendation: The Council and LPF should agree and plan internal audit, and any other programme To ensure good project governance is maintained, LPF will propose a further review is included in CEC Medium Priority 31/03/2023
Programme Assurance Assurance plan assurance related activities such as those over data migration. These should be entered IA’s 23/24 plan, to be scheduled after council approval. Meanwhile regular project updates will be
onto the plan to support key project milestone stage gates.The deviation from the planned [shared with CEC IA as part of routine BAU meetings.In addition, place markers for audits are noted on
assurance as per the PID should also be tabled at Steerco for visibility/transparency. the Plan on a Page (‘POAP’). Once dates are provided the project plan and the POAP can be updated.
An update on the PwC audit will be provided verbally to Steering Group in December 2022. The
deviation will be raised at that time.
LPF - Project Forth 11/01/2023 LPF2201 3.1 Recommendation: Benefits |A formal Benefits Management plan/approach should be documented, approved, and A Benefits Management plan will be created post merger approval. Meanwhile a task to create the Medium Priority 30/06/2023
Programme Assurance Management plan communicated to all appropriate stakeholders. Typically, this would include plans for at benefits management plan on the project plan will be referenced in the PID.
least: identification/ evaluation/ planning/realisation.review.
The plan/approach should be referenced in the PID, and benefits should be mapped to
specific tasks, risks, and deliverables.
LPF - Project Forth 11/01/2023 LPF2201 4.1 Recommendation: Formal ]A formal Risk Management plan/approach for identifying and capturing risks, assigning Project approach to risks will be added to the PID and shared at Steering Group and Working Group. Medium Priority 31/03/2023
Programme Assurance Risk Management approach owners, and tracking and mitigating risks should be documented, approved, communicated |The RAID log notes the deliverable the risk relates to. This will be enhanced to cover risks being raised
to all appropriate stakeholders, and referenced to in the PID. The RAID log should be against milestones and dependencies where appropriate
updated to include the milestones, dependencies, and benefits (see finding 5) that are
impacted by each risk. The revised Business Case should be used as a source for this
exercise; this will create clear linkage between, and visibility of, all key project
documentation.
LPF - Project Forth 11/01/2023 LPF2201 5.1: Recommendation: Quality |A formal, risk based, quality management plan should be documented, approved by all key |The WIDs highlight success criteria alongside deliverables for each workstream. The workstream lead is Low Priority 30/06/2023
Programme Assurance Management plan stakeholders, and referenced to in the PID, RAID, and all other appropriate governance responsible for the quality of delivery of the workstream and each workstream has an executive (SLT)
documentation.The plan should be robust and cover, at minimum, the following elements: |sponsor overseeing this. Additional scrutiny is provided by the steering group who have ultimate
quality planning,/ assurance (testing) /control /continuous improvement/  roles and accountability. Specific and explicit quality assurance will be put in place for specific deliverables. We
responsibilitiessManagement should also ensure that staff used for assurance/testing are are particularly focussed on proportional quality management especially regarding the Heywood
appropriately skilled i.e., have received appropriate training. Migration Plan, employee consultation and TUPE, and the IT Data Transfer Plan, and will consider
quality criteria, as appropriate.
LPF - Project Forth 11/01/2023 LPF2201 6.1 Recommendation: Absence JAs soon as is practicable after merger approval, a migration plan should be agreed with Placeholder exists in the project plan for the Heywood Data Transfer Plan, which will be the migration Low Priority 30/06/2023
Programme Assurance of a Data Migration plan Heywoods; this should be included in all appropriate governance documentation. This plan. This will be tailored to the project requirements as agreed by the Operations WSL. A mini data
should cover, at minimum:completeness, accuracy, and timeliness of data migration / discovery session is planned between Heywood and LPF during Q1 to baseline some high-level
definition of an agreed ‘cut off’ point for existing systems / roles & responsibilities i.e., expectations and enable costs to be proposed on a more informed basis.
Access, administration, change control etc.Any additional features / changes within the
existing Heywoods application should also be documented as a user training manual post
migration.
LPF - Project Forth 11/01/2023 LPF2201 7.1 Recommendation: Critical Management should: define a ‘critical path’ and ensure that all workstream leaders The critical path cannot be properly defined until the legal structure has been agreed and consequent Low Priority 31/03/2023

Programme Assurance

path

understand it - particularly the key milestones, create an escalation process to address any
threats to the critical path at the earliest opportunity - this could be done through the RAID
log, document the impact of the critical path through all workstreams, considering findings
1-6.

required actions and activities determined. In the meantime, PMO will create an event driven critical
path. This will be shared at Steering Group and Working Group meetings. Threats to the critical plan
will be reflected in the RAID where appropriate.




)t abed

LPF - Project Forth
Programme Assurance

11/01/2023

LPF2201 1.1 Recommendation: Change
Management policy

Management should formally document, approve, and communicate the current informally
applied change management policy to all appropriate stakeholders. This should reference all
currently used documents and should cover: what constitutes a significant change,
when/how to undertake change, the documentation levels required, potential Red, Amber,
Green (RAG) ratings, resolution times for each priority level currently defined in the RAID
log.Once complete, this policy should be referred to in the Governance policy document
(V1.1), as well as the RAID log to link all existing project governance documentation.

Project approach to change will be added to the PID and shared at Steering Group and Working Group.
The RAID log summarises the change request, which is held in the project documentation.

Medium Priority

31/03/2023




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6.4

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

Lothian Pension Fund — Proposed Internal Audit plan for 2023/24

Item number 6.4

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Committee is requested to:
1.1 review and approve the proposed Lothian Pension Fund 2023/24 Internal Audit plan;

1.2 note the expansion of the audit universe to include LPFE and LPFI enabling provision
of single integrated audit programme; and

13 approve proposals to adopt the CIPFA standard definitions for audit report overall
opinions from 2023/24 onwards.

Laura Calder

Head of Internal Audit, City of Edinburgh Council
Legal and Assurance, Corporate Services Directorate

E-mail: laura.calder@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 469 3077

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 49


mailto:laura.calder@edinburgh.gov.uk

Lothian Pension Fund — Proposed Internal Audit plan for 2023/24

2. Executive Summary

2.1  The purpose of this paper is to present the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF) proposed
Internal Audit (l1A) plan for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 to the
Committee for review and approval.

2.2 The audit universe has been expanded for 2023/24 to include the LPF group
structure and provide assurance for the LPFl and LPFE boards where appropriate.

2.3 The plan will also include ongoing IA follow up on implementation of management
actions arising from previous internal audit reports.

2.4 In April 2020, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
recommended introduction of standard definitions for audit report opinions to
support consistency across public body organisations. It is proposed that the
standard CIPFA definitions are adopted and will apply for LPF IA reports from
2023/24 onwards.

3. Background

3.1  The LPFIA planis driven by requirements of section 2010 of the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which requires IA to establish risk-based plans to
determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the
organisation’s goals.

3.2 In doing so, IA has reviewed LPF’s organisational objectives and priorities, and
completed an assessment of the risks that could prevent LPF from meeting those
objectives and providing pension services to employers and members.

3.3  The PSIAS specifies that the risk-based plan must consider the requirement to
produce an annual IA opinion. Consequently, IA work performed must be
appropriately scoped to cover LPF’s most significant risks, with an appropriate depth
of testing performed to provide sufficient assurance on the control environment,
governance, and risk management frameworks to support provision of the opinion.

34 PSIAS also specifies that internal audit activity must evaluate the effectiveness of risk
management processes and contribute to their improvement.

3.5 The plan has been developed with the LPF senior leadership team, the Convenor of
the Pensions Audit Sub Committee, and the Fund’s Independent Professional
Observer to ensure that IA assurance activity is focused on the most relevant risks
for LPF.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2
LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND Page 50


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Following discussion with management, the Pensions Committee, and both the LPFI
and LPFE Boards, the audit universe has been expanded for 2023/24 to include the
LPF group structure and to provide a single integrated audit programme and provide
assurance for the LPFE and LPFI Boards where appropriate.

Noting the earlier discussion about the Pension Committee being empowered to
make their own audit arrangements, in discussion with LPF it has been agreed that
the 2023/24 audit programme will be led by CEC IA working in conjunction with
PWC. LPF intend to explore alternative arrangements during 2023 for further
consideration prior to the 2024/25 year.

It should also be noted that Internal Audit is not the sole source of assurance
provision for LPF, as several additional external third line assurance providers are
engaged (in addition to the annual external audit review of LPF’s financial
statements) to provide additional assurance coverage.

Internal Audit Charter

PSIAS also specify that the purpose, authority, and responsibility of IA must be
formally defined in an Internal Audit Charter (the Charter) that is periodically
reviewed and presented to senior management and the board for approval. The
Council’s IA charter, approved by the Council’s Governance, Risk and Best Value
Committee in March 2023 fulfils this requirement for LPF.

CIPFA standard IA engagement opinion definitions

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) sets the standards
for internal audit, governance, and financial accounting across the public sector.

The current IA engagement opinion definitions for LPF (see Appendix 3) were
introduced in April 2019. In April 2020, CIPFA completed a review of |A Engagement
Opinions — Setting Common Definitions in recognition that there was no common
practice across the public sector in how best to report the overall results of internal

audit work at the end of each engagement.

Main Report

4.1

4.2

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Scope of Internal Audit Assurance

The scope of IA assurance provided to LPF in relation to regulatory compliance is
specifically limited to confirming LPF’s ongoing compliance with Local Government
Pension Scheme (Scotland) requirements.

The audit universe has been expanded across the LPF group for 2023/24 with the
inclusion of the operation of the Fund’s two wholly owned subsidiary companies
LPFE and LPFI Ltd that are responsible for providing employee resources to

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3

Page 51


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/setting-common-definitions
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/setting-common-definitions

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

administer the pension funds, and provision of Financial Conduct Authority regulated
services to both LPF and other Local Government Pension Scheme Funds.

Expansion of the audit programme should also enable an unlimited annual IA opinion
to be provided for 2023/24, with removal of the limited opinion expressly related to
excluding LPFE and LPFI from scope as in previous years.

Preparation and content of the proposed plan

The areas proposed for inclusion in the plan were identified by considering the key
risks included in the LPF risk register as at December 2022, and discussions with the
LPF management team, the Convenor of the Pensions Audit Sub Committee, and the
Fund’s Independent Professional Observer.

The LPF November 2022 risk register included a total of 39 risks, of which there were
nil high rated, 13 moderate rated and 26 low rated risks.

The 13 moderate risks were considered together with the outcome of previously
completed audits, other assurance sources and key regulatory requirements.

Project Forth

During 2023, LPF will continue with proposals to merge with Falkirk Pension Fund
(Project Forth). LPF have assessed the options, taken legal advice, and has initiated a
project with programme management support to pursue the merger.

As LPF is a subsidiary of City of Edinburgh Council the merger would require a sign off
from the Council, which will be considered during 2023.

A readiness review for Project Forth — Programme Assurance was completed as part
of the 2022/23 internal audit programme, with additional internal audit assurance to
be completed during 2023/24.

Proposed 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan
The proposed IA plan for 2023/24 includes the following five audits:

e Information Security Arrangements — This audit was originally included in the

2022/23 1A plan, however, due to unforeseen absence of key contacts,
fieldwork was delayed. This audit will be completed in quarter 1 2023/24 and
will consider the design of the suite of IT policies, standards, and procedures,
and provide assurance on information rights supplier and third-party systems
risks.

e Project Forth — In recognition of Project Forth, project and change is a top
scoring moderate risk, therefore a targeted assurance review on Project
Forth will be undertaken. The area of review will be agreed with
management and the Pensions Audit Sub Committee as the merger
progresses.

e Business Continuity and Incident Response — Cybersecurity is also a top
scoring moderate risk. LPF has undertaken other assurance including an

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 4

Page 52



4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

independent cyber security maturity assessment in December 2021 and
external phishing testing in October 2022. The Business Continuity and
Incident Response internal audit will consider general business continuity
controls as the organisation transitions to post pandemic operations.

e Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR) — Regulatory breach

remains a top scoring moderate risk in recognition of the increased
regulatory burden for FCA regulated services.

The SM&CR replaced the FCA's Approved Persons Regime and created two
new categories of controlled function - 'Senior Management Functions'
(SMFs) and 'Certified Functions'. The review will aim to provide assurance of
compliance with the key elements and prescribed responsibilities of the
SM&CR.

e People Processes — Staff resource and recruitment are top scoring moderate
risks. The audit will provide assurance that robust people processes have
been established including consideration of the employee lifecycle. It will
also consider the People and Communications team to ensure they carry out
their responsibilities effectively and comply with relevant legislative and
regulatory requirements to safeguard against the risk of financial and
reputational loss and the failure to meet LPF’s objectives.

A high level scope for each of the five reviews planned for 2023/24 is included at the
LPF Annual IA plan document at Appendix 1, together with details of the entity
where assurance will be provided and current LPF risks associated with these areas.
Details of audits completed across the last five years have also been included within
the plan document for information.

Reports detailing outcomes of each review will be presented to the Pensions Sub
Committee. All reviews completed for LPFI/LPFE will also be presented to the
relevant Board.

The proposed Internal audit reviews planned for the year 1 April to 31 March 2024
should provide assurance on 8 of the 13 moderate rated risks included in the LPF risk
register. Extending to include work performed in 2022/23 provides assurance a total
of 9 risks.

Consequently, it is important that the Committee confirms that appropriate
assurance coverage will be provided across LPFs remaining population of moderate
risks and (in particular) the risks associated with ‘business as usual’ operational
activities by the additional assurance providers engaged by the Fund.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 5

Page 53



4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Risk Management

PSIAS requires that an appropriate depth of testing is performed to provide sufficient
assurance on the control environment, governance, and risk management
frameworks to support provision of the annual IA opinion.

Whilst sufficient information is generally collated across multiple audits to provide
an understanding of the effectiveness of risk management processes to support the
annual opinion, IA typically also performs targeted risk management audits to assess
and provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
framework across the entire organisation.

As the last targeted risk management audit for LPF was completed in 2021/22, the
proposed 2023/24 reviews will consider whether risks associated with the areas
included in scope have been effectively identified, assessed, recorded, and managed.

Follow-up activity

Follow-up work will also be performed in line with a risk-based approach to confirm
whether agreed management actions implemented to support closure of findings
raised in previous LPF audits have been effectively implemented.

CIPFA standard IA engagement opinion definitions

The current IA engagement opinion definitions for LPF (see appendix 2) were
introduced in April 2019. CIPFA’s 2020 review of IA Engagement Opinions — Setting

Common Definitions recommended that Heads of Audit in public sector

organisations adopted the standard definitions (see Appendix 2) to assist the sharing,
comparability and understanding of assurance across public sector organisations.

CIPFA recommends that IA make the change at the start of the financial year so that
all engagement opinions for the year are reported on a consistent basis. Therefore, it
is proposed that LPF adopts the standard definitions for all audit engagements from
1 April 2023 onwards.

Financial impact

51

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

The estimated costs associated with delivery of the LPF 2023/24 A plan are circa
£107,000 which reflects:

e direct recharging of costs based on agreed rates as specified in the Council’s 1A
co-source contract (five audits at £21,000 each)

e costs associated with time for the Council’s |A function including preparation of
the annual plan, review and oversight of all IA reviews, preparation of Committee
reports, attendance at Committee meetings, as well as ongoing review and

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 6

Page 54


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/setting-common-definitions
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/setting-common-definitions

validation of previously raised audit actions. This will be charged on an actual
costs basis through IA timesheets.

Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1

The LPF management team, the Convenor of the Pensions Audit Sub Committee, and
the Fund’s Independent Professional Observer were consulted when developing the
2023/24 1A plan.

Background reading/external references

7.1

8.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Lothian Pension Fund 2023-24 Internal Audit Plan
Appendix 2 - Current IA engagement definitions and proposed CIPFA standard definitions

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 7

Page 55


https://www.iia.org.uk/media/110148/public_sector_internal_audit_standards.pdf

9gG abed

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Internal Audit
2023/24 Annual Plan

Appendix 1



Contents

(Tl rgeTo 18 oo @ J=TaTo BT o] o Y- Tl o [P PUREERRR 3
] QNS 2SS 0 0= o | PP PPPPPRPRT 4
2023/24 Draft INTEINAI AUGIT PLAN .....oeie oottt et e e e e e e s ettt et e et eeeeeeaaa e sateeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaannssseeeeeeeeeaeeeeasaansssseseeeeeeeeeeeeannnnnsssseennnaeeaeeennannnnnnnnnes 5
PaY o] oX=T gl [bam M o £ oAV 01U ]V o] g o] = (=0 = U0 (o 1) P EPRRRRRR 6

T

QD

«Q

@

(6]

\l

Lothian Pension Fund 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan




Introduction and approach

Introduction

In line with the Internal Audit Charter, Internal Audit (IA) provides independent
and objective assurance on the overall effectiveness of the Lothian Pension
Fund’s (LPF) governance, risk, and control frameworks.

This document sets out the scope of the IA 2023/24 annual plan with the
objective of delivering independent assurance on the key controls established
across the LPF group to mitigate high and moderate risks.

Approach

The approach to preparing the annual plan is set out at Figure 1. The plan is
driven by LPF’s objectives and priorities, and an assessment of the risks that
could prevent LPF from meeting its objectives.

The audit universe has been expanded for 2023/24 to include the LPF group
ructure and provide assurance for the LPFI and LPFE Boards where

<%ppropriate.

gohe LPF Business Plan 2022-23, sets out four broadly defined strategic goals:

e develop and deliver a member and employer proposition for service
excellence

e earn an appropriate risk adjustment investment return as responsible
officers

e extend collaboration and services to existing partners and deepen
where possible

e achieve greatness in our people, teams, and culture.
Project Forth

LPF is proposing to merge with Falkirk Pension Fund (Project Forth). LPF
have assessed the options, taken legal advice, and has initiated a project to
pursue the merger. As LPF is a subsidiary of City of Edinburgh Council the
merger would require a sign off from the Council, which will be considered
during 2023.

Figure 1: Approach to developing the draft 2023/24 1A Annual Plan

Step 1

Review the LPF business plan to understand

Understand LPF's corporate strategic objectives and priorities.

objectives

Step 2 Review the LPF’s risk profile, risk appetite and
Review LPF'’s risk profile consider any other external and internal risks
that could impact LPF.

Step 3

Consider the audit universe Identify all auditable areas across LPF.

Step 4 Consider other sources of assurance across the
Consider other sources of audit universe and the extent to which reliance
assurance provided may be provided on such work.

Steps Consult with key stakeholders to ensure areas
Consult with key stakeholders which may be of risk to operations are considered
for inclusion within the 1A work programme.

Based on the outcomes of steps 3, 4 and 5,
determine the timing and scope of audit work
required.

Step 6
Determine the audit plan

Step 7 Consider any requirements in addition to those
identified from the risk assessment process.

Other considerations

Lothian Pension Fund 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan



Risk Assessment

To ensure a risk-based approach to the LPF Group IA annual plan which is

Figure 3: LPF Group - Moderate risks as at December 2022

assurance but would not seek to duplicate the work they do.

proportionate and aligned to business-critical risks and emerging issues, Risk EO. 22/23 audits and Proposed 23/24 audit coverage
consideration was given to the LPF group’s priorities as detailed in the Other sources of assurance
Business Plan 2022-23, and the LPF group risk profile as reported to the 23/24 Business continuity and incident response
Pensions Committee in December 2022. The risk profile is supported by a risk Cybersecurity 32 | Independent cyber security maturity assessment
assessment for each of the 39 risks LPF group risks, a summary of which is completed in Dec 2021
below at Figure 2). _ 22/23 Project Forth Programme Assurance
Project and Change 32 ] ) )
23/24 Project Forth — audit area to be decided
Figure 2: LPF group risk profile as at December 2022
el e High Moderate Ly Governance 30 (2§|</2|éF§)enlor Managers and Certification Regime
39 13 26 Regulatory Breach 30 | BDO Compliance Assurance Monitoring Programme (LPFI)
. . . . 22/23 audits of Information Governance
The highest scoring moderate risks (those with a score between 25-32) were Information Rights 30 ) )
. . . . 23/24 - Information Security Arrangements
considered (see Figure 3) together with the outcome of previously completed
audits, other assurance sources (see Appendix 1) and key regulator ; No audit work proposed for 2023/24 as review and refresh
U . ( ) yreg y Delegations 30 of the scheme of delegations is currently underway.
Q requirements.
% . . . . Procurement 30 22/23 audit of Third-Party Contract Management
Key stakeholders including senior management, committee members, external
o i i . i i Staff Resource 30
oguqn (Azets) a_nd _profe§5|onal co-source audit providers (PwC) have been 23/24 People Processes
invited to provide input into the 1A annual plan to help ensure that the relevant Recruitment 28
areas are targeted for review. Employer o8 No audit work proposed for 2023/24 — will be considered
Contributions for future audit plans
Other sources of assurance
. Investment a5 No audit work proposed for 2023/24
Internal Audlt is only one ofa number of sources of assurance over the LPF performance Mercer Systems and Controls Review (LPFI)
groups risks. In developing our risk assessment and plan we have taken into
account other sources of assurance and have considered the extent to which Adverse Movement - No audit work proposed for 2023/24 — will be considered
) . pressure on employer 25 for f dit ol
reliance can be placed upon these other sources (for example, external audit, contributions or future audit plans
BDO, Mercer and LPF’s Risk and Compliance function). : :
Supplier and third- 25 22/23 audit of Third-Party Contract Management
IA does not intend to place formal reliance upon these other sources of party systems 23/24 Information Security Arrangements

Lothian Pension Fund 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan



2023/24 Draft Internal Audit Plan

The following table sets out the draft LPF internal audit work programme for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024. 4.2.11 Reports detailing outcomes of each
review will be presented to the Pensions Sub-Committee. All reviews completed for LPFI/LPFE will also be presented to the relevant Board.

While the audit plan includes a short summary of the area proposed for review, 1A will meet with key officers prior to commencing each audit to further
understand the key risks and to develop and refine the scope of each review. It should be noted, that if areas are identified during testing that are outwith scope
but impact the risk and control framework, findings and recommendations will still be raised and reported on, where appropriate.

Audit Assurance entity Risks

Information Security Arrangements

The audit will review the design of the suite of IT policies, standards and procedures that have been developed
during 2022 to prevent, respond and manage information security across LPF, as well as ensuring they are
aligned to the IT strategy due to be formalised during 2023.

Information Rights

All Supplier and Third-
Party Systems

Project Forth
Project Forth — audit to be decided. Suggested areas include project delivery or associated elements such as All Project and Change
resulting Transfer of Undertakings - Protection of Employment (TUPE) or asset transfer.

Business continuity and incident response

Review of the adequacy and operating effectiveness of key controls and processes established to provide
assurance that LPF maintains business continuity plans to ensure they maintain services during an emergency All Cyber Security
or extended incident. Will include consideration of roles and responsibilities, policies and procedures, Business
Continuity Plans, testing, lessons learned and monitoring and reporting arrangements.

09 abed

Senior Managers and Certification Regime (SM&CR) LPE

Review of the adequacy and operating effectiveness of governance processes established to provide assurance LPEI Regulatory breach
of compliance with the key elements and prescribed responsibilities of the SM&CR.

People Processes

Review of the adequacy and operating effectiveness of established people processes to ensure robust controls LPE Staff
are in place, complied with and support achievement of LPF objectives. Will include consideration of the
employee lifecycle, and responsibilities of the People and Communications team which includes brand, people
practices, strategic communications, and colleague, member, and employer engagement.

LPFE resource/recruitment

e Lothian Pension Fund 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan



Appendix 1 - Previously completed audits

The table below provides details of audit work completed over the last five years across LPF’s auditable areas.

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
e Stock Lending e Settlement and Custodian e Cessations ¢ Risk Management e Project Forth —
e Unitisation (Employer Asset Services e Bulk Transfers e Capital Calls Programme Assurance
Tracking) e Pensions Entitlement e Technology Model ¢ Information Governance
e Unlisted Investment Valuations Calculations Development e Third-Party Supplier
and Application of Fund e Charles River Project — pre- Management
Administration Fees and implementation system testing
Charges

T9 abed

e Lothian Pension Fund 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan



Appendix 2. Current IA engagement definitions
and proposed CIPFA standard definitions

Current Assurance Ratings

The control environment and governance and risk management frameworks have
been adequately designed and are operating effectively, providing assurance that
risks are being effectively managed, and the Council’s objectives should be
achieved.

Whilst some control weaknesses were identified, in the design and / or
effectiveness of the control environment and / or governance and risk management
frameworks, they provide reasonable assurance that risks are being managed, and
the Council’s objectives should be achieved.

Some
improvement
required

Significant and / or numerous control weaknesses were identified, in the design
and / or effectiveness of the control environment and / or governance and risk
management frameworks. Consequently, only limited assurance can be provided
that risks are being managed and that the Council’s objectives should be achieved.

The design and / or operating effectiveness of the control environment and / or
governance and risk management frameworks is inadequate, with a number of
Inadequate significant and systemic control weaknesses identified, resulting in substantial risk
of operational failure and the strong likelihood that the Council’s objectives will not
be achieved.

Proposed Assurance Ratings

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal
controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in
place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified
which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Reasonable
Assurance

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is
required to the system of governance, risk management and control to effectively
manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-
compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area
audited.

No Assurance

Page 62



Agenda Iltem 6.5

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 by Azets

Item number 6.5

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Committee (Committee) is requested to:

11 note the planned programme of work to support the statutory audit 2022/23. This is
shown at Appendix 1 - “Lothian Pension Fund External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23"
by Azets;

1.2 note that progress against the Lothian Pension Fund External Audit Annual Plan
2022-23 will be reported to future meetings of the Pensions Audit Sub-Committee
and the Committee.

John Burns
Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

Contact: John Burns, Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

E-mail: Ipfgovernancecomms@Ipf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND Page 03



External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 by Azets

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

Azets, the external auditor to Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension
Fund, has detailed its planned programme of work to support the statutory audit
2022/23. This is shown in full at Appendix 1.

Azets representative(s) will present the External Annual Audit Plan 2022/23 to
Committee.

Background

31

Azets has been appointed by Audit Scotland as the external auditor to Lothian
Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund (“the Funds”) for the period 2022/23
to 2026/27.

Main Report

4.1

4.2

Azets, the external auditor to Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension
Fund, has detailed its planned programme of work to support the statutory audit
2022/23. This is provided in full at Appendix 1.

Progress against the plan will be reported to future meetings of the Pensions Audit
Sub-Committee and thereafter the Committee.

Financial impact

51
5.2

The proposed audit fee for 2022/23 is £51,590.

The audit fee is addressed in detail by Azets in Appendix 1, pages 30 to 31.

Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the funds and it is invited to comment on the relevant matters at
Committee meetings.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2

Page 64



6.2 There are no adverse health and safety, governance, compliance or regulatory
implications arising from this report. External audit is a critical part of the LPF
Group’s governance and assurance.

7. Background reading/external references

7.1 The responsibilities of Azets, as independent auditor, are established by the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice, as approved by the
Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts Commission.

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 — “Lothian Pension Fund External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23” by Azets.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3
LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND Page 65



/) AZETS

Lothian Pension Fund
External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Introduction

Audit scope and general approach

Significant and other risks of material misstatement
Wider scope

Your Azets audit management team

Audit timetable — to update

Audit fee

Audit independence and objectivity

Appendix 1: Responsibilities of the Auditor and the Funds

Appendix 2: Potential impact on the Funds and our audit approach
following revisions to auditing standards

Appendix 3: Materiality
Appendix 4: National risk areas under scope of audit in 2022/23

Appendix 5: Best Value 2022/23 Thematic Review

Page 67

13

19

27

28

30

32

33

40

43

45

47




Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

=, / AZETS

Azets have been appointed by Audit Scotland as the external auditor to Lothian
Pension Fund and Scottish Homes Pension Fund (“the Funds”) for the period
2022/23 to 2026/27.

This document summarises the work plan for our 2022/23 external audit of the
Funds.

The core elements of our work include:
audits of the 2022/23 annual report accounts;
consideration of the wider scope areas of public audit work;
consideration of the Funds’ arrangements to secure Best Value;

assessment of the Funds’ participation in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI);
and

any other work requested by Audit Scotland.

All of our clients quite rightly demand of us a positive contribution to meeting their
ever-changing business needs. We will add value by being constructive and forward
looking, by identifying areas of improvement and by recommending and encouraging
good practice. In this way we aim to promote improved standards of governance,
better management and decision making and more effective use of public money.

Any comments you may have on the service we provide would be greatly
appreciated. Comments can be reported directly to any member of your audit team.

This report will be published on Audit Scotland’s website

Page 68


http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/

Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 N B Z E T s

Audit scope and general
approach

Responsibilities of the auditor and the Funds

The Code of Audit Practice outlines the responsibilities of external auditors
appointed by the Accounts Commission and it is a condition of our appointment that
we follow it.

Auditor responsibilities are derived from statute, International Standards on Auditing
(UK) and the Ethical Standard for auditors, other professional requirements and best
practice, the Code of Audit Practice and guidance from Audit Scotland.

The Funds have primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial stewardship
of public funds. This includes preparing annual accounts that are in accordance with
proper accounting practices. The Funds are also responsible for compliance with
legislation and putting arrangements in place for governance and propriety that
enable it to successfully deliver its objectives.

Appendix 1 provides further detail of both our responsibilities and those of the Funds.

Risk-based audit approach

We follow a risk-based approach to the audit that reflects our overall assessment of
the relevant risks that apply to the Funds. This ensures that our audit focuses on the
areas of highest risk. Our audit planning is based on:

Page 69


https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/as_code_audit_practice_21.pdf

Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 N a Z E T S

Discussions with Our understanding of the
senior officers at sector, its key priorities PeArgtseigﬂgnC(::oerr?}ntirt]t%e
Lothian Pension Fund and risks

Discussions with
internal audit and
reviews of their plans

Discussions with Audit

Guidance from Audit 3éotland and other

Scotland

auditors and reports
Review of the Funds’ : , -
: Review of the Funds The outcome of prior
corporate strategies corporate risk register years’ audits

and plans

Planning is a continuous process and our audit plans are updated during the course
of our audit to take account of developments as they arise.

Communication with those charged with governance

Auditing standards require us to make certain communications throughout the audit
to those charged with governance. These communications will be through the
Pension Committee.

Professional standards and guidance

We perform our audit of the financial statements in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing UK (ISAs (UK)), Ethical Standards, and applicable Practice
Notes and other guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Funds (FRC).

Partnership working

We coordinate our work with Audit Scotland, internal audit, other external auditors
and relevant scrutiny bodies, recognising the increasing integration of service
delivery and partnership working within the public sector.

Our new Audit Scotland appointments include Fife Pension Fund and where
practicable and appropriate we will share knowledge to generate efficiencies in the
delivery of our audits.

Audit Scotland

Although we are independent of Audit Scotland and are responsible for forming our
own views and opinions, we do work closely with Audit Scotland throughout the
audit. This helps identify common priorities and risks, treat issues consistently
across the sector, and improve audit quality and efficiency. We share information

Page 70



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

about identified risks, good practices and barriers to improvement so that lessons to
be learnt and knowledge of what works can be disseminated to all relevant bodies.

Audit Scotland undertakes national performance audits on issues affecting the public
sector. We may review the Funds’ arrangements for taking action on any issues
reported in the national performance reports which may have a local impact. We
also consider the extent to which the Funds uses the national performance reports
as a means to help improve performance at the local level.

During the year we may also be required to provide information to Audit Scotland to
support the national performance audits.

As part of our audit, we consider the scope and nature of internal audit work and look
to minimise duplication of effort, to ensure the total audit resource to the Funds are
used as efficiently and effectively as possible.

We intend to adopt a hybrid approach to our audit which combines on-site visits with
remote working; learning from the better practices developed during the pandemic.

All of our people have the equipment, technology and systems to allow them to work
remotely or on-site, including secure access to all necessary data and information.

All of our staff are fully contactable by email, phone call and video-conferencing.
Meetings can be held over Skype, Microsoft Teams or by telephone.

We employ greater use of technology to examine evidence, but only where we have
assessed both the sufficiency and appropriateness of the audit evidence produced.

We use a cloud-based file sharing service that enables users to easily and securely
exchange documents and provides a single repository for audit evidence.

During the ‘fieldwork’ phases of our audit, we will arrange regular catch-ups with key
personnel to discuss the progress of the audit. The frequency of these meetings will
be discussed and agreed with management.

Audit Scotland recommends the electronic signing of annual accounts and uses a
system called DocuSign.

Page 71



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Electronic signatures simplify the process of signing the accounts. Accounts can be
signed using any device from any location and there is no longer a need for duplicate
copies to be signed.

Our objective when performing an audit of the annual accounts is to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
auditor’s opinion.

As part of our general approach, we will:

perform risk assessment procedures including updating our understanding of the
entity and its environment, the financial reporting framework and system of
internal control;

review the design and implementation of key internal controls;

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, at the financial statement level and the assertion level for classes of
transaction, account balances or disclosures;

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, to obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion; and

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit recognising that circumstances may exist that cause the financial
statements to be materially misstated.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
We include an explanation in the auditor’s report of the extent to which the audit was
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and respective responsibilities for
prevention and detection of fraud.

Page 72



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Revised auditing standards?, which come into effect from the current year, will have
a significant impact on the way we perform our audit, particularly how we assess the
risk of material misstatement, our approach to the audit of fraud, and the ways we
ensure our audits are performed in line with regulatory requirements and to a high
standard. The in-depth nature of these additional procedures, as well as updated
tools and techniques that may come into scope, will also offer additional opportunity
to provide insights and constructive feedback on the way the Funds manage risks.
provides further details on the implications of these new requirements.

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing the audit, and in
evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected
misstatements. In general, misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

Judgments about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances and
are affected by our perception of the financial information needs of users of the
financial statements, and by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination
of both.

The basis for our assessment of materiality is set out in

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. As part
of our work, we consider certain internal controls relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements such that we are able to design appropriate audit procedures.
However, this work is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal controls.

We will report to the Funds, significant deficiencies in internal controls that we
identify during the audit. These matters will be limited to those which we conclude
are of sufficient importance to merit being reported. The scope of our work is not
designed to be an extensive review of all internal controls.

! Revisions to ISA (UK) 315 on auditors’ responsibility to identify and assess the
risks of material misstatement in the financial statements and ISA (UK) 240 on
material misstatements caused by fraud came into effect for audits of financial
statements with periods commencing on or after 15 December 2021.

Page 73



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

The concept of going concern applies in the public sector but in a different way to the
private sector. In many public sector entities (but not all), the use of going concern
basis of accounting is not a significant matter because the applicable financial
reporting framework envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply
where the entity's services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such
cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist.

For many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the entity is more likely
to be of significant public interest that the application of the going concern basis.
Our wider scope audit work considers the financial sustainability of the Funds.

As Group auditor under ISA (UK) 600 we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the components and the
consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group financial
statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

Lothian Pension Fund has disclosed the following Group entities in their 2021/22
financial statements:

Component Significant Level of response required
LPFE Ltd No Analytical
LFPI Ltd No Analytical

Analytical - the component is not significant to the Group and audit risks can be
addressed sufficiently by applying analytical procedures at the Group level.

We will review the appropriateness of the Group entities during our audit. At this
stage of our audit cycle we have not identified any risks in each component.

In order to discharge our responsibilities regarding fraud and irregularity we require
any fraud or irregularity issues to be reported to us as they arise. In particular we
require to be notified of all frauds which:

Involve the misappropriation of theft of assets or cash which are facilitated by
weaknesses in internal control

Are over £5,000.

Page 74



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

We also require a historic record of instances of fraud or irregularity to be maintained
and a summary to be made available to us after each year end.

The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) in Scotland is a biennial counter fraud exercise
led by Audit Scotland working together with a range of Scottish public bodies,
external auditors and overseen by the Cabinet Office for the UK as a whole to
identify fraud and error. The most recent NFI exercise commenced in 2022, with
matches to be received for investigation from January 2023. As part of our 2022/23
audit, we will monitor the Lothian Pension Fund’s participation and progress in the
NFI.

We require the Funds to notify us on a timely basis of any suspected instances of
money laundering so that we can inform Audit Scotland who will determine the
necessary course of action.

People or organisations write to Audit Scotland because they have concerns about
an issue within a public body that falls under the remit of the Auditor General or the
Accounts Commission. An issue of concern may be something such as a breakdown
in financial management or governance arrangements.

The key factor in determining whether Audit Scotland examines an issue is the
relevance of the issue to Audit Scotland’s role and functions. Audit Scotland and
appointed auditors will make this judgement using their professional and technical
knowledge.

The special accountabilities that attach to the conduct of public business, and the
use of public money, mean that public sector audits must be planned and
undertaken from a wider perspective than in the private sector. This means
providing assurance, not only on the financial statements, but providing audit
judgements and conclusions on the appropriateness, effectiveness and impact of
corporate governance and performance management arrangements and financial

sustainability. provides detail of the wider scope areas of public sector
audit work. Our initial risk assessment and scope of work planned for 2022/23 is
outlined in the section of this plan.

10

Page 75



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Where patrticular areas of national or sectoral risk have been identified by the
Accounts Commission and Auditor General, they will request auditors to consider
and report on those risks as they apply at a local level. For 2022/23 the following
areas have been identified:

Climate Change
Cyber Security

provides further detail as to the scope of this work.

Appointed auditors have a duty to be satisfied that local government bodies have
made proper arrangements to secure best value.

Under the new Code of Audit Practice, the audit of Best Value in Lothian Pension
Fund is fully integrated within the annual audit work performed by appointed
auditors. We are required to evaluate and report on the performance of the Lothian
Pension Fund in meeting their Best Value duties.

We will provide judgements on the pace and depth of improvement in reporting our
findings on both Best Value and wider scope areas. We will use the following
grading to provide an overall assessment of the arrangements in place as part of our
Annual Audit Report.

Page 76

11



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

There is a fundamental absence or failure of arrangements in place
There is no evidence to support improvement

Substantial unmitigated risks affect achievement of corporate
objectives

Arrangements are inadequate or ineffective
Pace and depth of improvement is slow

Significant unmitigated risks affect achievement of
corporate objectives

No major weaknesses in arrangements but scope for
Improvement exists

Pace and depth of improvement are adequate
Risks exist to achievement of operational objectives

/

Effective and appropriate arrangements are in place
Pace and depth of improvement are effective
Risks to achievement of objectives are managed

Page 77

12



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

=, / AZETS

Significant risks are risks that require special audit consideration and include
identified risks of material misstatement that:

our risk assessment procedures have identified as being close to the upper
range of the spectrum of inherent risk due to their nature and a combination of
the likelihood and potential magnitude of misstatement; or

are required to be treated as significant risks due to requirements of ISAs (UK),
for example in relation to management override of internal controls.

The table below summarises the significant risks of material misstatement identified
at the financial statement level. These risks are considered to have a pervasive
impact on the financial statements as a whole and potentially affect many assertions
for classes of transaction, account balances and disclosures.

Identified risk of material Audit approach
misstatement

Procedures performed to mitigate risks
of material misstatement in this area
will include:

Management override of controls

Management is in a unique position to

perpetrate fraud because of their ability
to manipulate accounting records and
prepare fraudulent financial statements
by overriding controls that otherwise
appear to be operating effectively.

Although the level of risk of management
override of controls will vary from entity
to entity, the risk is nevertheless present
in all entities. Due to the unpredictable
way in which such override could occur,
it is a risk of material misstatement due
to fraud and thus a significant risk.

Risk of material misstatement: Very
High

Page 78

Documenting our understanding
of the journals posting process
and evaluating the design
effectiveness of management
controls over journals.

Analysing the journals listing and
determining criteria for selecting
high risk and / or unusual
journals.

Testing high risk and / or unusual
journals posted during the year
and after the unaudited annual
accounts stage back to supporting

13



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Identified risk of material Audit approach
misstatement

documentation for
appropriateness, corroboration
and to ensure approval has been
undertaken in line with the Funds’
journals policy.

Gaining an understanding of the
accounting estimates and critical
judgements made by
management. We will challenge
assumptions and consider the
reasonableness and indicators of
bias which could result in material
misstatement due to fraud.

Evaluating the rationale for any
changes in accounting policies
estimate or significant unusual

transactions.

Page 79



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

The table below summarises the significant risks of material misstatement at the
assertion level for classes of transaction, account balances and disclosures.

Identified risk of material misstatement Audit approach

Fraud in revenue recognition Procedures performed to mitigate risks
Material misstatement due to fraudulent \c,)\;‘”mséijgémlsstatement in this area
financial reporting relating to revenue '

recognition is a presumed risk in ISA 240 Evaluation the significant income
(The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to streams and review the controls
Fraud in an Audit of Financial in place over accounting for
Statements). revenue.

The presumption is that the Funds could Consideration of the Funds’ key
adopt accounting policies or recognise areas of income and obtaining
income in such a way as to lead to a evidence that income is recorded
material misstatement in the reported in line with appropriate

financial position. accounting policies and the

policies have been applied

Given the financial pressures facing the )
consistently across the year.

public sector as a whole, there is an
inherent fraud risk associated with the
recording of income around the year end.

In respect of the contributions received
from the Funds’ funding partners, we do
not consider the risk of revenue
recognition to be significant due to a lack
of incentive and opportunity to manipulate
transactions of this nature.

However, the risk of fraud in relation to
revenue recognition is present in all other
revenue streams.

Inherent risk of material misstatement:

Revenue (occurrence /
completeness): High

Page 80

15



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Identified risk of material misstatement Audit approach

Fraud in non-pay expenditure Procedures performed to mitigate risks

) ) of material misstatement in this area
As most public sector bodies are net

expenditure bodies, the risk of fraud is will include:

more likely to occur in expenditure. Evaluating the significant non-
There is a risk that expenditure may be pay expenditure streams and
misstated resulting in a material reviewing the controls in place
misstatement in the financial statements. over accounting for expenditure.
Given the financial pressures facing the Consideration of the Funds’ key
public sector as a whole, there is an areas of expenditure and
inherent fraud risk associated with the obtaining evidence that
recording of expenditure around the year expenditure is recorded in line
end. with appropriate accounting

policies and the policies have
been applied consistently across
Non-pay expenditure (occurrence the year.

/ completeness): High

Inherent risk of material misstatement:

Review of accruals around the
Accruals (existence / year end to consider if there is
completeness): High any indication of understatement
of balances held through
consideration of accounting

estimates.
Investments valuations (key Procedures performed to mitigate risks
accounting estimate) of material misstatement in this area

, will include:

The Funds held investments of £9.528
billion as at 31 March 2022, of which 33% Evaluating management
(£3.175billion) were classified as level 2 processes and assumptions for
or level 3 financial instruments, meaning the calculation of the estimates,
the valuation was not based on the instructions issued to the
unadjusted quoted prices in active fund managers and the scope of
markets. their work.
Judgements are taken by the Investment Evaluating the competence,
Managers to value those investments capabilities and objectivity of the
whose prices are not publicly available. fund managers.

Investments of this nature are complex,
difficult to value and include a significant
degree of judgement from the investment
manager. The material nature of this

Considering the basis on which
the valuation is carried out and

Page 81



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

=, / AZETS

Identified risk of material misstatement Audit approach

balance means that any error in
judgement could result in a material
valuation error.

the challenge in the key
assumptions applied.

Testing the information used by
the fund managers to ensure it is
complete and consistent with our
understanding.

Inherent risk of material misstatement:

Investments (valuation / existence):
High
Ensuring that the year end
valuations have been reflected
correctly in the ledger and that
accounting treatment within the
financial statements is correct.

Investment property valuations (key

) , Procedures performed to mitigate risks
accounting estimate)

of material misstatement in this area
will include:

LPF hold a portfolio of investment
properties which as at the 31 March 2022
was valued at £431 million. The
management of the properties is
undertaken by JLL, along with the Fund
accounting for the portfolio. Investment
properties are valued annually at fair
value, in line with the Code.

There is a significant degree of
subjectivity in the measurement and
valuation of investment properties. This
subjectivity and the material nature of the
Funds’ investment property portfolio
represents an increased risk of
misstatement in the annual accounts.

Inherent risk of material misstatement:

Investment property (valuation /
existence): High

Page 82

Ensuring that investment
properties are recorded in the
annual accounts in accordance
with the Code and the Funds’
accounting policies, and have
been accounted for
appropriately. We will review
investment property valuations.

Considering the competence,
capability and objectiveness of
the valuer in line with ISA (UK)
500 Audit Evidence. We will
review the valuation report and
consider the assumptions used
by the valuer against external
sources of evidence.

Considering the scope of the
valuer’s work and the information
provided to the valuer for
completeness.

17



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

=, / AZETS

Identified risk of material misstatement Audit approach

Present Value of Retirement
Obligations (key accounting estimate)

Procedures performed to mitigate risks
of material misstatement in this area
will include:

An actuarial estimate of the pension fund
asset/liability is calculated on an annual
basis under IAS 26 and on a triennial
funding basis by an independent firm of
actuaries with specialist knowledge and
experience. The estimates are based on
the most up to date membership data
held by the Funds and have regard to
local factors such as mortality rates and
expected pay rises with other
assumptions around inflation when
calculating the liabilities. There is a risk
that the assumptions used are not
appropriate.

Inherent risk of material misstatement:

Retirement obligations (valuation):
High

Page 83

Reviewing the controls in place
to ensure that the data provided
to the actuary is complete and
accurate.

Considering the reasonableness
of the assumptions used in the
calculation against other local
government pension fund
actuaries and other observable
data.

Agreeing the disclosures in the
financial statements to
information provided by the
actuary.

18



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

As described previously, the Code of Audit Practice frames a significant part of our
wider scope responsibilities in terms of audit areas:

Financial sustainability
Financial management
Governance and transparency
Value for money

Our planned audit work against these four areas is risk based and proportionate.
Our initial assessment builds upon our understanding of the Funds’ key priorities and
risks along with discussions with management and review of board minutes and key
strategy documents.

We have identified one significant risk in relation to financial sustainability as set out
in the table below. At this stage, we have not identified any significant risks in
relation to the other wider scope areas.

In addition, we have considered emerging risks around Project Forth, a strategic
project still awaiting administering authority deliberation and potential approval.
However, due to confidentiality considerations of the Fund, no risk has been included
in our plan at this stage. We expect that we will be able to further comment on the
project in our Annual Audit Report.

Audit planning however is a continuous process and we will report all identified
significant risks, as they relate to the four wider scope areas, in our annual audit
report. This section summarises our audit work in respect of each wider scope area.

19

Page 84



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Financial sustainability

The Funds held investments of £9.528billion as at 31 March 2022. Investment
strategies are in place for each of the funds which outline the Funds approach to
ensure that all members and their dependents receive their benefits when they
become payable. The investment strategy was updated and approved by the
Pensions Committee in June 2021.

The primary objective of the Funds is to ensure that there are sufficient funds
available to meet all pension and lump sum liabilities as they fall due for payment.
The funding objectives for each Fund are documented in the Committee’s Funding
Strategy Statement, which is reviewed at least triennially. The funding objectives,
together with the rates of return being targeted and levels of risk to be tolerated,
are central to each Fund’s investment strategy and govern the allocation across
various asset classes.

The investment objectives of the Funds are to achieve a return on Fund assets
which is sufficient over the long term to meet the funding objectives as outlined in
the Funding Strategy Statement. Investment returns are generated by a
combination of income (from dividends, interest and rents) and gains or losses on
capital.

While it is noted that the Funds investment strategy is designed in such a way to
withstand market volatility in the long term, we have noted that COVID-19, inflation
levels and other worldwide political events had a significant impact on the market
in the recent years. While the last two years saw a return to improved
performance, a significant risk remains particularly in relation to impact of the
increased inflation, expected government monetary policies and uncertainties in
relation to geopolitical situation. There is a risk that the value of investments is
significantly impacted by events within the wider environment.

Our audit response:

We will monitor the Funds approach to monitoring investment performance
focusing on the identification of investment risk and the development of mitigating
actions.

We will review the Funds investment return performance against benchmark over
the short, medium and long term. We will also consider performance against
comparators from other Scottish Local Government Pension Funds.

20

Page 85



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Financial sustainability

=, / AZETS

Financial sustainability looks forward to the medium and longer term to
consider whether the body is planning effectively to continue to deliver its
services or the way in which they should be delivered.

Consideration

In 2021/22 we concluded that the Funds have
effective arrangements in place to ensure the
ongoing sustainability.

The focus of the Funds’ investment strategy is to
ensure a sufficient return over the long term to
meet the funding objectives outlined by the
Funding Strategy Statement.

The key financial indicator across pension funds
in Scotland is the return on investments. LPF
has delivered strong absolute performance in
2021/22 of 10.8% annual return on investments,
which is higher than the benchmark returns of
8.8% while maintaining lower risk. The five-year
and ten-year annualised investment returns
remain below benchmark, due to significant
below benchmark returns on equities in 2020/21
resulting from the defensive positioning.

The performance of investments is monitored by
the Pension Committee, who considers the
investments control environment and
performance over the annual committee cycle in
line with a formal long term agenda plan.

The Triennial Valuation was carried out as at 31
March 2020 and estimated both Funds were
fully funded at 106% for LPF and 118% for
Scottish Homes Pension Fund. This represents

Page 86

Our audit approach

During our 2022/2023 audit we
will develop our assessment of
the Funds’ financial standing.
We will review and conclude
on:

The arrangements in
place for medium to long
term financial planning,
budgetary control and
financial reporting;

The continued applicability
of the 2020 actuarial
valuation and the
conclusions on funding
levels across the Funds;
and

Affordability for employers
including the number of
employer cessations and
current membership levels
of the Funds.

21



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Consideration

an improvement on the previous triennial
valuation where the funding levels were 98%
and 105% respectively.

Financial management

=, / AZETS

Our audit approach

Financial management is concerned with financial capacity, sound
budgetary processes and whether the control environment and internal

controls are operating effectively.

Consideration

In 2021/22 we concluded that the Funds have
effective arrangements in place for financial
management and the use of resources.

In 2021/22 the Funds reported a net increase in
the funds held due to increases in market value
of the investments. Lothian Pension Fund
reported a net withdrawal position in dealings
with members of £5.771 million. Scottish Homes
reported a net withdrawal position of £6.836
million.

The Funds estimate the negative cashflows will
be the case for the foreseeable future, but with
the current levels of investment income there is
no requirement for the assets selling to fund the
ongoing pensioners payments.

The Funds produce an annual service plan and
budget which focuses on the costs associated
with dealings with members and covers a two
year period of activity. Annual operating plan
updates are provided to each Pension
Committee meeting clearly explaining changes
in group performance.

Page 87

Our audit approach

During our 2022/23 audit we
will review, conclude and report
on the following:

Whether the Funds
continue to have
arrangements in place to
ensure systems of internal
control are operating
effectively;

How the Funds have
assured themselves that
its financial capacity and
skills are appropriate;

The effectiveness of the
financial and budgetary
control system in
communicating accurate
and timely performance,;
and

Whether the Fund has
established appropriate
and effective

22



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Consideration

As reported to the December 2022 Pension
Committee meeting the Funds estimate a small
underspend of £0.736million on the projected
outturn.

Page 88

=\ 7/ AZETS

Our audit approach

arrangements for the
prevention and detection
of fraud and corruption.

23



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Vision, Leadership and Governance

=, / AZETS

Vision, Leadership and Governance is concerned with the effectiveness of
scrutiny and governance arrangements, leadership and decision making, and
transparent reporting of financial and performance information.

Consideration

The primary objective of the Funds is to ensure
that there are sufficient funds available to meet
all pension and lump sum liabilities as they fall
due for payment. This aim is supported by two
formal documents which establish the Funds’
vision and strategy: Statement of Investment
Principles and a Funding Strategy.

The Pensions Committee, supported by an Audit
Sub-Committee, has been delegated
responsibility for governance by the City of
Edinburgh Council, the administering authority.

The Pensions Committee and Pensions Audit
Sub-Committee meetings are held in public,
papers are available in advance and minutes of
the meetings are published on the City of
Edinburgh Council’s website.

Project Forth, a proposed merger between
Lothian and Falkirk Pension Funds was
approved by Lothian Pension Fund’s Pensions
Committee in September 2021. However,
following the May 2022 council elections further
consideration and approvals will be required,
including those of City of Edinburgh Council
and Falkirk Council as administering authorities.
The Council is due to consider the proposal in
later in the year.

Page 89

Our audit approach

As part of our work on
governance and transparency
work in 2021/22 we will review,
conclude and report on:

Clarity of the vision and
strategy and if these are
supported by a set of
priorities;

Whether the Funds can
demonstrate that the
governance arrangements
in place are appropriate
and operating effectively;

Whether induction
arrangements for new
Committee members
support effective scrutiny
and challenge;

The transparency of
decision-making, and on
financial and performance
reporting; and

Progress of Project Forth
implementation.

24



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Use of resources to improve outcomes

=, / AZETS

Audited bodies need to make best use of their resources to meet stated
outcomes and improvement objectives, through effective planning and
working with strategic partners and communities. This includes
demonstrating economy, efficiency, and effectiveness through the use of
financial and other resources and reporting performance against outcomes.

Consideration

Investments at the Funds are managed through
a combination of external fund managers and
the Funds’ special purpose vehicles, LPFE Ltd
and LPFI Ltd. The proportion of funds managed
internally has increased over recent years which
has resulted in investment management
expenses reducing as a proportion of net
investment assets. During 2022 the Financial
Conduct Authority permitted to lift £1.250billion
cap on the assets LPFI is able to manage. This
allows the company to provide further services
to Falkirk and Fife pension funds.

The Funds’ performance is reviewed by an
external provider on a monthly basis. The
external provider compiles information covering
monthly, quarterly, yearly, 3 yearly, 5 yearly and
10 yearly performance measures. This
information is presented to the Joint Investment
Strategy Panel to allow for scrutiny investment
performance of the Funds.

In 2021/22 performance remained strong with
nine out of the ten performance measures met.
Investment performance and risk over a rolling
five year period was noted as being below
benchmark.

The Funds’ also focus on administrative
performance and have developed a Service

Page 90

Our audit approach

As part of our 2022/23 audit we
will review, conclude and report
on the following:

How the Funds’
demonstrates a focus on
improvement in the
context of continuing and
significant financial
challenge;

How the Funds provide a
clear link between
investment decisions and
actual performance
achieved;

The effectiveness of
working with partners
including collaboration
with Fife Council Pension
Fund and Falkirk Council
Pension Fund; and

The process for tendering
for new providers and
consider this against the
value for money principles

25



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Consideration

Plan. The Pensions Committee receive updates
on the service plan at each meeting.

The Funds also works collaboratively with other
Local Government Pension Funds. It is hoped
that collaborative structures will deliver
efficiencies.

The Funds make use of a range of service
providers including investment managers, an
actuary and a custodian.

In line with City of Edinburgh Council procedures
the Funds maintain a contract register and have
considered the position of contracts in year.
Where action has been required a tender
process has been undertaken.

Page 91

=\ 7/ AZETS

Our audit approach

26



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Your Azets audit
management team

A/ AZETS

Nick Bennett: Engagement Lead

nick.bennett@azets.com

Nick has over 20 years’ experience of public sector
auditing and has been heavily involved in developing
public sector accounting standards.

Nick’s experience and expertise is acknowledged by
both clients and other professionals right across the
public sector.

Nick will be your appointed Engagement Lead.

B
&
AA

Adrian Kolodziej: Engagement
Manager

adrian.kolodziej@azets.co.uk

Adrian will manage the delivery of the onsite work and
work alongside Nick to deliver the audit engagement.
Adrian has over 14 years of public sector experience
performing the external audits of local authorities,
pension funds and central government bodies.

Page 92

27



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

The submission date for audited annual accounts in local government is generally
set to be consistent with the date specified in the accounts regulations by which the
Funds are required to approve its audited accounts. The Coronavirus (Scotland) Act
2000 permitted a deferral in 2019/20 and 2020/21 to 30 November, and a temporary
amendment to the accounts regulations allowed a submission date of 30 November
for 2021/22. However, the submission date is returning to pre-pandemic 30
September for 2022/23.

We have set out below target months which align to the schedule of Pension
Committee meetings. We aim to meet these scheduled meetings however this will
be monitored during the audit process and may require to be revised to reflect
emerging issues.

Audit work/ Descriotion Target Pension Deadline
output P month/s Committee
Audit plan Planning meetings, February / March 2023 31 March
understanding the March 2023
entity, risk
assessment.
Audit plan setting out
the scope of our
audit, including key
audit risks, presented
to the Pension
Committee
Interim audit Interim audit March - N/A N/A
including review of June
accounting systems.
Final audit Accounts presented  July - N/A N/A

for audit and final September
audit visit begins

28

Page 93



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Audit work/ r
Description

output

Independent This report will

Auditor’s contain our opinion

Report on the financial

statements, the
audited part of the
remuneration report,
annual governance
statement and
management
commentary.

At the conclusion of
each year's audit we
issue an annual
report setting out the
nature and extent of
our audit work for the
year and summarise
our opinions,
conclusions and the
significant issues
arising from our work.
This report pulls
together all of our
work under the Code
of Audit Practice.

Annual Report
to the Pension
Committee and
the Controller
of Audit

Target Pension

month/s Committee

September  September
2023

September  September
2023

AZETS

Deadline

30
September
2023

30
September
2023

Prior to submitting our outputs, we will discuss all issues with management to
confirm factual accuracy and agree a draft action plan where appropriate.

The action plans within the reports will include prioritised recommendations,
responsible officers and implementation dates. We will review progress against the

action plans on a regular basis.

Page 94

29



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

For 2022/23, the new appointment process provided Audit Scotland with a fair
representation of the current audit market for each individual body with the outcome
of this exercise highlighting the increasing requirements, expectations and scrutiny of
the audit profession.

The quality of audit work is an essential requirement in successfully delivering a fully
compliant ISA and Code of Audit Practice audit. These factors have led to above
inflationary increases in the cost of audit. Whilst these increases are significant these
are consistent with evidence obtained from the profession and other UK audit
agencies. On setting fees, Audit Scotland has ensured that efficiencies have been
fully utilised to mitigate the impact.

For the local government sector, the average fee increase is 12.5%. For the Funds
this equals to £5,750 which is a difference between the 2022/23 net fee of £51,590
and the base audit fee from 2021/22 of £45,840.

Audit Scotland sets an expected audit fee that assumes the body has sound
governance arrangements in place, has been operating effectively throughout the
year, prepares comprehensive and accurate draft accounts and meets the agreed
timetable for audit. The expected fee is reviewed by Audit Scotland each year and
adjusted if necessary based on auditors’ experience, new requirements, or
significant changes to the audited body.

As auditors we negotiate a fee with the Funds during the planning process. The fee
may be varied above the expected fee level to reflect the circumstances and local
risks within the body.

Page 95

30



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

AZETS

The breakdown of the fee increases for 2022/23 is shown in the table below.

Auditor remuneration

Pooled costs

Contribution to PABV costs

Audit support costs

Sectoral cap adjustment

Total fee

2022/23

£64,360

£2,440

-£15,210

£51,590

2021/22

42,579

4,130

2,110

£48,819
(£45,840 base fee)

We will take account of the risk exposure of the Funds and the management
assurances in place. We assume receipt of the draft working papers at the outset of
our on-site final audit visit. If the draft accounts and papers are late, or agreed
management assurances are unavailable, we reserve the right to charge an
additional fee for additional audit work. An additional fee will be required in relation
to any other significant exercises not within our planned audit activity.

Page 96

31



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Appendix 2: Confirmation of independence

International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 "Communication with those charged
with governance" requires us to communicate on a timely basis all facts and matters
that may have a bearing on our independence.

In particular, FRC’s Ethical Standard stipulate that where an auditor undertakes non
audit work, appropriate safeguards must be applied to reduce or eliminate any
threats to independence.

Azets provides accounts preparation, corporation tax services and ad hoc VAT
advice to LPFE Ltd and LPFI Ltd which are subsidiaries of Lothian Pension Fund. In
2022/23 non-audit fees are estimated to be ¢.£9,000.

All tax services are provided by an independent tax partner and staff who have no
involvement in the audit of the financial statements. The accounts are prepared from
trial balances provided by LPFE Ltd and LPFI Ltd and no significant policies,
disclosures, adjustments or estimates are decided by Azets. In addition to this,
Azets also iXBRL tag the financial statements for submission to HMRC along with
the corporation tax return. This tagging exercise is performed by an individual who is
not involved in the audit of the financial statements.

We confirm that we comply with FRC’s Ethical Standards. In our professional
judgement, the audit process is independent and our objectivity has not been
compromised in any way. In particular there are and have been no relationships
between Azets and the Funds, its committee members and senior management that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our objectivity and independence.

Page 97

32



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

The Accounts Commission is an independent public body. Its members are
appointed by Scottish Ministers and are responsible for holding local government to
account.

Under statute, the Accounts Commission appoints a Controller of Audit to consider
the results of the audit of accounts, including the wider-scope responsibilities and
Best Value auditing. The Controller of Audit makes reports to the Accounts
Commission on matters arising from the accounts and on Best Value and acts
independently of the Accounts Commission when reporting to it.

Audit Scotland is an independent statutory body that co-ordinates and supports the
delivery of high-quality public sector audit in Scotland. Audit Scotland oversees the
appointment and performance of auditors, provides technical support, delivers
performance audit and Best Value work programmes and undertakes financial audits
of public bodies.

The Code of Audit Practice (the Code) describes the high-level, principles-based
purpose and scope of public audit in Scotland. The came into effect from
2022/23.

The Code of Audit Practice outlines the responsibilities of external auditors
appointed by the Accounts Commission and it is a condition of our appointment that
we follow it.

Auditor responsibilities are derived from the Code, statute, International Standards
on Auditing (UK) and the Ethical Standard for auditors, other professional
requirements and best practice, and guidance from Audit Scotland.

We are responsible for the audit of the accounts and the wider-scope responsibilities
explained below. We act independently in carrying out our role and in exercising
professional judgement. We report to the Pension Committee and others, including
Audit Scotland, on the results of our audit work.

Page 98

33


https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/as_code_audit_practice_21.pdf

Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Weaknesses or risks, including fraud and other irregularities, identified by auditors,
are only those which come to our attention during our normal audit work in
accordance with the Code and may not be all that exist.

Reflecting the fact that public money is involved, public audit is planned and
undertaken from a wider perspective than in the private sector.

The wider scope audit specified by the Code broadens the audit of the accounts to
include additional aspects or risks in areas of financial management; financial
sustainability; vision, leadership and governance; and use of resources to improve
outcomes.

Financial management means having sound budgetary
processes. Audited bodies require to understand the financial
environment and whether their internal controls are operating
effectively.

Auditors consider whether the body has effective arrangements
to secure sound financial management. This includes the
strength of the financial management culture, accountability,
and arrangements to prevent and detect fraud, error and other
irregularities.

Financial sustainability means being able to meet the needs of
the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Auditors consider the extent to which audited bodies show
regard to financial sustainability. They look ahead to the
medium term (two to five years) and longer term (over five
years) to consider whether the body is planning effectively so it
can continue to deliver services.

34

Page 99



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Audited bodies must have a clear vision and strategy, and set
priorities for improvement within this vision and strategy. They
work together with partners and communities to improve
outcomes and foster a culture of innovation.

Auditors consider the clarity of plans to implement the vision,
strategy and priorities adopted by the leaders of the audited
body. Auditors also consider the effectiveness of governance
arrangements for delivery, including openness and
transparency of decision-making; robustness of scrutiny and
shared working arrangements; and reporting of decisions and
outcomes, and financial and performance information.

Audited bodies need to make best use of their resources to
meet stated outcomes and improvement objectives, through
effective planning and working with strategic partners and
communities. This includes demonstrating economy, efficiency
and effectiveness through the use of financial and other
resources, and reporting performance against outcomes.

Auditors consider the clarity of arrangements in place to ensure
that resources are deployed to improve strategic outcomes,
meet the needs of service users taking account of inequalities,
and deliver continuous improvement in priority services.

Appointed auditors have a duty to be satisfied that local government bodies have
made proper arrangements to secure best value.

Our work in respect of the Funds’ best value arrangements is integrated into our
audit approach, including our work on the wider scope areas as set out in this plan.

The Auditor General and the Accounts Commission require assurance on the quality
of public audit in Scotland through comprehensive audit quality arrangements that

Page 100

35



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 N a Z E T s

apply to all audit work and providers. The audit quality arrangements recognise the
importance of audit quality to the Auditor General and the Accounts Commission and
provide regular reporting on audit quality and performance.

Audit Scotland maintains and delivers an Audit Quality Framework.

The most recent audit quality report can be found at hitps://www.audit-
scotland.gov.uk/publications/quality-of-public-audit-in-scotland-annual-report-202122

Page 101

36


https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/report/audit-quality-framework-2019
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/quality-of-public-audit-in-scotland-annual-report-202122
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/quality-of-public-audit-in-scotland-annual-report-202122

Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

=, / AZETS

The Funds have primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial stewardship
of public funds, compliance with relevant legislation and establishing effective
arrangements for governance, propriety and regularity that enables it to successfully
deliver its objectives. The features of proper financial stewardship include the

following:

Area

Corporate
governance

Financial
statements
and related
reports

Funds responsibilities

The Funds are responsible for establishing arrangements to ensure
the proper conduct of its affairs including the legality of activities
and transactions, and for monitoring the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements. Those charged with
governance should be involved in monitoring these arrangements.

The Funds have responsibility for:

preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
of its financial position and its expenditure and income, in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework
and relevant legislation;

maintaining accounting records and working papers that have
been prepared to an acceptable professional standard and
that support its financial statements and related reports
disclosures;

ensuring the regularity of transactions, by putting in place
systems of internal control to ensure that they are in
accordance with the appropriate authority; and

preparing and publishing, along with the financial statements,
an annual governance statement, management commentary

(or equivalent) and a remuneration report in accordance with

prescribed requirements. Management commentaries should
be fair, balanced and understandable.

Management is responsible, with the oversight of those charged
with governance, for communicating relevant information to users
about the entity and its financial performance, including providing
adequate disclosures in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework. The relevant information should be
communicated clearly and concisely.

37

Page 102



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Area

Standards
of conduct
for
prevention
and
detection
of fraud
and error

Financial
position

Best value

=, / AZETS

Funds responsibilities

The Funds are responsible for developing and implementing
effective systems of internal control as well as financial, operational
and compliance controls. These systems should support the
achievement of its objectives and safeguard and secure value for
money from the public funds at its disposal. The Funds is also
responsible for establishing effective and appropriate internal audit
and risk-management functions.

The Funds are responsible for establishing arrangements to prevent
and detect fraud, error and irregularities, bribery and corruption and
also to ensure that its affairs are managed in accordance with
proper standards of conduct by putting proper arrangements in
place.

The Funds are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements
to ensure the financial position is soundly based having regard to:

Such financial monitoring and reporting arrangements as may
be specified;

Compliance with statutory financial requirements and
achievement of financial targets;

Balances and reserves, including strategies about levels and
their future use;

Plans to deal with uncertainty in the medium and long term;
and

The impact of planned future policies and foreseeable
developments on the financial position.

The Funds have a specific responsibility to make arrangements to
secure Best Value. Best Value is defined as continuous
improvement in the performance of the body’s functions. In
securing Best Value, the local government body is required to
maintain an appropriate balance among:

The quality of its performance of its functions

Page 103

38



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Area

Funds responsibilities

The cost to the body of that performance

The cost to persons of any service provided by it for them on a
wholly or partly rechargeable basis.

In maintaining that balance, the Funds shall have regard to:
Efficiency
Effectiveness
Economy
The need to meet the equal opportunity requirements.

The Funds should discharge its duties in a way which contributes to
the achievement of sustainable development.

In measuring the improvement of the performance of a local
government body’s functions for the purposes of this section, regard
shall be had to the extent to which the outcomes of that
performance have improved.

The Scottish Government’s Statutory Guidance on Best Value
(2020) requires bodies to demonstrate that they are delivering Best
Value in respect of seven themes:

1. Vision and leadership
. Governance and accountability

. Effective use of resources

2
3
4. Partnerships and collaborative working
5. Working with communities

6. Sustainability

7. Fairness and equality.

Specified audited bodies are required to prepare and publish
performance information in accordance with Directions issued by
the Accounts Commission.

39

Page 104



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 N a Z E T S

Appendix 2: Potential
Impact on the Funds and
our audit approach
following revisions to
auditing standards

Revised auditing standards, which come into effect from the current year, will have a
significant impact on the way we perform our audit, particularly how we assess the
risk of material misstatement, our approach to the audit of fraud, and the ways we
ensure our audits are performed in line with regulatory requirements and to a high
standard. The table below provides further detail on the implications of these new
requirements.

Key change Potential impact on the Funds & our approach

Enhanced risk  Management and those charged with governance may receive
identification more up-front questions as we plan the audit and identify and

and assess risks of material misstatement.

assessment, : .

promoting We may conduct planning and risk assessment procedures at
a different time to ensure that our understanding is

more focused : . o .

auditor comprehensive, and that information is leveraged effectively

and efficiently.
responses to

identified risks  To facilitate a more robust risk-assessment, we may request
additional information to enhance our understanding of
systems, processes and controls. For example, we may
request:

. a better understanding of the Funds’ structure and
operations and how it integrates information technology

(M)

. more information about the Funds’ processes for
assessing risk and monitoring its system of internal
control

Page 105



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Key change

Understanding
and acting on
risks
associated
with IT

Enhanced
procedures in
connection
with fraud

=, / AZETS

Potential impact on the Funds & our approach

more detailed narratives about how transactions are
initiated, recorded, processed and reported

policies and procedure manuals, flowcharts and other
supporting documentation to validate our understanding
of the information systems relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements

more information to support our inherent risk assessment.

This information not only informs our risk assessment but also
assists us in determining an appropriate response to risks
identified, including any new significant risks which require a
different response.

We will be asking tailored questions and making information
requests to understand the IT environment, including:

IT applications

supporting IT infrastructure

IT processes

personnel involved in the IT processes.

Combined with the controls that may be needed to address the
identified and assessed risks of material misstatement, this
understanding may also identify existing and new risks arising
from the use of IT. Therefore, we will be asking more focused
guestions and requesting additional information to understand
the general IT controls that address such risks. For example,
we may have questions in relation to general IT controls over
journal entries (e.g., segregation of duties related to preparing
and posting entries) to address risks arising from the use of IT.

Depending on our assessment of the complexity of systems
and associated risks, we may also involve additional team
members, such as IT specialists.

We will be asking targeted questions as part of an enhanced
approach to fraud, including discussing with the Funds:

any allegations of fraud raised by employees or related
parties

41

Page 106



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Key change

Enhanced
requirements
for exercising
professional
scepticism

Using the right
resources, in
the right way,
at the right
time

=, / AZETS

Potential impact on the Funds & our approach

the risks of material fraud, including those specific to the
local government sector.

Combined with other information, and any inconsistencies in
responses from those charged with governance and
management, we determine implications for further audit
procedures. Work in connection with fraud may also now
include the use of audit data analytics, or the inclusion of
specialists in our engagement team to ensure we obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude whether the
financial statements are materially misstated as a result of
fraud.

In addition to existing communication and reporting
requirements relating to irregularities and fraud, there may be
further matters we report in connection with management’s
process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in
the entity and our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement due to fraud.

These enhanced requirements may assist in the prevention
and detection of material fraud, though do not provide absolute
assurance that all fraud is detected or alter the fact that the
primary responsibility for preventing and detecting fraud rests
with the Funds and management.

Challenge, scepticism and the application of appropriate
professional judgement are key components of our audit
approach. You may receive additional inquiries if information is
found that contradicts what our team has already learned in the
audit or in instances where records or documents seen in the
course of the audit appear to have been tampered with, or to
not be authentic.

One of our new strategic quality objectives sets out that we will
strive to use the right resource, in the right way, at the right
time. This may mean increasing the use of specialists (for
example in relation to general IT controls) or changing the
shape of the audit engagement team to ensure that we are
able to provide appropriate challenge and feedback in
specialist areas.

This will include appropriate use of technology, including data
analytics.

42

Page 107



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance of a matter in the context of
the financial statements as a whole. A matter is material if its omission or
misstatement would reasonably influence the decisions of an addressee of the
auditor’s report. The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional
judgement and is affected by our assessment of the risk profile of the organisation
and the needs of users. We review our assessment of materiality throughout the
audit.

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are
material to our audit opinion, we also report to the Funds and management any
uncorrected misstatements of lower value errors to the extent that our audit identifies
these.

Group  Lothian Scottish
Pension Homes

Fund Pension
Fund
Overall materiality for the financial statements 143 143 2.3
Performance materiality 107.3 107.3 1.7
Trivial threshold 0.250 0.250 0.115

Our initial assessment is based on approximately 1.5% of the
group and Funds’ 2021/22 net investment assets as disclosed
in the 2021/22 audited annual accounts. We consider this to be
the principal consideration for the users of the annual accounts
when assessing financial performance of the Funds’ and the

group.
In performing our audit we apply a lower level of materiality to

the audit of the Remuneration Report. Our materiality is set at
£5,000.

Materiality

Performance materiality is the working level of materiality used
throughout the audit. We use performance materiality to
Performance determine the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures
materiality carried out. We perform audit procedures on all transactions, or
groups of transactions, and balances that exceed our
performance materiality. This means that we perform a greater

Page 108



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23

Tr_ivial
misstatements

level of testing on the areas deemed to be at significant risk of
material misstatement.

Performance materiality is set at a value less than overall
materiality for the financial statements as a whole to reduce to
an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of
the uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed overall
materiality.

Trivial misstatements are matters that are clearly
inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and
whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

Group  Lothian Scottish
Pension Homes

Fund Pension
Fund
Dealings with members materiality 13.1 13.1 0.34
Performance materiality 9.8 9.8 0.25

Trivial threshold

Materiality

Performance
materiality

0.250 0.250 0.017

We apply lower materiality for dealings with members, based on
the fact these transactions are significant to the Funds’ activities
and it would not be appropriate to use the assets based
materiality to them. Our initial assessment is based on
approximately 5% of the group and Funds’ 2021/22 gross
expenditure as disclosed in the 2021/22 audited annual
accounts. We consider this to be the principal consideration for
the users of the annual accounts when assessing financial
performance of the Funds’ and its group.

Using our professional judgement, we have calculated
performance materiality at approximately 75% of overall
materiality.

Page 109

=, / AZETS

44



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 :
=/ AZETS

Tackling climate change is one of the greatest global challenges. The Scottish
Parliament has set a legally binding target of becoming net zero by 2045, and has
interim targets including a 75% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2030. The
public sector in Scotland has a key role to play in ensuring these targets are met and
in adapting to the impacts of climate change.

There are specific legal responsibilities placed on public bodies to contribute to
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, to adapt to climate change, to act sustainably
and to report on progress. A number of public bodies have declared a climate
emergency and set their own net zero targets, some of which are earlier than
Scotland’s national targets. All public bodies will need to reduce their direct and
indirect emissions, and should have plans to do so. Many bodies will also have a role
in reducing emissions in wider society, and in supporting activity to adapt to the
current and potential future impact of climate change. For example, working with the
private sector and communities to help drive forward the required changes in almost
all aspects of public and private life, from transport and housing to business support.

Public audit has an important and clear role to play in:

helping drive change and improvement in this uncertain and evolving area of
work

supporting public accountability and scrutinising performance
helping identify and share good practice.

The Auditor General and Accounts Commission are developing a programme of
work on climate change. This involves a blend of climate change-specific outputs
that focus on key issues and challenges as well as moving towards integrating
climate change considerations into all aspects of audit work.

For 2022/23 audits, auditors are required to provide answers to the questions set out
in the following table which are intended to gather basic information on the
arrangements for responding to climate change in each body:

Page 110

45



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 )
=/ AZETS

Key questions

What targets has the body set for reducing emissions in its own organisation or in
its local area?

Does the body have a climate change strategy or action plan which sets out how
the body intends to achieve its targets?

How does the body monitor and report progress towards meeting its emission
targets internally and publicly?

Has the body considered the impact of climate change on its financial statements?

What are the areas of the financial statements where climate change has, or is
expected to have, a material impact?

Does the body include climate change in its narrative reporting which accompanies
the financial statements and is it consistent with those financial statements?

There continues to be a significant risk of cyber-attacks to public bodies, and it is
important that they have appropriate cyber security arrangements in place.

A number of recent incidents have demonstrated the significant impact that a cyber-
attack can have on both the finances and operation of an organisation.

For 2022/23 audits, auditors are advised to consider risks related to cyber security at
audited bodies. However, the revised ISA (UK) 315 includes enhanced requirements
for auditors to understand a body’s use of IT in its business, the related risks and the
system of internal control addressing such risks. The Auditor General and Accounts
Commission consider that meeting these additional requirements is likely to be
sufficient consideration of cyber security in 2022/23.

Page 111

46



Lothian Pension Fund: External Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 N a z E T s

Appendix 5: Best Value
2022/23 Thematic Review

The Best Value thematic work for 2022/23 requires auditors to carry out an overview
of the effectiveness of Funds leadership (officers and elected members) in
developing new local strategic priorities following the elections in May 2022. In
carrying out the overview, we will look to answer the following questions:

Key questions

How clear is the new Funds vision and its priorities?

How effectively have the views of citizens and communities been reflected in the
priorities and decisions taken by the Funds?

How effectively do the Funds priorities reflect the need to reduce inequalities and
climate change??

How good are the delivery plans and is there alignment of financial, workforce,
asset and digital plans with the Funds’s priorities

Overall, how effective has the leadership been (political and officer) in setting clear
priorities and a sustainable approach to delivering them

Page 112

47



=\ / AZETS

© Azets 2023. All rights reserved. Azets refers to Azets Audit Services Limited. Registered in England & Wales
Registered No. 09652677. VAT Registration No. 219 0608 22. Registered to carry on audit work in the UK and
regulated for a range of investment business activities by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

We are an accounting, tax, audit, advisory and business services group that delivers a personal experience both digitally and at your door.

Accounting | Tax | Audit | Advisory | Technology

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6.6

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

LPF Cost Benchmarking

Item number 6.6

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Audit Sub Committee (Committee) is requested to:
1.1 note the report; and

1.2 note that the CEM Investment Cost Effectiveness Analysis (to 31 March 2022) and
the CEM Pension Administration benchmarking report 2022 have been provided on a
confidential basis to the Conveners of the Committee and Audit Sub-Committee and
the Independent Professional Observer.

David Vallery
Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

Contact: John Burns, Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

E-mail: Ipfgovernancecomms@Ipf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 115



LPF Cost Benchmarking

Background

2.1

2.2

2.3

The purpose of this report is to inform Committee about the annual results from
benchmarking of:

e investment costs for the Lothian Pension Fund; and
e pension administration costs for Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes
Pension Fund (and collectively known as LPF).

LPF’s annual report for 2021/22 identifies £38.0 million of total management
expenses, with investment costs (£34.2 million) representing by far the largest
proportion of the total, as expected.

Benchmarking is undertaken to help identify areas where improvements can be
made to deliver better value for money. The exercise should facilitate:

e comparison between costs and performance;

e the provision of evidence to support decisions on budget relating to the
sustainability and capability of the investment and administrative teams to
deliver customer satisfaction;

e sharing of information and ideas with peers; and

e and areview of performance trends over time.

Main Report

3.1

3.2

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Investment cost benchmarking

Analysis of investment costs was carried out by independent provider CEM
Benchmarking Inc. Its 2021/2022 database includes 30 LGPS funds with total assets
of £226 billion and a wider global universe of 299 funds with £8.8 trillion of assets.

Lothian Pension Fund’s actual investment cost of 0.29% of average assets was below
the benchmark cost of 0.50%. The majority of LPF’s investment cost relates to
external management. The 0.21% difference with the benchmark is equivalent to a
saving of approximately £18.9m per year. The main contributing factors to this
difference are attributable to:

e LPF managing a high percentage of assets on an internal basis compared to
the benchmark peer group; and

e LPF accessing externally managed private market investments at lower costs
than the benchmark peer group.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2

Page 116



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

CEM also highlight that investment costs should be taken in the context of a fund'’s
long-term net returns as well as risk. As part of the benchmarking, CEM provide the
median annual return from its LGPS universe.

Lothian’s 8-year net return of +9.4% pa was above the LGPS median of +8.8% pa, and
in the 82nd percentile of the CEM LGPS fund universe of 30 funds. (100th percentile
= highest return)

Lothian’s 8-year net return (+9.4% pa) was also delivered with less risk (8.3%), than
the median LGPS return (+8.8% pa) which was achieved with a higher level of risk
(10.0%).

Further details of the investment cost benchmarking process are provided in
Appendix 1.

Pension administration benchmarking

Analysis of pension administration costs was undertaken by the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA), with data provided for the 2022 exercise.
Due to delays in completion of data quality checks by CIPFA, no information is yet
available, despite fund officers regularly requesting updates. A verbal update will be
provided at the committee meeting in March.

In order to obtain further insight into pension administration cost and benchmarking
on quality of service, LPF has also participated in the pension administration
benchmarking survey carried out by CEM. Whilst CIPFA is exclusive to the LGPS, CEM
also includes UK private sector schemes. Participating funds, both private and public,
are of a significantly larger size than LPF. CEM’s methodology includes an
adjustment to business-as-usual costs to allow for fairer comparison to eliminate the
effect of economies of scale. As a result, peer costs are increased by £8.04 per
member.

Results from the 2022 CEM benchmarking survey show LPF’s pension administration
service to be categorised as “low cost; high service standard”, with a cost per
member of £26.30. The adjusted peer average is £39.94 per member —52% more
expensive.

As with investment costs, cost in isolation is unhelpful, and as agreed in the 2022/23
strategy, the fund strives to provide a quality service which offers value for money
rather than being cheap. Again, the CEM benchmarking survey provides positive
confirmation of this as LPF’s service score is 74 compared to the peer median of 67.

Further details of the pension administration cost benchmarking process are
provided in Appendix 2.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3

Page 117



4, Financial impact

4.1  There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. Out of LPF’s total
management costs of £38.0 million for 2021/22, investment costs amounted to
£34.2 million, administrative costs to £2.0 million and oversight and governance
costs to £1.8m. The benchmarking exercise should aid future cost management
efforts.

5. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

5.1 The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the fund and they are invited to comment on the relevant matters
at Committee meetings.

5.2 There are no adverse health and safety, governance, compliance or regulatory
implications as a result of this report.

6. Background reading/external references

6.1 None.

7. Appendices

Appendix 1 — Investment Cost Benchmarking

Appendix 2 — Pension Administration Benchmarking

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 4

Page 118



Appendix 1

Investment Cost Benchmarking

Background

LPF has contributed to CEM’s database to better understand its investment expense base
and how it compares with other pension funds.

The benchmarking analysis undertaken by CEM aims to provide comprehensive, like-for-like
comparisons with similar funds, but they are unable to capture all investment costs from all
funds. Consequently, the total actual costs reported by CEM differ from those reported in
Lothian Pension Fund’s annual report. CEM includes private asset performance fees, but
investment transaction costs, including property operational costs, are excluded.

In addition, the fund undertakes more detailed cost analysis than CEM for its listed private
market funds as these cannot always be directly compared with other funds in the database.

Care should be taken in deriving conclusions from the headline data. CEM itself states that
“being high or low cost is neither good nor bad”. What matters is whether a pension fund is
receiving sufficient value for the costs incurred. This is reflected in the long term returns of
pension funds, net of costs.

2022 cost benchmarking

The CEM 2022 global database includes 299 funds with £8.8 trillion in assets, of which 30
are LGPS funds with total assets of £226 billion.

The peer group for calculating LPF’s benchmark cost contains 17 funds (including 9 LGPS
funds). The peer group funds have been selected on the basis of fund size and holding a
broadly similar basket of assets to LPF.

The median fund size within the peer group is £9.6 billion, which compares with Lothian
Pension Fund’s average assets of £9.1 billion over the year to 31 March 2022. CEM
calculates a benchmark cost for Lothian Pension Fund, which reflects the fund’s asset class
mix, based on the asset class costs of the peer group funds.

LPF’s actual cost figure to 31 March 2022 of approximately 0.29% of average assets was
below the benchmark cost of 0.50%. The 0.21% difference is equivalent to a saving of
approximately £18.9m for the year to 31 March 2022.

Page 119



CEM concluded that the primary reasons for cost being low compared with the benchmark
are due to implementation style, in two areas:

e internal management, where LPF manages a relatively high percentage of assets
internally relative to peers. External active management fees are significantly more
expensive than internal management and CEM benchmarking also indicates that LPF
pays less for internal management relative to peers, and

e private markets, where LPF costs for investing in private markets were significantly
less than the costs of the peer group.

CEM analysis also shows that the Lothian Pension Fund cost of 0.29% is significantly lower
than the median cost of the 17 funds in the global peer group (0.83%).

Previous CEM cost analyses are shown below (analyses prior to 31 March 2017 were
calculated on a calendar year basis):

e 31 March 2021: 0.35% versus the benchmark cost of 0.46%
e 31 March 2020: 0.35% versus the benchmark cost of 0.51%
e 31 March 2019: 0.39% versus the benchmark cost of 0.48%
e 31 March 2018: 0.43% versus the benchmark cost of 0.55%
e 31 March 2017: 0.31% versus the benchmark cost of 0.48%
e 31 December 2015: 0.36% versus the benchmark cost of 0.45%
e 31 December 2014: 0.39% versus the benchmark cost of 0.50%

Page 120



Agenda Iltem 6.7

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

2023-24 Strategy & Business Plan

Inc. Functional Plan and Budget

Item number 6.7

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Committee (Committee) is requested to:
11 approve the Strategy and Business Plan for 2023-24;

1.2 approve the respective budgets, as detailed in the Financial Projections section of
appendix 1, for:

1.2.1 LPF Group business as usual 2023-24; net expenditure of £16,460k;
1.2.2 Project Forth; net expenditure of £866k; and

1.2.3 Office relocation; capital outlay of £900K, revenue expenditure in 2023/24 of
£327k, with full year total future revenue expenditure of £675k, as
referenced in 5.3.7.

1.3 note the indicative budget for 2024-25; net expenditure of £16,093k.

David Vallery
Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

Contact: Jason Koumides, Senior Finance Manager, Lothian Pension Fund

E-mail: Ipfgovernancecomms@Ipf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 121



Strategy and Business Plan for 2023 - 24

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

The Strategy and Business Plan sets out the proposed medium-term strategy for LPF
and the business priorities for calendar years 2023-24. It also sets the budget and
performance targets for the financial year 2023-24.

The overall strategy remains the same and articulated in four strategic goals:

2.2.1 Develop and deliver a member and employer proposition for service
excellence

2.2.2 Earn an appropriate risk adjusted investment return as responsible investors

2.2.3 Extend collaboration and services to existing partners and deepen where
possible

2.2.4 Achieve greatness in our people, teams and culture

The plan describes Project Forth as the key strategic priority. Project Forth the
proposed merger with Falkirk Council Pension Fund and related structural and
governance change was approved by the respective Pension Committees in
December 2021 and whilst it remains conditional on approval by both of the
respective Councils, as well as legislative change and regulatory clearances, it will be
a key focus of effort during 2023 and in to 2024.

It is anticipated that this can be delivered alongside a significant suite of regulatory
and functional projects and change, whilst continuing to deliver the core service to
members and employers and meet all governance and regulatory requirements.

The other significant strategic project is in relation to a potential office move. The
current office in Atria One lease was signed on 18 November 2013 with occupation
taken in the spring of 2014. The office was chosen at the time based on a headcount
of 50 employees and with our current headcount of 99 employees, excluding any
changes that might happen due to Forth, is no longer meeting our requirements.

Hybrid working is now well established and, in general, working well with colleagues
appreciating the greater flexibility as well as saving in time and cost. Nevertheless
with the increased headcount we have less than 42% desk availability on a daily basis
and whilst touch down space increases capacity it doesn’t support all day working
nor dual screen or call handling work. The inability to get full teams in together, the
lack of meeting rooms, inability to separate quiet areas from call handlers, limited
kitchen / colleague breakout area and so are increasingly compromising the working
environment and practices and this was reflected in the YourVoice engagement
survey.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2

Page 122



2.7

The Key Performance metrics in appendix 1 and the Service Performance Indicators
set out in appendix 2 of the 2023 — 2024 Strategy and Business plan (pages 29 and
30) are consistent with the 2021-23 plan. Some of these targets are being reviewed
and although no major changes are expected any revisions will be tabled at the
Pension Committee in June for approval.

Background

31

3.2

33

34

In March 2021 the Committee agreed to move to a triennial review of the generic
functional plan. LPF had previously followed a 2 year planning cycle.

In light of the significance of Project Forth and the proposal for a new corporate
entity and unitary Board replacing the Pension Committee, the previous two year
planning horizon was retained in 2022/23 with the expectation that the new Board
will look to consider a fresh plan for the new entity in 2024.

Due to additional discovery workstreams for Project Forth, the new entity is not
expected to be active until the end of the 2023/24 financial year meaning the 2 year
planning cycle has been retained.

The Boards of LPFE and LPFI have been consulted during the development of this
plan and are supportive of it. If the Strategy and Business Plan are approved by the
Committee, then the relevant aspects will be considered formally by the Boards of
LPFE and LPFI with the expectation that they would be approved. This includes the
regulatory business plan of LPFI.

Main Report

4.1
4.2

4.3

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Strategy
The Strategy and Business Plan for 2023-24 is provided as Appendix 1.

The Plan opens with an articulation of the Purpose, Vision and Values (“PVV”) of LPF.
We regard these as being enduring and the aim is that all colleagues can articulate
the PVV and understand the role they play in delivering them for the benefit of our
members and employers. We recognise further work is required to achieve this.

The Strategic section articulates the strategic goals, and within these strategic
priorities for LPF. Again, these remain the same:

4.3.1 Develop and deliver a member and employer proposition for service
excellence
4.3.2 Earn an appropriate risk adjusted investment return as responsible investors

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3

Page 123



4.3.3 Extend collaboration and services to existing partners and deepen where
possible
4.3.4 Achieve greatness in our people, teams and culture.

4.4 Evidently, delivery of Project Forth will be a fundamental step in the evolution of LPF
but is clearly an extension of the existing strategy of influencing the LGPS of the
future. From a member, employer, and colleague perspective there is no change in
strategy.

4.5  The Business Plan document provides an overview of the planning process followed
and includes a recap of 2023 to provide context.

Business Plan

4.6  Whereas the strategy, purpose, vision and values are expected to remain constant,
the Business Plan is intended to capture specific projects and initiatives designed to
deliver the strategy and set out the operating parameters.

4.7  The business plan document sets out what are described as functional plans. These
describe the key priorities and initiatives of each function and department and
summarise more comprehensive functional plans that have been created for use
within the teams. Collectively these ensure there is clarity of the priorities of each
team and alignment both up and down and across the business.

4.8 Key initiatives include:

4.8.1 The enhancement of existing risk management arrangements with a fully
integrated framework based on

4.8.1.1 Focusing on managing risk across the business in a proportionate and
pragmatic way

4.8.1.2 Ensuring arrangements are scalable with an emphasis on investing
for the future and building resiliency

4.8.1.3 Reducing complexity by standardising processes wherever possible
and appropriate

4.8.2 Relocating our office to accommodate our growing workforce and facilitating
more face to face colleague collaborations.

4.8.3 Integration of new finance system and exploration of potential efficiencies
that it could bring as well as the additional oversight and resilience it will
offer in relation to budget monitoring and supplier management.

4.8.4 Integration of new finance system and exploration of potential efficiencies
that it could bring as well as the additional oversight and resilience it will

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 4

PENSION FUND Page 124



offer in relation to budget monitoring and supplier management.

4.8.5 Like all good business plans, it includes a section on risks. This highlights the
key risk to delivery is management and resource stretch and outlines how this
is being mitigated. It highlights the risk on Forth, both in getting the
appropriate final approvals, delivering the project and potential challenges in
aligning and integrating FCPF colleagues and members without disrupting the
core LPF service. LPF are also acknowledging the risk of change fatigue given
the significant changes over recent years and set out in this plan. The plan
document doesn’t list the full set of business risks. These risks both inherent
and temporal are set out in the risk registers that are reported to the
Pensions Committee, Audit Sub Committee and each of the LPFl and LPFE
Boards.

4.9  The Plan sets out financial forecasts and the assumptions on which these are based.
This is described in the following section.

Functional Plan and Service Metrics

4.10 The Plan includes as appendix 1 the ‘Corporate Performance Measures’. These were
previously labelled the operational goals and measures. These are effectively
focused ‘balanced scorecard’ covering all aspects of LPFs performance. They also
form the basis for the variable pay component for colleagues.

4.11 Appendix 2 lists the ‘Service Performance Indicators’. These remain unchanged from
2022/23. It is recognised that delivery against these can be impacted by the
performance of employers, for example late delivery of notification of leavers and
joiners, as well as by our performance. The Project Forth papers also note the
potential for some degree of temporary service impact as the project commences
and before integration is complete.

Project Forth

4.12 It should be recognised that if Project Forth proceeds as expected, then LPF will
cease to exist as will the Pensions Committee. A new entity (“NewCo”) will be in
place and act as scheme manager and administering authority of the merged
successor fund (“NewFund”) and with a new Board. It is anticipated that this new
Board will consider the initial business plan and budget of that entity.

4.13 The illustrative budget for 2024/25 should be considered in this regard. The intention
is to prepare a pro-forma NewCo budget later in 2023 that will take both LPF and
FCPF indicative budgets for 2024/25 and adjust these for the expected merger
synergies and any additional NewCo operating costs.

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 5

PENSION FUND Page 125



4.14 NewcCo will be staffed by LPF’s current staffing compliment plus an additional c20
staff from FCPF, a majority of which in relation to pensions administration. Likewise,
NewFund will be made of LPF’s current standing plus an approximate £3.2b in assets
and additional 36,000 members.

4.15 Should Project Forth proceed then CEC will cease to provide services to NewCo with
these services, including Internal Audit and Committee Services being performed
either ‘in-house’ by LPFE on behalf of NewCo or via new external suppliers. The plan
sets out the expectation of these changes being independent of Project Forth and
consistent with the existing strategy to source directly in the interests of good
governance, tailored capabilities and agility.

Office Move

4.16 LPF have been based in Atria One since early 2014. Originally designed for 50
colleagues it now has capacity for 42 the difference being the result of increased
distancing in a covid world. With a current headcount of 99 expecting to increase to
103 during 2023 it is no longer meeting our requirements.

4.17 Even with hybrid working proving effective and popular, we have less than 42% desk
availability on a daily basis. Touch down space increases capacity it doesn’t support
all day working nor dual screen or call handling work. More broadly, the inability to
get full teams in together, the lack of meeting rooms, inability to separate quiet
areas from call handlers, limited kitchen / colleague breakout area and so are
increasingly compromising the working environment and practices and this was
reflected in the YourVoice engagement survey.

4.18 The proposal is to find new accommodation of approximately double the size, of
similar standard and in a similar location. The aim will be to have desks for 65-80% of
headcount with the additional space creating meeting, training and break out spaces.
Consistent with our ESG and responsible investing principles a high sustainability
score is being sought which also translates in lower ongoing service costs whilst
public transport connections will keep the carbon footprint down.

5. Financial impact

5.1  The respective budgets for LPF Group “business as usual” activity, together with
strategic projects of Project Forth and Office relocation are detailed in the Financial
Projections section of appendix 1, for:

5.2 The proposed total budget represents a £2,235k increase to the comparable 2022/23
budget, of which £738k relates to strategic project costs.

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 6

PENSION FUND Page 126



53 Key changes from current year comprise the following:

Employees

5.3.1 £1,333k increase on last year’s budget. Changes of note being —

5.3.1.1 Inclusion of 5 vacancies including a Senior Risk Officer and additional
Portfolio Managers. These roles are both a response to the
increasing requirements within the business.

5.3.1.2 Full year provision for roles recruited in 2022/23 to improve the
resilience of the fund, pay reviews as a result of the cost of living
crisis and SLT benchmarking exercise. These are in line with the
recommendations and approvals made by the LPFE Board.

5.3.1.3 The indicative budget for 2024/25 shows an increase of £596k. This
assumes the removal of Forth specific roles and a full year of salary
uplifts assumed to be around 6%.

Supplies and Services

5.3.2 £346k increase on last year’s budget. Increase the result of a number of
factors including increased head count (additional training, system licences,
etc), system/consultancy related costs McCloud, Pensions Dashboard, Risk
and Compliance upscaling and supplier management, as well as higher
professional indemnity insurance premiums due to great assets under
management

Investment Management

5.3.3 £150k decrease in relation to invoiced fees. Externally managed mandate fees
are based on market value. Fund reduced holdings in one of externally
managed mandates during 2022/23.

Plant and Transport

5.3.4 Slight increase of budget by £28k including rise in costs for office
management and an increase in the travel budget for internal investment
property team as lockdown restrictions ease.

5.3.5 Indicative 2024/25 figures show a £418k increase a majority in relation to
premises costs. Using current assumptions for the preferred premises, the
annual cost of the new premises is expected to be £675k.

Support Costs

5.3.6 £112k increase in budget. This reflects higher ICT costs due to head count and
additional internal audit function for LPFE and LPFI.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 7
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 127



Third Party Payments

5.3.7 £105k increase in overall budget. Additional budget included for investment
performance monitoring due to withdrawal of current provider and triennial
actuarial valuation.

Strategic Project Costs

5.3.8 £738k increase in overall budget. 2 strategic projects identified —

5.3.8.1 Project Forth — reflects additional £411k increase due to change on
previous methodology in project cost sharing and additional
workstreams identified in discovery. A budgeted of £1,425k remains
for Uninvoiced investment management fees for potential tax
charges in transferring investment assets to the new entity.

5.3.8.2 Office relocation — net £327k (for 2023/24) additional costs
associated with a potential premises move. Full year revenue
expenditure would amount to £675K. Budget assumptions used
reflect the current available information for the preferred premises.
Dilapidations on our current office are estimated at £250k. Any lease
assignee will expect to have the dilapidations liability covered and
any sub-tenant will want a schedule of condition to limit
reinstatement to the condition it is on entry. Cost implications in
relation to lease handover are assumed to be broadly neutral, with
rent free period on the new office, together with potential income
from income of sub-lease of Atria anticipated should a
straightforward lease handover not prove possible. Such financial
uncertainties, however, are acknowledged. A £900k capital budget is
also proposed for the refit of the new office which would be
depreciated over the 10 year lease period.

5.4  The 2022/23 budget has been adjusted in relation to uncontrollable investment
income and expenditure. Securities lending has been removed due to the
inconsistency of its treatment with other investment income and Uninvoiced
Investment Management fees are disclosed separately in the budget analysis.

5.5 Uninvoiced Investment Management fees section of the budget now also includes an
estimate of the potential performance related element due on its unlisted asset
mandates.

5.6  Anindicative 2024/25 budget for LPF on a ‘business as usual’ basis, excluding Project
Forth which has been prepared.

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 8

PENSION FUND Page 128



5.7

5.8

A pro-forma NewCo budget incorporating the transferring costs and synergies
expected on completion of Project Forth will be prepared and presented to
committee in due course.

Committee is reminded, in general terms, of its obligation to secure and
demonstrate value for money and that performance against such is reviewed and a
judgement made thereon by the external auditor, as detailed within the Annual
Audit Report to Members of the Pensions Committee and the Controller of Audit.

Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1

6.2

The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the Fund and they are invited to comment on the relevant
matters at Committee meetings.

There are no adverse health and safety, governance, compliance or regulatory
implications as a result of this report.

Background reading/external references

7.1

8.

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Draft Lothian Pension Fund Strategy and Business Plan 2023-2024

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 9

Page 129



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

STRATEGY AND
BUSINESS PLAN

.....



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

CONTENTS
Foreword 2
Introduction 4

Purpose, vision, values

A review of 2022

Our planning process
Strategy 8

Strategic goals

Strategic priorities

Corporate entities
Financial projections 15
Functional plans 19

Investments

Pension Administration & Member Services

IT & Change

Governance, Legal, Risk and Compliance

Finance

People & Communications

CEC Shared Services
Projects and change 25
Organisational design 26
Risks 27
Appendix 1: Key performance metrics 29
Appendix 2: Service performance indicators 30

Page 131



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

FOREWORD

About us

Lothian Pension Fund (LPF) has been around in its current form since 1975 and has helped more
than 75,000 local government workers and their families to experience a financially secure
retirement. We expect to be here to provide for the beneficiaries of the youngest members of our
Fund today, and so we need a plan that sets out how we’ll achieve the sustainability that such multi-
generational obligations require.

Through our service and employment company LFFE, we administer the LGPS in Edinburgh and the
Lothians and are one of approximately a hundred local government pension scheme (LGPS) funds in
the UK, and the second largest LGPS fund in Scotland. We're an asset-backed and multi-employer
scheme with around £9 billion of assets and we were 106% funded at our last valuation in 2020.
We’re proud to serve over 80,000 members and 67 contributing employers.

LPFI, our regulated asset management company, provides investment advice and management to
partner LGPS funds sharing costs and expertise to the benefit of LPF and these partners.

Secure benefits

The benefits that we administer are protected by statutory provisions. That means earned pension
benefits from past service are as secure as other Government-backed commitments. The future
benefits could be amended by changes to the LGPS and this could result from: a change in policy
towards public sector pensions; affordability concerns; or to ensure they remain fair for all
beneficiaries.

A changing world

The world surrounding us is changing and the opportunities to become more efficient and easier to
deal with are increasingly attainable as a result of technology advances. Our members have high
expectations of all organisations they interact with when it comes to being straightforward to deal
with, courteous, professional, and consistent in delivering on the promises we make. Although
membership of the LGPS is bundled with their eligible employment, we must never become
complacent or feel that members will tolerate second best service for guaranteed benefits.

The employers who sponsor our members are changing too. The benefits of LGPS are valuable, but
come at considerable cost to employers, many of whom are contending with financial constraints.
The benefit to employers of providing the LGPS to their people must continue to be greater than the
cost to them of that membership or we face a threat to the long-term future of the LGPS.

But it’s in the investment markets where we see a rate of change greater than at any time in our

past. The activity of investing in assets for returns that will exceed inflation in the long-term has
always relied on judgement, manager skill, diversification and patience. Today is no different, but

Page 132



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

judgement, management and patience are especially challenged by low interest rates, climate risk
assessment, other environmental, social and governance issues, and the distribution of information
and misinformation in this age of social media. We must exercise our fiduciary duty with due
awareness of the complex dynamics of investing in a changing world to be able to provide benefits
for members and their sponsoring employers.

We remain aware of the potential for structural review of the LGPS in Scotland and that
consideration of a National Care Service might have implications on pension provision. We shall
respond positively to any developments in these, whilst also noting the potential consolidation of
multi-fund LGPS employers where there is a case for rationalisation. Conversely, we’ll consider the
risks of employers and members through such exercises and understanding the potential impact on
LPF and possible risk mitigants and defensive strategies.

Our Strategy and Business Plan

Our passion and energy come from our motivation to deliver for our members. The following pages
set out a summary of our Strategy and Business Plan.

Page 133



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

INTRODUCTION

We have a clear purpose, vision, and values.

Our purpose
To administer the LGPS in Edinburgh and the Lothians. By paying pensions and benefits to members,
we help with the financial well-being of members and their families in retirement.

We invest the scheme’s assets, seeking to earn an appropriate return that will reduce the cost of the
scheme to employers and improve the sustainability of the LGPS. By investing responsibly, we seek
to ensure that companies meet and manage environmental, social and governance standards,
including those relating to the climate change threat and the need to transition to a net zero world.

Our vision

To deliver outstanding pension and investment services for the benefit of members and employers.

Beyond this we aspire to be the best LGPS in Scotland, if not the UK, in terms of meeting the needs
of members and employers, in using our influence as a leading responsible investor, and offering a
superior employment proposition to our colleagues.

Our core values
We’re passionate about pensions and our values are enduring principles that inform, inspire and
instruct our day to day behaviour.

We deliver high quality services We promote ashared We constantlystrive to
ehE e e el understanding of the organisation's enhance service delivery.
stakeholders and members. needs and strategicdirection.

Understand the

We're positive Focus on members strategy Enhance service We take
about delivery ownership of our
collaboration, and actions and follow
we collaborate them through.

purposefully.
Collaborate with Take ownership
others AGILE &
DEPENDABLE
We learn from
experience and
mistakesand use

We listen, coach
and provide

Enable others Always learn N
EZLERCLRERY © SELF-MOTIVATED CHALLENGING & y thisto make
& TEAM PLAYERS RESPECTFUL improvements.
INNOVATIVE &
; q PRUDENT .
. ' Build expertise Constructively We constructively
We build expertise challenge challenge
and denllo.r.strate decisions of others
credibility. and we’re opento
challenge.
Make sound Future thinking
decisions Continuously improve
We think strategically and We continuously improve We're future thinkingin our
make the connection to risk and simplify to betterserve mindsetandactions.

appetite. our members.

Page 134



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

A REVIEW OF 2022

The year got off to a great start as we welcomed our colleagues back into the office in February
following the easing of lockdown restrictions. We were also pleased to be able to re-introduce
inbound calls from 1 February 2022 through our new and improved phone system. This was a great
step forward for service excellence and member feedback has been very positive. Our new IT system
has given us scope to do this more efficiently and effectively than before.

2022 was another year of success and progress for LPF. We continued to deliver for our members,
paying out £187,667,492 to 34,774 members and welcoming 6,196 new members.

Providing excellent customer service to our members and employers is at the heart of what we do,
so we were delighted to achieve Pensions Administration Standards Association (PASA)
reaccreditation along with the Customer Service Excellence Award. We also scored 94.7% overall
customer satisfaction in our annual surveys.

We launched our new website in March 2022, where members and visitors can now learn more
about us, read our latest news and publications, access their pension, and view our vacancies in one,
easy to navigate place. In addition, we issued our first ever electronic communication to members in
the form of the Penfriend e-zine to our active members. This enables us to communicate more
frequently with the large number of our members who have opted into electronic communications.

Our Digital strategy continued to progress and allowed for more on-line processing and self-service
options for our members which has significantly reduced the timescales involved. We introduced on-
line facial recognition software in August to make our ‘Annual Proof of Existence’ checks easier for
our overseas members.

An overall investment return of -1.3% was earned over the year, giving a three year and five-year
annualised return of 4.4% and 5.3%. In the context of significantly negative returns for market
indices for gilts (double-digit decline) and global equities (high single digit decline) over the year, this
was a creditable, if disappointing, level of return.

LPFI continued to provide advisory services to the LGPS’s of Fife, Falkirk, Borders, and Northern
Ireland, as well as managing assets for Falkirk (two sovereign bond portfolios) and for Fife (a global
equity portfolio). In September, we were pleased to receive confirmation from the FCA that the
asset cap restricting the funds under management of LPFI was removed. This enables us to increase
the funds we can manage for the Falkirk and Fife funds.

Our focus and commitment to being a responsible investor continued. In March, we were proud to
be listed as a signatory to the UK Stewardship Code, following the publication of our Stewardship
Report. This report sets out how we’re delivering against the 12 principles set out by the Financial
Reporting Council and includes case studies of our activities. We published Issue 5 of our ESG ezine,

Page 135



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

ENGAGE which gives detailed information on LPF’s approach to ESG and our responsible investment
activities.

During the year we recruited 26 new colleagues across a variety of roles. These hires will not only
ensure that we remain adequately resourced to deliver what we need today but will enable us to
continue to improve our capabilities and the services we deliver to our members and employers.

Lastly, and by no means least, we continued to explore a merger with the Falkirk Council Pension
Fund. Work to take this proposal forward will continue this year, subject to approval by both the City
of Edinburgh and Falkirk Councils, and regulatory approval in both Scotland and the UK. If it’s
approved, the merger is expected to take place in 2024. The merger is discussed in more detail later
in this document.

Page 136



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Our planning process

After joining in mid-2021, our CEO initiated a structured review of the purpose of the fund, its
strategy, and goals. This exercise considered external factors, engaged with colleagues, the Senior
Leadership Team (SLT) of the Fund, the Directors of the subsidiary companies LPFl and LPFE, and key
suppliers, as well as reviewing feedback from members and employers. This process led to a clear
and comprehensive statement of strategy which was subsequently considered and approved by the
Pensions Committee on behalf of our members and employers.

In light of the potential transformational merger with Falkirk Council Pension Fund which is subject
to approval by both Falkirk and City of Edinburgh Councils, a full review of the strategy hasn’t taken
place this year. The expectation is that any merged fund will continue to pursue a broadly similar
strategy and focus, but this will be retested with members, employers, and other key stakeholders
as part of the inaugural business plan of the merged fund. Until then the existing strategy is being
maintained, subject to ratification by the Pensions Committee on 23 March 2023.

The planning process takes the four broadly defined strategic goals and sets more detailed
objectives and accompanying targets for each. These targets and measures allow us to monitor
progress and identify where interventions may be required.

STRATEGIC MEASURES OPERATING
GOALS AND TARGETS PLAN INITIATIVES

The strategic goals and more detailed objectives are set out in the following pages, along with individual
functional plans, which detail how each function contributes to the overall strategy and goals of LPF.
These are accompanied by financial metrics, headcount, and the other essential components of a
comprehensive business plan.

Page 137



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

STRATEGIC GOALS

Our four strategic goals are set by our Vision “to deliver outstanding pension and investment services
for the benefit of members and employers.” At LPF, we take pride in everything we do for our
members, employers and stakeholders and strive for excellence. Our goals are as follows:

Develop and deliver a member and employer proposition for service excellence
We aspire to deliver service excellence to our members and employers. To achieve service
excellence, we’ve benchmarked where we are, and agreed measures to achieve our goal.

We’ll continue to target external validation including the Pensions Administration
Standards Association (PASA) accreditation and the Customer Service Excellence (CSE)
award. In addition, we’ll use CEM Benchmarking to validate our goal of high quality /

value for money positioning of participating UK pension funds.

We'll keep things simple by eliminating complexity and unnecessary friction in internal processes
across the Fund and operating with clear information accessible across multiple channels.

Delivery of our digital strategy is key to this, as it will further improve our service proposition for
both members and employers, making it easier to deal with us and reducing administration. It will
also improve our operational resilience to protect our data and service continuity.

In addition to continuing the digital strategy, key priorities will include:
= Preparation for the launch of the Pensions Dashboard and responding to the requirements
of the McCloud judgement
= Supporting Falkirk as they commence the process of aligning to LPF working practices in
preparation for the completion of the merger and fully aligned operations.

Page 138



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Earn an appropriate risk adjusted investment return as responsible investors
We must exercise our fiduciary duty to provide benefits for members and their sponsoring
employers with due awareness of the complex dynamics of investing in a changing world.

Q We’ll do this by delivering sufficient investment returns over the long term to meet
:é funding targets and seeking to have a positive impact on the economy and society

by continuing to integrate Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
considerations into our investment processes and demonstrating good stewardship of
our assets.

Key priorities for 2023 include:
= Continued alignment of investment mandates with Falkirk and Fife pension funds
= Continued integration of climate-related considerations into investment decision making
and communication of approach and commitments
=  Completing a reassessment of the fund’s investment benchmarks
= Continuing to enhance the investment processes and controls applied within LPF whilst
ensuring LPFI continues to fully meet its regulatory obligations.

Extend collaboration and services to existing partners and deepen where possible
Collaboration is key to our success and our key focus over the next year is to progress Project Forth,
the potential merger with Falkirk Council Pension Fund, towards completion in 2024. The intention is
a seamless integration of members, employers, and colleagues into the new combined organisation.

NO[%\OZ We'll continue to collaborate through successful investment partnerships. In the short
Zﬂﬂa_g term, this is extending the investment management services to Falkirk and Fife
pension funds, whilst continuing to provide advisory services to those funds and to the
Borders LGPS and the Northern Ireland Government Officers’ Superannuation Committee
(“NILGOSC”).

We seek to offer reliable and impartial advice to policy makers including the Scheme Advisory Board.

We’re currently supporting consideration of structural change in the LGPS in Scotland and evolution
of climate change reporting for Scottish LGPS funds.

Page 139



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Achieve greatness in our people, teams and culture
The key to our vision of delivering outstanding pension and investment services for the benefit of
members and employers is our people. We're committed to growing a high-performing and inclusive

workforce and creating an inspiring employer brand and culture.

(2

Having the right people with the right training and in the right roles is key to our success to achieve
our vision. Our people processes from recruitment, people management, and training, all need to
support the talent we have and the talent that joins us.

We'll achieve this by empowering a broad range of talents to meet our organisation
priorities; cultivating leadership competencies and developing succession plans
across the team; and by giving our people capacity and encouragement to contribute

to our communities.

Key priorities for 2023 include:
= Proposals to relocate to new offices better suited to the needs of our colleagues
= Further embedding performance management, the “how and what”
= Continuing to support a fully inclusive culture and providing our colleagues with the tools,

education, and capacity to do so
= Supporting our communities, making sure each of our colleagues have two days annually to

spend giving back to their communities in the manner they chose.

Page 140



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Project Forth

Project Forth, the potential merger with the Falkirk Council Pension Fund, was approved by the
Pensions Committee in December 2021. If the merger recommendation is ratified by the City of
Edinburgh Council, with equivalent approval by Falkirk Council and the regulators, then the intention
would be to merge in 2024. The merger proposals include the creation of a new joint venture that
will replace Edinburgh as the Administering Authority and Scheme Manager.

The project anticipates significant work during 2023/24 to align investment and operational
processes and to integrate all member, employer, and colleague processes.

The twin objectives are to introduce best practice pension governance as part of the formation of an
enlarged Board, including professional Directors, and to create a more efficient and resilient
operation through integrating teams and aligning processes. Should the proposals not be ratified as
anticipated, then alternative proposals will be developed in pursuit of these two goals of best
practice governance and greater efficiency and resilience.

Responsible Investing

At LPF, we're proud of our efforts to promote responsible investment and are recognised globally for
our active participation in collaborative initiatives. Fundamentally, we seek to engage and influence
rather than divest and exclude. Our Statement of Responsible Investment Principles describes our

approach in more detail and how this complements and widens ESG considerations.

Our investment strategy currently seeks alignment with the Paris goals and uses the Transition
Pathways Initiative to guide us in this regard. We intend to explore a net zero commitment in 2023
and would expect to introduce such a commitment and target date once we’re confident about what
such a commitment means for a fund and that we’re capable of achieving it.

We continue to work with the Scottish Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board, who are
considering enhanced climate change reporting and advising Scottish Ministers following the
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities public consultation on the same subject for
the Local Government Pensions Schemes (LGPS) in England and Wales.

Office Accommodation

To accommodate our growing workforce and facilitate more face-to-face colleague collaboration,
we’'re looking to relocate our office to a larger premises. Potential venues have been identified and
following approval by the Pensions Committee, the move is expected to take place in the first
quarter of 2024.

11

Page 141


https://www.lpf.org.uk/media/iqhplknp/2022-statement-of-responsible-investment-principles.pdf

1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

McCloud and The Pensions Dashboard

The McCloud judgement will introduce an additional benefit check to ensure that there’s no age
discrimination following the introduction of the career average benefit calculation. Regulations are
expected towards the end of 2023. This will require the collection of additional data on members’
past service, the introduction of additional benefit calculations, and remediation of any
underpayments. This introduces significant additional complexity and work.

The Pensions Dashboard Regulations 2022 were laid and approved by the UK government and came
into force on 12 December 2022. Between 2023 and 2025, pension schemes will be compelled to
join the ecosystem by their staging deadline, which is 30 September 2024 for public service
pensions. Pensions Dashboards will give increased transparency of expected pension benefits. The
primary impact for LPF beyond supporting its introduction, is the likely increase in member queries
from the increased visibility.

Good governance and embedding best practices
The expectations of our members, the regulators and ourselves increase each year. This requires a
continued focus on how to improve the effectiveness of everything we do.

During 2023/24 we would expect to:
= Enhance and add to existing risk management arrangements by creating a fully integrated
framework based on the following principles:
=  Focus on managing risk across the business in a proportionate and pragmatic way
= Ensure arrangements are scalable with an emphasis on investing for the future and
building resiliency
=  Reduce complexity by standardising processes wherever possible and appropriate
= Extend the annual internal audit programme to include the LPFE and LPFI entities
= Continue to improve our governance practices moving from effective towards excellence
= Continue to embed our project methodology and programme management office to bring
increased discipline and best practices in the area of change management.

12

Page 142



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

CORPORATE ENTITIES

LPFI

LPFI has developed its role and services since inception in 2016. It initially provided investment
advice to our partner funds in Fife and Falkirk and now manages equity and bond mandates for
them. There’s an expectation, subject to appropriate advice and governance, that the range and
value of funds under management for our Fife and Falkirk partners will continue to grow during
2023/4.

The growth in assets under management has been enabled by the removal of the LPFI asset cap
during 2022. During 2023, as a result of the increase in assets under management, LPFl is expected
to be recategorized by the FCA as a non-small non-interconnected (“non-SNI”) firm. Recognising that
classification and, more fully, the recent evolution in the services provided by LPFI work is underway
to review and test many of the processes and controls to ensure they remain appropriate and
continue to meet the requirements and expectations of the FCA.

Strategic options considered during 2022 include:
=  The potential extension of investment advice and investment management to new LGPS
Funds
= The use of collective investment vehicles to improve the efficiency of management for
existing clients or support extension of services to new clients
= Bringing the investment activities of LPF within the regulated entity (LPFI) with inherent
simplification of working arrangements and improved control through the regulated entity.

In each case, the LPFI Board noted that further investigation of the benefits, requirements and
implications would be required whilst noting that, with particular reference to Project Forth, there
wasn’t the capacity to undertake the necessary investigative work immediately. Despite this, the
Board was supportive in principle, particularly to the logic of LPFI undertaking the investment
activities on behalf of LPF. It’s recognised that the overriding strategic purpose of LPFl is to support
LPF in achieving its purpose for members and employers of the Fund.

The intention during 2023/24 is:

= To prepare a business case, including high level requirements and gap analysis for
consideration by both the Pensions Committee and LPFI Board for the transition of
investment management activities to LPFl under contract to LPF

= Consider an outline business case on the potential options and requirements of LPFI
extending services beyond our existing partner funds

= Develop and embed an enhanced risk framework tailored and applied to LPFI, along with
further development of the ICARA process and report, and recent assurance and audit
exercises, to ensure we continue to meet regulatory requirements and expectations

=  To continue to monitor the development of ESG/RI propositions and engage with our
partner funds on their relevance, appropriateness, and interest.

13

Page 143



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

LPFE

LPFE’s primary purpose remains to engage our current colleagues and to recruit and train colleagues
who support the activities of LPF, LPFI, and in a limited way, Falkirk Council Pension Fund. Growth in
headcount in recent years to support the increasing requirements and services has been
accompanied by increasing professionalism and capability, enabling LPF to remain at the forefront of
the LGPS sector. It’s increasingly recognised that considering LPFE as a service company rather than
an employment vehicle, can help improve governance and operational arrangements.

Like LPFI, LPFE has been reviewing and improving key systems and processes to ensure they remain
fit for purpose for the current and expected future needs of LPF. The review of 2022 and the
functional plan for 2023 highlight achievements and plans respectively.

The LPFE Board are supporting the recommendation to relocate to larger premises in 2023/4,
recognising the impacts of the limited space on daily operation and colleague engagement. The
office move was originally approved in 2019 but deferred as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
lock-down. We’re now in the process of locating and securing a suitable office space.

2023/24 also sees the introduction of stretch targets for the Senior Leadership Team. These have

been carefully chosen to encourage over-achievement in key areas with the focus in the initial year
on colleague engagement, risk management and strategic progress.

14

Page 144



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS

Operating Budget

The table below shows the Group budget for the period 2023/24 with the prior year comparison and
movement, as well as the indicative LPF business as usual 2024/25 budget and movement.

Total Group Operating Budget 2023/24 and Indicative 2024/25

Indicative Indicative

2022/23 | Movement 2023/24 | Movement Budget
2024/25
£000 £000
Employees 6,664 1,333 7,997 596 8,593
Plant and transport 278 28 306 418 724
Supplies and services 2,396 346 2,742 -53 2,689
Third party payments 1,414 105 1,519 -65 1,454
Investment managers 4,000 -150 3,850 - 3,850
fees —invoiced
Support costs 620 112 732 30 762
Capital funding 257 -60 197 4 201
Gross expenditure 15,629 1,714 17,343 930 18,273
Income — collaboration -1,749 -217 -1,966 -104 -2,070
Income — other -110 - -110 - -110
Total income -1,859 -217 -2,076 -104 -2,180
Net expenditure 13,770 1,497 15,267 826 16,093
Percentage movement 10.87% 5.4%
on 2022/23
Strategic project costs 455 738 1,193 -1,193 -
Total net planned 14,225 16,460 16,093
expenditure 2023/24

The largest component of the increased costs relates to employees. The budget assumes two newly
created roles in 2023, whilst also allowing for parent leave cover and filling existing vacancies. The
majority of the increase, however, is the result of a full year provision for roles recruited in 2022/23
to improve the resilience of the fund and pay reviews. These are in line with the recommendations
and approvals made by the LPFE Board.

The strategic cost line relates to Project Forth and the potential for an office move during the
2023/24 financial year. Further detail on this is contained in the Strategic Project Budget section.

There have been some adjustments to the 2022/23 approved budget in relation to uncontrollable
investment income and expenditure. Securities Lending income has been removed from the

Page 145



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

budgeting process as this treatment was inconsistent with that of other investment income.
Uninvoiced investment management fees, and an estimate of the performance element potentially
payable on our unlisted assets are uncontrollable, and are disclosed separately in the below budget
analysis.

Uncontrollable Costs (in the short term as reflective of current investment strategy)

Budget Budget Indicative
2022/23 Movement  2023/24 Movement

£000 £000
£000

Investment Managers Fees

- Uninvoiced Base Fees 19,323 3,277 22,600 - 22,600
- Uninvoiced Performance 9,000 - 9,000 - 9,000
Related

Investment Managers fee 10,000 5,000 15,000 - 15,000

contingency

The other area to note is the investment manager fee contingency. This has been a consistent
feature of the LPF budget process and has been retained this year. Due to the increase in the size of
the team and the fact that this contingency hasn’t been updated for a number of years, it’s seen as
prudent to increase this contingency to £15m. There’s no expectation that in-house investment
management will cease and these contingency fees be required.

Page 146



Strategic Projects Budget 2023/24

BAU Budget
2023/24
£000
Employees 7,997
Plant and transport 306
Supplies and services 2,742
Third party payments 1,519
Investment managers fees - 3,850
invoiced
Support costs 732
Capital funding 197
Gross expenditure 17,343
Income — collaboration -1,966
Income — other -110
Total income -2,076
Net expenditure 15,267
Capital expenditure 0

Uncontrollable Costs (in the short term as reflective of current investment strategy)

Project Forth
Movement

£000

1,441
-545

-545
866

0

Office
Relocation

£000

271
26

30
327
0

0

0
327

900

Investment Managers Fees - 22,600
Uninvoiced Base Fees
Uninvoiced Performance Related 9,000

1,425

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Proposed
budget
2023/24
£000
8,344
577
2,768
2,583
3,850

732
227
19,081
2,511
-110
-2,621
16,460

900

24,025

9,000

The costs included for Project Forth are solely for the year 2023/24. They include both project

operational costs in the main budget and the notional investment transition tax cost reflected in the

uncontrollable investment management fees section. Whilst the latter will only be paid on

completion of the merger, the former, by their nature, will be incurred as the project progresses.
The table highlights that a proportion of the project costs will be recharged to Falkirk (included as

“Income — collaboration”).

A pro-forma budget for 2024/25 for the merged fund incorporating the additional costs for the

transferring colleagues, assets and other costs, will be prepared and included in an updated version

of this plan once committee/council approval has been received.

A short list of three office spaces has been identified and a budget is included with the current

understanding of the costs associated for the preferred option.

The indicative 2024/25 budget assumes the completion of Forth and the relocation of LPF’s office to

new premises. All project costs have been removed and ongoing annual business as usual costs have

been included.

Page 147



Cash-flow forecast

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Cash-flow to and from a pension fund is very dependent on the profile of its membership.

Specifically, a maturing membership, where the proportion of active to deferred and pensioner

members is reducing, would be expected to see a reduction in contributions received, together with

additional outlays on payments to pensioners.

The figures in the below table consider the actual annual cash-flow of 2021/22 and the projected

2022/23 cash movements to project the expected cash in and outflows for the next five years.

2021/22

Actual
Income £000
Contributions from 194,223
Employers
Contributions from 51,055
Employees
Transfers from Other 49 894
Schemes

295,172

Expenditure

Pension Payments (187,565)
Lump Sum Retirement (51,222)
Payments

Refur\ds to Members (551)
Leaving Service

Transfers to Other

Schemes 7B
Administrative (2,859)
expenses

(247,931)
Net pension cash flow 47,241
Net investment

- 228,700
income

2022/23 2023/24 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

200,400 224,448 240,159 254,569 285,118
52,000 53,300 54,633 55,998 57,398
20,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

272,400 281,748 298,792 314,567 346,516
(196,000) (213,248) (232,014) (252,431) (274,645)
(61,500)  (64,575)  (67,804)  (71,194)  (74,754)
(500) (500) (500) (500) (500)
(6,000) (6,000) (6,000) (6,000) (6,000)
(2,900) (3,045) (3,297) (3,357) (3,524)

(266,900)
5,500

(287,368)
(5,620)

250,000 260,000

(309,515)
(10,723)

270,400

(333,482)
(18,915)

281,200

(359,423)
(12,906)

292,460

Excluding one off exercises like the bulk transfer in of an employer in 2020/21 which continued into

2021/22, LPF expects to have a negative cash flow position for the foreseeable future, whereby

pension payments exceed total contributions received.

With strategies that typically deliver relatively high income, it’s expected that investment income

will more than offset negative net pensions cash-flow with no asset sales being required to fund on

going pensioner payments.

Page 148



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

FUNCTIONAL PLANS

Each team within LPF has prepared detailed functional plans setting out their key deliverables, priorities,
and risks. The following section provides a summary of these.

Investments

The Investment team supports the Pensions Committee setting and implementing the investment
strategy. It manages a significant majority of assets internally and oversees external managers, who
also invest on our behalf.

In addition, operating through LPFI, the team manages over £1bn of assets for the Falkirk and Fife
LGPS funds, provides both funds with strategic advisory services and collaborates with two other
LGPS funds (NILGOSC and Scottish Borders) by arranging private market investments, which it does
for all five funds. The funds continue to explore areas in which they can improve efficiencies and
returns through synergies and expect to expand their collaborative activity, including alignment
activity related to Project Forth.

LPF has been a long-term advocate of Responsible Investment (RI) and promotes integration of
environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations into investment decision-making. This is
an integral part of the investment process and the investment team, directly and indirectly through
collaborative initiatives, engages with corporates and policymakers on a range of issues to influence
strategy, reduce risk and enhance sustainability. It also leads on Rl and climate change reporting
activities and obligations.

Strategic priorities for 2023/24 include:

= |mplementing the Pension Committee’s strategy and initiating an investment strategy
review project in conjunction with the 2023 Actuarial Valuation

= Onboarding new LPFI mandates for Falkirk to support alighment activities as part of Project
Forth

= Continued integration of climate-related considerations into investment decision-making,
including carbon risks and decarbonisation opportunities, as well as expanding climate-
related reporting to meet new regulatory requirements

= Reviewing and enhancing investment operational activities, including internal and external
service provider management

= Responding to an investment services review by agreeing and implementing recommended
changes and or improvements

= Implementing a front office software upgrade

= Reviewing team structure and undertaking recruitment to ensure resilience.

19

Page 149



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Operations
The Member Services teams deliver the core services to our members and employers.

These services include supporting new joiners to the fund, payment of pensions and benefits, issuing
annual benefit statements and supporting all other administration services and queries. In addition,
the team manage the relationship with the scheme’s actuarial advisors and work closely with them
on the scheme valuation, cessation and transfer valuations, and the application of the Funds’
funding strategy.

The Data & Quality team looks after data accuracy, quality of information and service. The Customer
Experience Team is responsible for simplifying and streamlining our processes, identifying digital
opportunities, responding to customer feedback, and making improvements.

The service standards they work to are set out in Appendix 2 and remain the same as 2021/22.
Maintaining PASA accreditation and the CSE award, and meeting the required regulatory standards
are the expectations from these teams.

The high-level focus for the Operations team in 2023/24 includes:

= Continuing the Digital Transformation project. Further detail of which is included in the
Project and Change section of this plan

= Customer journey mapping

= Preparation and implementation of the requirements of the McCloud judgement and the
Pensions Dashboard

=  Preparation and support for the 2023 Triennial Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March

=  Funding Strategy review

= Supporting Project Forth, working with Falkirk seeking to align working practices as much as
possible in advance of the proposed merger and the full integration and alignment after the
merger. This will also encompass overseeing the final scheme valuations for FCPF and LPF

= Gaining PASA reaccreditation

= Conducting a review of employer performance.

20

Page 150



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

IT & Change

2023 will see the IT & Change team continue to manage and build on the LPF IT service delivered by
third-party vendor Cased Dimensions, leveraging the existing service, and deploying or developing
new solutions and technologies to enhance the value gain.

The team will deliver significant support to the development of digital opportunities for member
services, Project Forth, office re-location and other new services and procurement. IT & Change will
also provide governance through ITOCG and embed the PMO, its process and methodologies. They’ll
also continue to support projects / new services and procurements with a focus on the new finance
system.

The key priorities for 2023/24 are:
=  The launch and embedding of our newly developed Information Security Management
System (ISMS)
= Supporting and responding to an Internal Audit of our information security arrangements
= External Audit ISMS against 1ISO27001
= Support the procurement of a new Risk and Compliance system
= Support data analytics, management, and classification.
= Review our IT architecture, prepare and document our future IT Strategy.

Governance, Legal, Risk & Compliance

Collectively these governance functions ensure that LPF and subsidiaries meet all corporate, legal,
and regulatory obligations. The Governance team act as a Company Secretarial function for the
Pensions Committee and subsidiary Boards and maintain the corporate policy register. The Risk and
Compliance functions maintain the risk management framework, oversee the three lines of defence
model whilst providing oversight and advisory services. Lastly the Legal function provides legal
advice and is responsible for the third-party supplier framework and contract management.

Key priorities 2023/24 include:

=  Project Forth — corporate structure design and, if approval is granted, provide legal and
regulatory support and change of control and oversight of the management of risks in
relation to the merger transition and implementation. This will include establishing new
internal audit arrangements

=  Manage the complete roll out of the Board portal

= Development and embedding of a toolkit and methodology to facilitate the risk
management framework and review, selection and implementation of the new Governance,
Risk and Compliance system to support the framework

= Review adequacy and effectiveness of monitoring arrangements

=  Working with Finance, manage the Internal Capital and Risk Assessment process and
resulting ICARA report for LPFI

21

Page 151



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

= Continue to enhance the Data Protection, Information Governance and Procurement
processes as a result of general growth, and the growth of regulation and regulatory

requirements.

Finance

The Finance function is responsible for all aspects of planning, budgeting, and reporting of LPF’s
finances. This includes preparation of the Annual Report and managing the external audit process.
Tax, maintaining the unitised valuations for the Fund, procurement and working with the custodian
Northern Trust complete the main areas of responsibility.

As with all functions, the Finance team will have a key role to play in supporting Project Forth. This
includes the integration of all legacy Falkirk financial and actuarial matters to the LPF ways of
working, and the transfer of any finance activities from the Falkirk and City of Edinburgh Councils.
This encompasses the transfer and integration of custody requirements and extending the LPF
funding and unitisation strategies to the transferring members and employers.

In addition to Project Forth, the Finance team will be focussing on:

= Co-ordination of the Strategy and Business Plan Reporting

= Implementation of the new Finance system and accounting ledger

= Integration of the supplier management database with the payment/invoicing process for
the new Finance system

= Roll out of the new budget monitoring process with increased oversight for budget holders

= Support the Investment Services review being conducted by the Risk and Compliance team

=  Preparation for the retender of Custody services with the intention for a new contract
implementation around six months post merger

= Review of manual Finance processes for efficiency gains or process automation via existing
or new software (including but not limited to the new Alteryx tool)

= |nvestment Management cost transparency and value analysis using CTl and CEM
benchmarking data

= Review of disclosure requirements for ESG and financial reporting in collaboration with the
investment team

= Preparation and support for the triennial valuation as at 31 March 2023 including liaison
with the actuary to determine the appropriate financial and demographic assumptions, and
ensuring the funding implications are suitably reflected within the resulting revised Funding
Strategy Statement

= Ongoing management of LPF group cashflow and, in particular, regular review of the LPFI
liquidity and preparation of the FCA required data in collaboration with the Risk and
Compliance team.

22

Page 152



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

People & Communications

Core deliverables of the Communications team include production and distribution of key
documents including the Annual Report, the Statement of Responsible Investment Principles,
ENGAGE ezine and the Stewardship Report. In addition, the team manages internal communications,
events, external media and the look and feel of member and employer communications.

The HR team is responsible for supporting the business in resourcing and colleague management
including reward, learning and development and the full suite of HR policies. They’re responsible for
colleague engagement and run twice annual colleague surveys to gain feedback from colleagues and
find out what is going well/ where we can make improvements, as well as facilitating the Inspire
colleague recognition awards. Office management, business continuity and health and safety also
fall under their remit.

In addition to these core deliverables, in 2023/24 the teams will be heavily involved in Project Forth.
This will include:
= Clear and comprehensive communication to all members, employers, colleagues, and other
stakeholders on the rationale and impacts of the merger. This will include the development
and branding of the new company and fund
= The transfer and integration of the Falkirk employees in to the LPF operating company
= The current intention is to retain an office presence in the Falkirk area, and the P&C team
will work with the property and IT team on the fitting out of the selected accommodation
= Taking full responsibility for Health & Safety and other People services from CEC.

Additional areas of focus for these teams will be:
= |nvestigating and rolling out a new colleague benefits platform and continuing to roll out and
embed the new HR system ‘People HR’
=  Managing the acquisition, fit out and transition to a new office location
= Updating and reviewing our HR policies.

23

Page 153



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

CEC Shared Services

City of Edinburgh Council (CEC) have three relationships with LPF. Firstly, as Administering Authority
and Scheme Manager they’re responsible in legislation for the management of the LGPS in the
Lothians. They delegate the running of the Fund to the Pensions Committee and two arm’s length
operating companies (LPFE and LPFI) in this regard. Secondly, being one of 67 contributing
employers connected to the Fund, they're the employer with the largest number of active, deferred
and pensioner members.

Lastly, they provide services to the Fund, including:
= Provision of Internal Audit services
= Provision of a finance system (ledger), payment and procurement services
= Provision of company secretarial services to support the Pensions Committee.

In addition, CEC have oversight responsibility. This, with associated advisory input, is provided by:
= The Information Governance Unit and Data Protection Officer
= |nformation Security.

In 2023/24 the expectations for these shared services are as follows:

= Internal Audit will continue to provide audit services in 2023/24 which are expected to cover
a range of processes operating within LPF, as well as a review of Project Forth. PwC will
perform the audits on behalf of the CEC IA function through an established co-source
agreement, whilst the annual audit opinion will be provided by CEC IA until new
arrangements are established with the new Project Forth entity

= The CEC Information Governance and Information Security teams will help support the
design and implementation of stand-alone frameworks for LPF. A standalone capability is
both desirable from the perspective of effective governance of LPF and will be essential on
completion of Project Forth

=  Similarly, the CEC Finance and Procurement team will be involved in both an advisory and
oversight role as LPF look to implement its own finance system, and transition to a full
independent capability.

A key element within Project Forth will therefore be to ensure that LPF have transitioned all CEC

provided services either in-house or to an agreed third-party provider, and that all appropriate
frameworks and procedures are updated accordingly.

24

Page 154



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

PROJECTS & CHANGE

The IT and Change functional plan set out the intention to introduce a Programme Management

Office and Change methodology. The latter will differentiate between projects, small change, and

non-project change activities, and will recognise that different degrees of governance and practices

will be appropriate for each.

The table below sets out the current list of formal projects.

Project Name Objective Project Delivery
Sponsor Timescale

Project Forth The proposed merger of Lothian Pension Fund with  CEO (David 2023/24
Falkirk Council Pension Fund and the transitiontoa Vallery)
new legal form and governance structure for the
combined fund.
Finance Having reviewed the current finance system and CFO (John Q3 2023
Systems documented procedures, procure a fit for purpose,  Burns)
tailored and flexible solution to best meet pension
funds’ needs, with revised procedures as required.
Digital To ensure the digital service offering for both COO (Karlynn ~ 2023/24
Transformation members and employers is class leading for the Sokoluk)
pensions industry.
McCloud Ensure rectification of historic LGPS age COO (Karlynn ~ 2023/24
discrimination in accordance with (future) Sokoluk)
regulations and timetable, together with requisite
member communications.
Climate To satisfy annual reporting requirements and SRIP ClO (Bruce 2023/24
Disclosure and  revisions, which involves reviewing existing and Miller)
Strategy prospective regulations, data requirements, data
Project suppliers, budget implications, including time
resource, and deciding on what commitments can
and should be made.
Pensions Support the introduction of the UK Government’s COO (Karlynn ~ 2023/4
Dashboard Pension Dashboard, working with our pensions Sokoluk)
administration software supplier to facilitate data
submission and address member servicing
requirements.
Multi-fund Develop business cases and processes to support COO (Karlynn  2023/24
Employers employers who are considering or might benefit Sokoluk) and
from consolidation from participating in multiple CFO (John
LGPS funds. Burns)
ORGANISATIONAL DESIGN

Page 155



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

The headcount of LPF increased by 17 over 2022. We recruited a Chief Operating Officer and a new
Chief Risk Officer taking the opportunity to reorganise both functions to create more focussed

teams.

The table below shows the expected evolution of full-time equivalent roles (FTE) over 2023. It

assumes the current functional structure is maintained over this period.

Team, role/Full Time Equivalent (FTE) mm

CEO
Governance
Legal
Ccoo
IT and Change
Member Services
Employer Services
Customer Experience and Data Quality
CFO
Finance
(ol[0)
Investment Professionals
Investment Operations
CRO
Risk & Compliance
CPO
People
Communications
Total

92.9

97.9

FTE is expected to increase during 2023 within Risk and Compliance, Finance, Investments and
Member Services with a combination of new roles and filling existing vacancies.

*These figures exclude the impact of the potential merger and integration with Falkirk (+20 FTE).

Page 156



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

RISKS

LPF maintains a comprehensive group wide risk register and reports on this to the Pensions Committee
and its Audit Sub-Committee and to each of the LPFE and LPFI Boards. The scope of Internal Audit will be
extended to include LPFE and LPFI in 2023/24, further improving the control environment.

The risk register and reports issued to the Boards and Committee have been reviewed to reflect this
business plan and the risks inherent in it.

No new risks have been added to the risk register based on the plans set out and these risks being
inherent to the fund are not repeated here. However, the plans as proposed bring increased risk as set
out below.

Business Plan Risks

Management stretch and resource risk is recognised as the key risk. In particular, seeking to deliver
Project Forth alongside other business changes and maintaining appropriate focus on ‘business as
usual’. Stretch in the context of project, change and assurance activities is being closely monitored, with
organisational plans, succession plans and recruitment all recently reviewed and approved by the LPFE
Board. Project Steering Groups, the LPF SLT and LPFE Board continue to actively monitor this risk and
will take appropriate action as required.

Culture and engagement risk remains moderate due to the hybrid working model which promotes part
time home working. The increase of headcount during 2022 has contributed to this risk, particularly as
new employees have been onboarded, perhaps with limited opportunities to meet new colleagues face
to face or across the broader business, and the pressure on the office space has also exacerbated this.
Ongoing communication with team calls, all colleague briefings and away days have helped to bring
colleagues together remotely and in person and created opportunities to meet peers and network more
widely. The planned office move in 2023/24 will also significantly mitigate this risk by delivering a more
effective and comfortable office environment with increased capacity to allow more staff to be
accommodated at any one time.

“Change fatigue” has also been raised as a potential risk, largely driven by the delays to Project Forth as
well as the characteristics noted above regarding the risks around resource stretch and culture and
engagement. Strong leadership, clear communication and rigorous prioritisation are key to managing
this, and likewise the LPF SLT and LPFE board will keep this under review.

Regulatory risk has slightly elevated. This is consistent with LPF’s values, particularly regarding
continuous improvement, and reflects the intention to enhance current arrangements around
investment services and risk management which will take into account the changes across LPF during
the last few years. Plans have been drafted to facilitate this improvement programme and
enhancements will be delivered during 2023 and into 2024.

27

Page 157



1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Project Risks

= Each of the projects set out in this plan and any that are added to the change programme will
have project specific risk registers and a statement of project risk appetite. Improved project risk
reporting will continue to evolve through the creation of the Project Office.

28

Page 158



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

APPENDIX 1: KEY PERFORMANCE METRICS

DEVELOP AND DELIVER A MEMBER AND EMPLOYER PROPOSITION FOR
X

SERVICE EXCELLENCE

Customer Satisfaction, as measured by employers and members through survey results > 90%

>92% of critical pensions administration work completed within standards

Data Quality, as defined by the Pensions Regulator achieve “common” and “conditional” data
scores in excess of 95% and 95% respectively. The data is assessed as at 31 August 2023
(members’ Annual Benefit Statements)

The Fund operates within the approved budget

The audit of the Annual Report is unqualified

%@ EARN AN APPROPRIATE RISK ADJUSTED INVESTMENT RETURN AS

1= RESPONSIBLE INVESTORS

Rolling 10-year fund return is >+5% pa unless the benchmark is <+5%pa, in which case, the
relative return is positive
Publish ENGAGE, Revised SIP and SRIP

NaSo” RISK, GOVERNANCE, LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORKS

("
N

Mandatory LMS training completion rate >90%

igp} ACHIEVE GREATNESS IN OUR PEOPLE, TEAMS, AND CULTURE

The Employee Engagement index KPI of 70% or above

Less than 10% unplanned employee turnover

Page 159



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

APPENDIX 2: SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

P

Monthly pensioner payroll paid on time 100%
Acknowledge the death of a member to next of kin within 5 working days 96%
Employer contribution paid within 19 days of month end

99%
Estimate requested by employer of retirement benefits within 10 working days 91%
Notification of dependant benefits within 5 working days of receiving all
necessary paperwork 96%
Notify early leavers entitled to deferred benefits of their rights and options
within 10 days of being informed of end of pensionable service 91%
Notify members holding more than 3 months, but less than 2 years’ service, of
their options at leaving. As there is a one month and a day lying period, the
target is within 10 days of the end of the lying period or after the employer
providing full leaving information if later 85%
Pay a refund of contributions within 7 working days of receiving the completed
declaration and bank detail form 91%
Pay any lump sum death grant within 7 working days of receipt of the
appropriate documentation 96%
Pay lump sum retirement grant within 7 working days of receiving all the
information we need from the member 96%
Payment of CETV within 20 working days of receiving all completed transfer
out forms 96%
Pension Admin Workflow — Non-key Procedures Performance 75%
Proportion of critical pensions administration work completed within
standards — individual performance within this indicator is shown below 92%
Proportion of members receiving a benefit statement by August 100%
Provide a maximum of one guaranteed Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
within 10 working days of receiving a request 91%
Provide new members with scheme information within 20 working days of
getting details from employer 100%
Provide transfer-in quote within 10 working days of receiving the Cash
Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) from member’s previous pension provider 96%
Respond in writing within 20 working days to formal complaints that have
escalated from frontline resolution, or recorded directly as an investigation 96%
Level of Sickness Absence <4%
A minimum of two days training for all staff for the year 100%

Page 160



Agenda Iltem 6.8

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

2022/23 Business Plan and Budget Update

Item number 6.8

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Committee (Committee) is requested to:

11 note progress of the Fund against the 2022-23 Strategy and Business Plan, together
with specific updates on:

e performance indicators
e membership and cashflow monitoring
e investment strategy update

1.2 approve the extension of the global custody services contract with The Northern
Trust Company, by way of a waiver of the Council’s Contract Standing Orders, for the
period from 1 October 2023 to 30 September 2024 (see paragraph 4.) and approve
the extension of services to include performance measurement for the period 1 July
2023 to 30 September 2024 as the result of the exit of our current supplier from the
market (see paragraph 4.).

David Vallery
Chief Executive Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

Contact: John Burns, Chief Finance Officer, Lothian Pension Fund
Jason Koumides, Financial Controller, Lothian Pension Fund

E-mail:  |pfgovernancecomms®@Ipf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 161


mailto:lpfgovernancecomms@lpf.org.uk

2022/23 Business Plan and Budget Update

2. Executive Summary

2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on progress against the 2022-2023
Business Plan, performance indicators and the actions to enable the Fund to meet its
key objectives.

3. Background

3.1 The 2022-2023 Business Plan centres around four broadly defined strategic goals,
each with more detailed objectives and accompanying targets and measures to allow
us to monitor our progress and identify where interventions may be required.

3.2 They are:

e Develop and deliver a member and employer proposition for service
excellence

e Earn an appropriate risk adjusted investment return as responsible investors

e Extend collaboration and services to existing partners and deepen where
possible

e Achieve greatness in our people, teams and culture

3.3 The plan set out the work plans, budget and targets for 2022-23 and formed the base
line against which performance would be and has been judged.

4. Main Report

41 Progress of particular note made against the 2022-2023 Business Plan since the last
update to Committee is shown below.

Performance Indicators

4.2 Committee will recall a wider range of performance indicators was set out in the
Business Plan 2022-2023. These including a range of new measures as well as those
key indicators from previous years. The Appendix shows the quarterly and year to
date for the key indicators. Items of note include:

Pension Administration performance indicators

4.3 Overall, we are achieving our overall critical performance target and categories of
key performance indicators. We have seen some fluctuations in volumes for some of
our key categories of service requiring the operational managers to monitor the

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 162



work demands and adapt our available resources to meet these. To deliver our
highest standards of service, we have been undertaking further upskilling sessions
across the teams so that we can meet the levels of demand, we have increased our
scalability by developing a flexible resource pool and training our new recruits on
specific work types so that they can contribute earlier towards the operational
performance of the teams. We have also been developing our digital proposition to
allow members to access their information on a self-service basis and in turn,
providing an additional choice of channel for our them that is flexible and easy to
use.

4.4 Our Chief Operating Officer has introduced a new Customer Experience Team into
the operating model which will be focused on improving the customer experience,
simplifying, and streamlining processes whilst identifying further opportunities for
digital enhancements. A roadmap of key moments that matter and customer journey
reviews will take place throughout this business year to ensure we are adding value
in every interaction and listening to the voice of our customers using a variety of
feedback mechanisms.

Accreditation

4.5 Following the yearly review on 16 March 2022 Lothian Pension Fund successfully
retained the Customer Service Excellence Standard. CSE has four ratings —
noncompliant, partial compliant, compliant, or compliant plus. The assessor

awarded us the highest standard of compliant plus in all categories: (i) Engage and
Involve Customers (ii) Corporate Commitment to Service Delivery (iii) Information
Channels and (iv) Beneficial Partnerships. We are currently in the process of
finalising this year's submission and we will conclude this by the end of March.

Digital transformation of services

4.6 Active, deferred, and early leavers (retirements, refunds and transfers out to a new
pension provider) members can now complete the entire process through their My
Pension Online account. Our largest work volumes are processing retirements and
we have significantly reduced the average turnaround time to send retirement
information and process the pension payments of the MSS (Member Self Service)
online retirements from an average of 70 days when paper based down to just 7
days online. We now use biometric facial recognition for our overseas pensioners in
their annual check providing them the opportunity to complete this themselves by
uploading documents for proof of identity requirements, removing the need for
them to travel to have certificates and in person authentication completed at a local
Western Union branch. In addition, we will soon assist next of kin when notifying us
of a bereavement by enabling them to do this via uploading documents online as
well as providing all the information they need should they prefer not to speak to
someone at such a difficult time.

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3

PENSION FUND Page 163


https://www.customerserviceexcellence.uk.com/about-the-standard/customer-service-excellence-standard/

McCloud

4.7  The McCloud remedy seeks to rectify the unlawful discrimination which occurred
when the LGPS (Local Government Pension Scheme) (Scotland) changed from a final
salary scheme to a Career Average scheme on 1 April 2015. When the scheme
changed, a protection called the underpin was put in place to protect those
approaching retirement. This was deemed unlawful and as a result the underpin
protection now applies to a larger group of members. For these members we must
check that the final salary benefits the member would have received, had the
scheme not changed, are not greater than the Career Average benefits for the same
period. Where the final salary benefits are greater, an underpin amount will be
applied to the members benefits. The remedy can cover both active members and
those who have left the scheme. Work has begun on prepping data requests to send
to employers. The Fund is required to validate the service histories we hold for
members with what their employers hold. This will ensure that the underpin
calculation is accurate. The Fund is also receiving updates to the pensions
administrations software, delivered by Heywood, to ensure the relevant tools are in
place to deliver the McCloud remedy. These so far include - a report to identify those
members in scope, the McCloud rectification screen, and the age 65 final pay
capture on i-connect and delivery of a date validation dashboard into our reporting
tool insights.

Pensions Dashboard Programme

4.8 The UK Government established the Pensions Dashboard Programme to develop the
UK pensions dashboard ecosystem. Their vision is “to enable individuals to access
their pensions information online, securely and all in one place, thereby supporting
better planning for retirement and growing financial well-being.” Lothian Pension
Fund has provided responses to several consultations through membership with the
Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association. Lothian Pension Fund, as a data provider,
will be compelled to supply data to the ecosystem by the proposed date of
September 2024. An Integrated Service Provider will be needed to facilitate the
Funds connection to the Pensions Dashboard ecosystem and an exercise to procure
this service is due to commence.

The LGPS Amendment Regulations 2022

4.9  As previously reported to Pensions Committee in September 2022, amendment
regulations introduced further flexibilities to employers exiting the Scheme. The fund
amended its Funding Strategy Statement to set out policies on the operation of
these flexibilities. As required under the regulations, a consultation exercise was
carried out the with fund employers. No responses were received.

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 4

PENSION FUND Page 164



Actuarial Valuation

4.10 The next triennial valuation of the funds (Lothian Pension Fund and Scottish Homes
Pension Fund) will take place as at 31 March 2023. A preparatory meeting has taken
place with the fund actuary to discuss the project, and a training online seminar has
been held with employers — ‘The Importance of Data’. Further updates will be
provided to Committee during this year.

Membership and Cashflow monitoring

411 Tables detailing the cashflows as at the end of December 2022 and projections for
the financial year are shown in Appendix 1. These have been prepared on a cashflow
basis (compared to the accruals basis of the year-end financial statements and
budget projections).

4.12 Ingeneral, 2022/23 projected cashflows are in line with last year's actuals. As is
expected with Lothian Pension Funds’ maturing membership profile, pensioner
payments are expected to increase over the period as pensioner numbers grow. The
largest movement against prior relates to transfers from other schemes. 2021
included a one-off event where an employer, Visit Scotland, centralised its
membership into Lothian Pension Fund. A majority of this transfer was reflected in
the 2020/21 period, however due to the late receipt of one of the payment tranches,
some of this income is reflected in the 2021/22 figures.

4.13 Excluding one off exercises like the Visit Scotland transfer, for the foreseeable future
Lothian Pension Fund expects to have a negative cash flow position, whereby
pension payments exceed total contributions received. As current levels of
investment income provide multiple cover for negative net pensions cash flow. No
asset sales will be required for the foreseeable future to fund on going pensioner
payments.

Investment Strategy Update

4.14 The Fund’s main investment strategy is presented in the table below. The target
allocations and permitted ranges were agreed by the Pensions Committee in June
2021, and this long-term strategy is expected to remain in place until at least the
next actuarial valuation in 2023 when it will be reviewed again. The actual allocations
and their deviations from target are the latest estimates on 17 February 2023.

LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 5

PENSION FUND Page 165



Main Strategy Percentages

Policy Group Range  Target Actual Deviation
Equities 50-70 60 60.6 0.6
Real Assets 10-30 20 19.9 -0.1
Non Gilt Debt 0-20 10 6.5 -3.5
LDI (Gilts) 0-20 10 8.4 -1.6
Cash 0-15 0 4.7 4.7
TOTAL 100 100.0 0.0

4.15 The policy group allocations, which remain comfortably within the permitted ranges,
are monitored by the internal team with additional oversight by the Joint Investment
Strategy Panel (JISP), which meets at least quarterly.

4.16 There are several reasons for the deviations from target. These include market
movements and the liquidity of specific investments as well as deliberate overweight
or underweight positions.

4.17 The underweight positions in Non-Gilt Debt and LDI and the overweight position in
Cash reflect the assessment that bond prices are vulnerable to increasing inflation
expectations. That vulnerability was exposed in dramatic fashion last September
when some funds with leveraged positions were forced to raise collateral as interest
rates rose quickly. With real yields on UK gilts back in positive territory, the Fund
bought into this weakness and reduced the underweight position in the LDI policy
group, which is entirely comprised of UK gilts (without any borrowing involved).

4.18 The only other area to highlight in terms of transactional activity is in the Real Assets
policy group for which infrastructure and property purchases have been concluded
over the last few months. Cash has declined from over 7% to under 5%.

4.19 The Fund’s advisers continue to describe the investment backdrop as “challenging”.
This is a function of prospective volatility in inflation, rising interest rates,
geopolitical uncertainties, and redirection of resources required to mitigate climate-
related impacts. Many asset valuations remain at the high end of historical ranges.

Stewardship

4,20 In October 2022, the Pensions Committee reviewed the Fund’s submission to the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) to remain a signatory to its Stewardship Code. In
February 2023, the FRC confirmed that the submission had been successful. The
Fund’s Stewardship Report is published on the Fund’s website.

4.21 To retain signatory status, the Fund must file an Annual Stewardship Report for
assessment, which the asset owner’s governing body has reviewed. This year, the
Pensions Committee will be asked to review the updated report in September rather
than October.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 6
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 166



4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

The Fund had planned to publish issue 6 of its investment e-zine, ENGAGE, during
the second half of 2022. Due to resource constraints, this was delayed until early
2023, but has now been published to the Fund’s website. It covers a brief review of
investment markets in 2022, a responsible investment update, an article on how the
Fund integrates ESG considerations into investment decisions and news of an award-
winning initiative by the internal property team.

Northern Trust Contract

As the committee has been previously notified, the Fund was in the process of
preparing a procurement call-off award of contract for global custody services from a
National LGPS framework operated by Norfolk County Council. The Fund intended to
jointly procure services alongside its collaborative partners, Falkirk and Fife.

Due to Project Forth and the potential material impact that the restructuring could
have on the procurement exercise, committee approved the extension of the
existing contract by waiver to 1 October 2023 on the expectation that the merger
would take place on 31 March 2023.

The Fund is seeking approval to revise the proposed procurement timetable to
postpone a new custody services contract coming into effect until 1 October 2024
(assuming merger date 31 March 2024).

The Fund is also seeking approval by waiver to add Performance Measurement to
the services provided by Northern Trust. Our current provider Portfolio Evaluation
notified us of its intension to exit the market in June 2023.

In recent years the market for Investment Performance Measurement has evolved,
and it is typically now seen as an add on service to custody services. This was already
becoming evident at the time of the last Performance Measurement procurement
exercise in 2016.

The Performance Measurement service can, therefore, be expected to be another
element in the Fund’s future Custody procurement exercise to ensure appropriate
competition.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 7

Page 167



5. Financial impact

5.1  Asummary of the projected and year-to-date financial outturn compared to the
approved budget for 2022/23 is shown in the table below:

2022/23

Approved Projected | Projected Budget Actualto Variance

Budget Outturn | Variance to date date to date
Category £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Employees 7,126 7,126 - 5,345 5,151 (194)
Transport & Premises 278 260 (18) 209 199 (10)
Supplies & Services 2,396 2,241 (155) 1,797 1,748 (49)
Investmeni.: LRI 4,000 3,400 (600) 3,000 2,233 (767)
Fees - Invoiced
InVEStme,nt I\/!anagers 20,725 20,725 - 15,544 15,544 -
Fees - Uninvoiced
G U IR R 1,727 1,550 (177) 1,295 1,056 (239)
Payments
Central Support Costs 620 620 - 465 458 (7)
Depreciation 257 275 18 193 156 (37)

Gross Expenditure 37,129 36,197 (CEY)) 27,848 26,545 (1.303)

income | (2579)

Total Cost to the Funds 34,550 33,810 (740) 25,914 25,523 (391)

5.2 The financial outturn includes year to date budget, actual expenditure and variance
as at the end of December 2022. Year to date actual expenditure includes provision
for services incurred but for which no invoice has yet been received.

5.3 The projection shows an underspend of approximately £740k. The key variances
against budget are:

e Employees — Cautious forecasting shows spend expected to be in line with
budget for year.

e Investment Management Fees -Invoiced - £600k underspend. Current market
values below figures budgeted and £50m divestment from Nordea mandate
took place in July.

e Supplies & Services - £155k underspend. System costs, including potential
new finance ledger, are expected to be significantly below budget.

e Other Third-Party Payments - £177k underspend. Represents independent
investment advisor and investment research costs being lower than originally
budgeted.

e Depreciation - £18k overspend. Decision taken to write off the Atria
refurbishment costs over 2022/23 -2023/24 financial year, with potential of

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 8
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 168



office move. This is offset by the new finance system being less than originally
budgeted.

e Income - £192k under budget. As LPFI operates a cost sharing mechanism
with collaborative partners underspends in expenses result in lower
recharges to clients. This coupled with delays in the expected roll out of
addition investment mandates has led to a lower than budgeted income for
the year.

5.4  Un-invoiced expenditure (i.e. investment management costs deducted from capital)
is assumed to be in-line with budget. There has been no change to the investment
strategy for the period, on which the budgeted figures are based. The Fund
continues its efforts to enhance the monitoring of these fees and is working with
managers to improve the transparency of these charges.

5.5 The value of the contract extension with Northern Trust is estimated to be £620,000.
The extension period best aligns the timing of future procurement to capture
anticipated sizeable scale economies.

6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1  The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the Fund and they are invited to comment on the relevant
matters at Committee meetings.

7. Background reading/external references

7.1 LPF Strategy and Business Plan 2022/23

7.2 LPF Investment Strategy

7.3 Statement of Investment Principles

7.4 Stewardship Code

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 — Business Plan Performance Indicators and Forecast Cashflow

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 9
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 169


https://www.lpf.org.uk/media/tuqfhrhm/lpf-strategy-business-plan-2022-2023-external-version-july-2022.pdf
https://www.lpf.org.uk/investments/strategy/
https://www.lpf.org.uk/media/5bsgfknt/2021_07_21_statement_of_investment_principles___final.pdf
https://www.lpf.org.uk/media/y4df2xoh/lpf_the_stewardship_report_2021___accessible___04_11_2021__1_.pdf

Appendix 1

11
LOTHIAN

PEMSION FUMD

Business Plan Performance Indicators

and Forecast Cashflow

Pensions Committee
23 March 2023



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Key Performance Metrics — Targets & Actual Performance 2022/23

Q1 Q2 Q3 Target Status
April to July to Oct to Dec
June Sept
Customer Satisfaction, as measured by employers 95.8% 93.9% 93.9% 90% @
0,
and rtr;‘emlt;.ers through survey results > 90% (12 (Year to date
month rolling) 93.9%)
o)
>92% of critical pensions administration work 98.5%
completed within standards 98.5% 95.9% (Year to date 92% @
97.7%)
Data Quality, as defined by the Pensions
Regulator achieve “common” and “conditional” @
data scores in excess of 95% and 95% Pass Pass
respectively. The data is assessed as at 31 August
2022 (members’ Annual Benefit Statements)
The Fund operates within the approved budget Within
Within Within | (Yeartodate | \\ipin V)
Within
The audit of the Annual Report is unqualified N
Unqualified Unqualified @
- - 0 Pass
Rolling 10-year fund return is >+5% pa unless the
benchmark is <+5%pa, in which case, the relative Pass Pass (Year to date Pass @
return is positive Pass)
Publish ENGAGE, Revised SIP and SRIP Fail
Pass Pass (Year to date Pass @
Pass)
The Employee Engagement index KPI of 70% or 79%
(o)
Lo 76% 79% (Year to date 70% @
79%)
Less than 10% unplanned employee turnover 6.6%
8.6% 5.8% (Year to date 10% @
6.6%)
Page 2 of 8

Page 171




1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Service Performance Indicators — Targets & Actual Performance 2022/23

Q1 Q2 Q3 Target Status
April to July to Oct to Dec
June Sept
Monthly Pension Payroll paid on time (Servicel) 100% 100% 100% Yes @
(Year to date

100%)
Acknowledge the death of a member to next of 98.01%
kin within 5 working days. (Service2) 95.7% 97.5% (Year to date 96% @

97.1%)
st el ottt .

Y 99.9% 99.9% | (Yeartodate | 99.00%

99.9%)
Estimate requested by employer of retirement 100%
benefits within 10 working days. (Service4) 100% 100% (Year to date 91% @

100%)
Notification of dependant benefits within 5 95.6%
working days of receiving all necessary 96.2% 98.3% (Year to date 96% @
paperwork. (Service5) 96.6%)
Notify early leavers entitled to deferred benefits 97.7%
of their rights and options within 10 days of being 96.2% 97.1% (Year to date 91% @
informed of end of pensionable service. (Service6) 97.1%)
Notify members holding more than 3 months, but
less than 2 year service, of their options at 97.4%
leaving. Target is W|th|r-1 10 days of the end of the 92.4% 94.2% (Vear to date 85% @
one month and a day lying period or after the

. . .. . 96.3%)
employer providing full leaving information if
later.(Service7)
Pay a refund of contributions within 7 working 97.0%
days of receiving the completed declaration and 99.2% 98.8% (Year to date 91% @
bank detail form. (Service8) 98.3%)
Pay any lump sum death grant within 7 working 100%
days of receipt of the appropriate documentation. 100% 100% (Year to date 96% @
(Service9) 100%)
Pay lump sum retirement grant within 7 working 98.2%
days of receiving all the information we need 99.2% 97.8% (Year to date 96% @
from the member. (Service10) 98.4%)
Payment of CETV within 20 working days of 94.4%
receiving all completed transfer out forms. 97.9% 100% (Year to date 96% @
(Service11) 97.2%)
Page 3 of 8

Page 172




LOTHIAN
PENSION FUND
Ql Q2 Q3 Target Status
April to July to Oct to Dec
June Sept
Pension Admin Workflow - Non Key Procedures 75.4%
Performance. (Servicel2) 79.0% 76.9% (Year to date 75% @
77.0%)
Proportion Of Members Receiving A Benefit
Statement By 31st August (Servicel3) 100% 100% @
Provide a maximum of one guaranteed Cash 99.6%
Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) within 10 100% 100% (Year to date 91% @
working days of receiving a request. (Service14) 99.8%)
Provide new members with scheme information 99.7%
within 20 working days of getting details from 100% 92.8% (Year to date 96% @
employer (Service15) 97.6%)
Provide transfer-in quote within 10 working days 100%
of receiving the Cash Equivalent Transfer Value 90% 100% (Year to date 96% @
(CETV) from member’s previous pension provider. 97.4%)
(Servicels6)
Respond In Writing Within 20 Working Days To 100%
Formal Complaints That Have Escalated From 100% 100% (Year to date 100% @
Frontline Resolution, Or Recorded Directly As An 100%)
Investigation (Servicel7)
o)
Level of sickness absence (Service18) 2.1% 4% @
1.8% 2.0%
(Year to date
2.6%)
A minimum of twenty hours training for all staff 27% 47% 80% 100% A
for the year (Servicel9) (Year to date
72%)
Page 4 of 8

Page 173




1]
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Projects & Change — Status Update 2022/23

The table below provides an update on progress made against the formal projects laid out in the

2022-23 Strategy and Business Plan -

Project Name

Objective

Update

Status

Project Forth

The proposed merger of Lothian Pension Fund
with Falkirk Council Pension Fund and the
transition to a new legal form and governance
structure for the combined fund.

Project Lead - CEO (David Vallery)

Timescale — 2022/23

On track noting agreed change in
completion date. Detailed updated
provided in additional report.

v

Having reviewed the current finance system

Finance .

Systems and documented procedures, procure a fit for Procurement process complete,
purpose, tailored and flexible solution to best and preferred system passed initial
meet pension funds’ needs, with revised assurance testing. Onboarding of
procedures as required. new system has commenced which @
Project Lead - CFO (John Burns) will continue into 2023/24 financial
Timescale — Q2 2023 year.

Digital Progress made in developing

Transformation

To ensure the digital service offering for both
members and employers is class leading for the
pensions industry

Project Lead - COO (Karlynn Sokoluk)
Timescale — 2022/23

member self-service processing,
significantly reducing the time to
conclude these including
retirement through to payment.
Facial recognition introduced for
overseas pensioners annual checks
as part of our governance
requirements. Next of Kin
notifications can now be done via
website and documents uploaded
directly onto our system.

Data requests issued to smaller

McCloud L .
I S employers to establish issues with
Ensure rectification of historic LGPS age . . o
e . data criteria required for validation

discrimination in accordance with (future) . e .

. . ) prior to rectification work in the

regulations and timetable, together with . .

. . future. Engaging with employers to
requisite member communications. . . . . @
. provide them with guidance in

Project Lead - COO (Karlynn Sokoluk) . .

Timescale — 2023/24 undertaking this work. New
insights tool Feb 23 to assist with
analysis of data and provide report
functionality.

. The objective of the project is to review and
Climate S Lo

- agree the SRIP, which involves reviewing . .
Disclosure and existing and prospective regulations, data Gap analysis undertaken looking at
Strategy Project g prosp & ’ differences between current

requirements, data suppliers, implication on
budget, including time resource, and deciding

on what commitments can and should be made.

Project Lead - CIO (Bruce Miller)
Timescale — 2022

policies and expected climate
disclosure requirements. Given the
pace of regulatory change, project
will extend into 2023 and beyond.
SRIP amended for review by
Committee in December 2022.

Page 174

Page 5 of 8




11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Project Name

Objective

Update

Status

Liaising with Heywood to

Pensions Support the introduction of the UK otentially participate in beta
Dashboard Government’s Pension Dashboard, working P ) yp P e
. . . . testing once relevant specification
with our pensions administration software . .
. . . details are approved. Progressing
supplier to facilitate data submission and ) . @
.. . options of our ISP provider to
address member servicing requirements. connect to the ecosvstem with
Project Lead - COO (Karlynn Sokoluk) security of our memyber data a ke
Timescale — 2023/24 .y y
requirement.
LPF Website Introdu‘ce a smg.le wgb5|te, consolidating f';mfj
extending functionality from the three existing
websites. Complete @
Project Lead - CPO (Helen Honeyman)
Timescale — 2022
Information Review and revise the LPF |r.1f.ormat|on Enhanced data protection policies
governance framework, policies and procedures
Governance ‘ : and related procedures have been
including response to the CEC/IGU . .
Improvement . . . . implemented, and LPF-wide data
recommendations relating to the IT Migration . . .
Plan o protection training was carried out. @
project in 2021. Further training and establishin
Project Lead - CRO (Kerry Thirkell) . g. . &
Timescale — 2022 regular monitoring is expected to
be carried out in Q1 2022.
IT Security Im.plement the. recorpmendatlons of the 2021 Good progress being made.
Improvement Bridwell Security review. Complete implementation of full
Project Lead - Head of IT (Anne Mitchell) . . @
Plan suite of recommendations and

Timescale — 2022/2023

further test/monitoring in Q1 2023.

Page 175

Page 6 of 8



11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND
Membership and Cashflow Monitoring as at 31 December 2022

Lothian Pension Fund

2022/23

2021/22

2022/23

Projected

Actual Income YTD

£7000 £000 £7000

(264,774)

6,005

Net Additions/(Deductions) From Dealings with
Members

Page 176

(212,249)

(21,927)

200,181 | Contributions from Employers 144,096 210,500
53,054 | Contributions from Employees 41,337 55,000
17,544 | Transfers from Other Schemes 4,889 7,000

270,779 190,322 273,700

Expenditure
(195,116) | Pension Payments (153,953) (206,000)
(60,453) | Lump Sum Retirement Payments (45,546) (66,000)
(531) | Refunds to Members Leaving Service (616) (830)
(5,874) | Transfers to Other Schemes (9,884) (13,000)
(2,800) | Administrative expenses (2,250) (3,000)

(288,830)

(16,330)

Page 7 of 8




11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Scottish Homes Pension Fund

2021/22

Actual

£'000

90

Income

Administration Charge

Expenditure

2022/23

YTD

£'000

90

2022/23
Projected

£'000

90

(6,959)

(6,869)

Net Additions/(Deductions) From Dealings with
Members

Page 177

(5,349)

(5,259)

(6,360) | Pension Payments (4,699) (6,300)
(546) | Lump Sum Retirement Payments (565) (750)

- | Transfers to Other Schemes (27) (100)

(53) | Administrative expenses (68) (90)

(7,240)

(7,150)

Page 8 of 8




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6.9

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

Administering Authority Discretions Policy

Item number 6.9

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Committee (Committee) is requested to:

1.1 Approve the draft revised Administering Authority discretions policy.

Karlynn Sokoluk
Chief Operating Officer, Lothian Pension Fund
Erin Savage, Senior Employer Relationship Officer

E-mail: Ipfgovernancecomms@|pf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 1
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND Page 179



Administering Authority Discretions Policy

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

Committee are requested to approve an addition to the administering authority
discretions policy.

This relates to early payment of deferred benefits on ill-health grounds, in particular
cases where the member is terminally ill and the priority is to ensure that benefits
can be paid to the member quickly.

Background

31

3.2

33

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2018, allow for
certain decisions to be made by the administering authority, mainly in relation to
operational matters. The policy statement is kept under review and is published on
the Fund’s website.

The current administering authority discretions policy was approved by Committee
in March 2020.

In addition to the administering authority discretions policy, each scheme employer
is also required to put in place a policy setting out how they will exercise certain
other discretions.

Main Report

4.1

4.2

4.3

LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

The decision to award ill-health benefits to a deferred members is made by the
administering authority. The Scottish Ministers have published guidance on how this
decision should be made. The guidance sets out matters that should be considered,
including assessment of relevant medical evidence.

Further, the regulations require that a certificate must be obtained by an
independent registered medical practitioner (IRMP), who holds specific qualifications
in occupational medicine. The certificate confirms that the member meets the
criteria set out in the regulations to qualify for ill-health retirement.

In the vast majority of cases, this process will be sufficient, however following
discussions with other administering authorities and member experience, it is
recognised that this process is not necessarily suitable for deferred members who
are terminally ill. Delays in evidence being provided to the IRMP or in arranging an

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 2

Page 180



4.4

4.5

4.6

appointment can therefore result in a delay to benefits being paid out, which can be
particularly detrimental in these cases.

Funds officers have already engaged with the IRMP to put in place a ‘fast-track’
appointment process for such cases, but in some cases the fund will receive
certification (DS1500) confirming a terminal diagnosis as part of medical evidence
submitted. On this basis, the relevant regulatory conditions will be satisfied, there is
no requirement to obtain a further certificate from an IRMP.

An additional provision, (item 52) has been added to the discretions policy to
confirm this approach.

The draft revised discretions policy is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

Financial impact

51

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1

6.2
6.3

The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the fund and they are invited to comment on the relevant matters
at Committee meetings.

Regular review of the discretion policy is integral to good governance.

There are no adverse health and safety, governance, compliance or regulatory
implications as a result of this report.

Background reading/external references

7.1

8.

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Draft revised Administering Authority Policy Statement.

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023 Page 3

Page 181



28T abed

Lothian Pension Fund
Pensions Discretions Policy Appendix 1

This is the Pensions Discretions Policy of Lothian Pension Fund (“the Fund”). It is prepared and maintained by the City of Edinburgh Council,
the Administering Authority for the Fund. This statement was agreed by the Pensions Committee on 23 March 2023.

Lothian Pension Fund’s policy where discretion is applicable is shown in the table below. Where further discretion is required, officers’ over-
riding priority will be to act in the best the interests of the Fund by taking into account advice (where applicable) and rulings on similar cases
from the Pensions Ombudsman.

Local Government Pension Scheme

Administering Authority Discretions/Decisions Current Policy

Whether to agree to an admission agreement with a body applying to be an

1 admission body.

2 Agree terms of admission agreement

3 Whether to agree to an admission agreement with a NHS Scheme employing
authority.

Whether to terminate a transferee admission agreement in the event of
e insolvency, winding up or liguidation of the body;
4 e breach of its obligations under the admission agreement;
o withdrawal of approval by HMRC to participate in the scheme; and
e failure to pay over sums due to the Fund within a reasonable period of being
requested to do so.

5 Agree method for paying additional pension with employer Funding Strateqy Statement

6 Whether to set up a separate admission agreement fund.

7 Decide on Funding Strategy for inclusion in funding strategy statement for approval
by Pensions Committee.

8 Whether to obtain revision of employer’s contribution rate on termination of an
admission agreement where underfunding not met by insurer, bond or indemnity.
Whether to obtain revision of employer’s contribution rate if there are

9 circumstances which make it likely a Scheme employer will become an exiting
employer
Whether any strain on Fund costs be paid up front by employing authorities

10 following redundancy, early retirement, flexible retirement, or the waiver (in whole
or in part) of any actuarial reduction on flexible or discretionary retirement.

11 Agree to bulk transfer payment

March 2023



http://www.lpf.org.uk/info/69/funding_strategy_statement

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

Governance compliance statement must state whether the administering authority
delegates their function or part of their function in relation to maintaining a pension
fund to a committee, a sub committee or an officer of the administering authority
and if they do so delegate, state:
e the frequency of any committee or sub committee meetings
o the terms of reference, structure and operational procedures appertaining to
the delegation
12 e whether representatives of employing authorities or members are included
and, if so whether they have voting rights
The statement must also state
e the extent to which a delegation, or the absence of a delegation, complies
with guidance from Scottish Ministers and the extent it does not comply,
state the reasons for non-compliance and
¢ the terms, structure and operational procedures appertaining to the local

Annual Governance Compliance Statement

considers appropriate

Y] Pensions Board
g 13 Decide frequency of payments to be made over to the Fund by employers and
D whether to make an administration charge.
= 14 Decide form and frequency of information to accompany payments to the Fund.
% 15 Recover additional costs arising from employing authority’s level of performance.
16 Whether to charge interest on payments by employers which are overdue. Pensions Administration Strateqy
17 Whether the Fund should appeal against employer decision (or lack of decision).
18 Specify information to be supplied by employers to enable administration. Authority
to discharge its functions.
19 Whether to have a written pensions administration strategy and if so the matters it
should include.
Lothian Pension Fund will decide the form in
20 A pension account may be kept in such form as the administering authority ;V:;Cgu%izﬁgg ;g\zzgngf t?éitkp?r?cgize;ngnin

the most efficient manner that can be
devised.

March 2023



http://www.lpf.org.uk/lpf1/downloads/file/600/lothian_pension_fund_-_annual_report_201314_-_full_audited_version.
http://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/534/pension_administration_strategy_pas

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

Decide, in the absence of an election from the member within 12 months of ceasing
a concurrent employment, which ongoing employment benefits from the concurrent
employment which has ceased should be aggregated (where there is more than
one ongoing employment).

21

If no option is received Lothian Pension Fund
will aggregate the terminated concurrent
employment to the active account that is
most beneficial to the member.

Whether to obtain a satisfactory medical certificate before agreeing to an
22 application to pay Additional Pension Contributions (APCs) or Shared Cost
Additional Pension Contributions (SCAPCS).

Members will be required to produce medical
evidence in support of an application to
purchase additional pension, unless SCAPCs
are being paid in respect of lost pension due
to short-term absence such as career break,
child-related leave or reserve forces leave.
Where that evidence incurs costs, these will
be met by the member.

Whether to accept an application to pay an APC/SCAPC if not satisfied that the

23 member is in reasonably good health.

Where satisfactory medical evidence cannot
be obtained in support of the member’s
application, the request will not be granted.

8T abed

Whether to turn down a request to pay APCs or SCAPCs over a period of time

24 where it would be impractical to allow such a request.

In view of the administration costs involved
for both the Fund and the employer, requests
to pay APCs or SCAPCs over a period of
time to make up lost pension for an absence
of less than 10 working days will be refused.
Members will still be able to proceed but will
be required to make APCs or SCAPCs as a
lump sum payment.

Whether to charge a member for provision of estimate of additional pension that

25 would be provided by the scheme in return for transfer of in-house AVC funds.

Member is entitled to one free estimate within
a 12-month period. If a further estimate is to

be provided within a 12-month period, then a
charge will be made.

Whether to extend the 3-month election period that allows a member on leaving

26 employment (by reasons of redundancy) to capitalise their added years contract.

Lothian Pension Fund will not extend the
election time period of three months for
capitalisation except where a member was
not made aware of this right.

March 2023




GgT abed

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

27

Make an election on behalf of deceased member with a certificate of protection
of pension benefits.

Lothian Pension Fund will determine the pay
figure and make an election on behalf of a
deceased person.

28

Allow extension of period within which a scheme member must submit election
for benefits or alter the date from which they elect to have pension paid.

Members may make an election for payment
of benefits up to three months before their
intended retirement date.

29

Can pay death grant due to personal representatives or anyone appearing to
be beneficially entitled to the estate without the need for confirmation, grant of
probate/letters of administration.

Decide to whom a death grant is paid.

As required Lothian Pension Fund will use its
absolute discretion in accordance with the
regulations and in the first instance consider the
member’s expression of wish form. Where no
valid nomination exists or is considered
inappropriate, before deciding to whom the
death grant should be paid the fund will gather
background information including any valid

will. Where a will has been made consideration
will be given to the deceased’s wishes. Where
no valid will exists, payment may be made to
obvious beneficiaries i.e. spouse, children,
dependant, relative, executors or any other
person who makes a valid claim. In cases
where a number of potential beneficiaries exist,
dependency and intestate law will be
considered as a guide to determining claims

30

Decide to whom any Additional Voluntary Contributions or Shared Cost
Additional Pension Contributions monies (including life assurance monies) are
to be paid on the death of the member.

Lothian Pension Fund will decide, based on
the circumstances of the individual case,
who should receive payment of the
member’s monies, having full regard for the
fact that they must be applied for the benefit
of the member’s nominee, personal
representative or any person appearing to
have been a relative or dependent of the
member.

31

Approve medical advisors used by employers (for ill-health retirement)

Lothian Pension Fund approves and
maintains a list of medical advisors.

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

32

Whether to extend six-month period to lodge a stage 1 Internal Dispute
Resolution Procedure appeal.

The “appointed person”, as nominated by
Lothian Pension Fund in accordance with
Scheme Regulation 69(7)(b), under its
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure, may
extend the time limit depending on the
merits of the case.

33

Date to which benefits shown on annual benefit statements are calculated.

Benefit statements will show benefits
calculated as at 31 March for active
members. Deferred and pension credit
members will show benefits calculated to the
most recent pension increase date.

34

Decide policy on abatement of pensions following re-employment.

Lothian Pension Fund will not abate
pensions of pensioner members on re-
employment (This excludes the abatement
of Compensation Pensions where no such
discretion exists).

08T abed

35

Allow transfer of pension rights into the Fund

Transfer in of previous pension rights is
restricted to Public Sector Transfer Club
(PSTC). Applications must be made within
twelve months of joining the pension
scheme.

36

Decide whether deferred beneficiary meets permanent ill-health criteria

Lothian Pension Fund will pay early
payment of deferred on health grounds
subiject to ill-health medical certification.

37

For pre 1 April 2009 deferred members, decide whether to allow access to
deferred benefits on compassionate grounds between age 50 and 55, where
the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer.

Lothian Pension Fund will not grant early
payment of benefits between age 50 and 55
unless there are exceptional extenuating
circumstances.

38

Decide evidence required to determine financial dependence of co-habiting
partner on scheme member or financial interdependence of co-habiting partner
and scheme member

Lothian Pension Fund will require at least
one of the following types of evidence from
at least two years prior to the date of death:

1. Joint tenancy agreement/mortgage
statement

2. Council tax charges

3. Joint bank account that shows
regular utility payments i.e. rent,

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

mortgage, shopping etc
4. Utility bills

39

Decide to treat a child who commences full-time education or vocational
training after the date of the member’s death as an eligible child after the child
attains age 18 until age 23.

At the time of a member’s death, a child
over age 17 who is in full-time education
having not having had a break of over one
year will be treated as an eligible child.

40

Decide to treat child as being in continuous education or training despite a
break.

A break of one year will be disregarded so
long as there is a clear intention to return to
education or training following the break.

41

Decide to suspend child’s pension during a break in education or training.

Lothian Pension Fund will suspend a child’s
pension during a break in education or
training.

42

Decide to treat a child who is disabled within the meaning of the Equality Act
2010 as being an eligible child.

Lothian Pension Fund will rely on medical
certification. Where that evidence incurs
costs, these will be met by the child’'s
guardian.

43

/8T abed

Decide whether to commute a small pension.

While Lothian Pension Fund’s general policy
is to commute small pensions in accordance
with the provisions of the Finance Act 2004,

should a member not wish such and request
otherwise, then a small pension will be paid.

44

For members subject to the provisions of earlier regulations, decide whether to
commute pension on grounds of serious ill-health

Subject to the member’s wishes and medical
certification that life expectancy is less than
one year, Lothian Pension Fund will
commute pension on grounds of serious ill-
health.

45

Decide, in the absence of an election from the member, which benefit is to be
paid where the member would be entitled under 2 or more regulations in
respect of the same period of membership

Lothian Pension Fund will award the benefit
that produces the best benefit for the
scheme member.

46

Decide valuation day for pension sharing order

The valuation day for pension sharing orders
shall be the date of divorce. The
implementation date for the pension sharing
order will be the last day of the four-month
implementation period from the date of
decree.

March 2023




88T abed

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

47

How to discharge Pension Credit liability

Lothian Pension Fund will discharge pension
credit liabilities by conferring appropriate
rights under the Scheme on the ex-spouse
or ex-civil partner. The ex-spouse or ex-civil
partner may request a transfer of pension
rights to another qualifying arrangement.

48

Decide charges to be levied in Pension Sharing cases

Charges are set with reference to the
National Association of Pension Funds
schedule of charges and are increased in
line with the cost of living each year.

49

Agree to pay annual compensation on behalf of employer and recharge
payments to employer

Lothian Pension Fund on behalf of the City
of Edinburgh Council pays compensation on
behalf of employers and recharges
payments to the employer, subject to any
future reviews of the process.

50

Extend the time limit for repayment of a previous refund (16/5/74 to 05/04/1978)

Lothian Pension Fund will extend the time
limit indefinitely.

51

Intervals at which instalments of annual compensation are payable (may agree
different to LGPS pension date)

Lothian Pension Fund on behalf of the City
of Edinburgh Council pays annual
compensation in line with the LGPS pension
date i.e. in arrears on the 15™ of each
month, subject to any future reviews of the
process.

52

Early payment of deferred benefits on ill-health grounds

Lothian Pension Fund will not make early
payment of deferred benefits on ill-health
grounds without a certificate completed by an
IRMP unless there are extenuating
circumstances, or an end-of-life certificate has
been received.

Other Discretions (not covered under the provisions of the LGPS)

53

For upheld complaints, consider any financial awards in line with Lothian
Pension Fund'’s Policy relating to compensation for distress or inconvenience.

When considering financial awards,
consideration will be given to the levels of
compensation awarded by the Pensions
Ombudsman for similar cases.

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

54

Where a member elects to make Additional Pension Contributions (APCs) by
lump sum; take steps to reduce risk of money laundering

Lothian Pension Fund will require members
to complete a source of funds check in
cases where a member elects to make a
lump sum APC. If the information provided
raises suspicion of money laundering, the
application will be refused and a Suspicious
Activity Report (SAR) will be submitted to
the National Crime Agency

68T abed

March 2023




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6.10

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Audit Sub Committee
2.00pm, Thursday, 23 March 2023

Risk Management Summary

Item number 6.10

1. Recommendations

The Pensions Audit Sub Committee (Committee) is requested to:

11 note the LPF group’s Risk Register and Quarterly Risk Overview, and raise any
relevant points arising from the review with the Pensions Committee on 23 March;
and

1.2  note that exploratory work and analysis has commenced regarding the creation of a
single integrated audit programme for LPF, however due to governance complexities
and ambiguities with existing arrangements, no changes will be made in the 2023/24
cycle arrangements, and the proposed scope of CEC’s Internal Audit plan for the next
year will be extended to provide coverage to LPFE and LPFI.

Kerry Thirkell
Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

Contact: Kerry Thirkell, Chief Risk Officer, Lothian Pension Fund

E-mail: Ipfgovernancecomms@Ipf.org.uk | Tel: 0333 996 1900

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023
PENSION FUND Page 191



Risk Management Summary

Executive Summary

2.1

2.2

This paper provides an overview of monitoring and assurance undertaken in LPF
since the last meeting, noting any material observations or exceptions.

This paper also provides a summary of the work to enhance current risk
management arrangements.

Risk Management Arrangements

31

3.2

33

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Having noted the intention to review the risk management arrangements in the
previous report, a detailed paper and operating plan have been created to support
the proposed changes to LPF’s existing risk management arrangements. The
proposed improvements and additions to existing arrangements will create a
framework based on the following principles:

- focus on managing risk across the business in a proportionate and

- pragmatic way, and which acknowledges finite resources across the business
and within the R&C team;

- ensure arrangements are scalable with an emphasis on investing for the
future and building resiliency; and

- reduce complexity by standardising processes wherever possible and

- appropriate and not doing different things within different parts of LPF group.

The proposed enhancements can be broken into three key parts which will be
delivered through a two year programme:

- Risk Management Framework review;
- Procurement of a Governance Risk & Compliance system; and
- Operating model of the Risk & Compliance team.

The programme of work has already commenced. A key part of the operational plan
will be an evaluation of the effectiveness of changes as they are introduced and
embedded, through observation, feedback and testing. Willingness and flexibility to
adapt, change, modify or remove aspects is critical to the successful implementation
and embedding of the new risk management framework and any changes will need
business support and engagement. Training and awareness will underpin the
programme and ensure that staff understand their role in the framework. Specific
training sessions, attendance at team meetings, drop in sessions and lunch and
learns will all be considered for raising staff awareness and understanding around

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023

Page 192



risk management. Regular updates will be provided to the Committee on the
programme.

4, Monitoring & Assurance Summary

Themed Reviews
4.1 Investment Services Review

4.1.1 Athemed review on Investment Services commenced in Q4 2022, to evaluate
LPFI’s regulated activities to ensure LPFl is continuing to meet ongoing FCA
regulatory requirements and demonstrate good business practice. This
review has now concluded, noting several material findings requiring prompt
remediation. The themes include:

- Governance & Conflicts

- Client Management (and presentation of ‘advice’)
- Documentation & Record-keeping

- Risk Management Framework

- Middle Office

- Supplier Management

4.1.2 The review was undertaken by external consultants, Derek Pennor and
Andrew Johnstone, pulling on their extensive industry knowledge and
experience and time served at the FCA.

4.1.3 Aremediation programme is being developed to address the observations.
Coincidentally, the FCA issued a Dear CEO Letter (a standard regulatory
communication) to all asset management firms on 3 February on their Asset
Management Supervision Strategy. This communication highlights the areas
and themes that FCA will focus on throughout 2023 and beyond, and explains
that it expects all regulated firms to consider how the risks of harm
highlighted are being managed. Themes contained in the letter relevant to
LPFI around operational resiliency and managing suppliers, as well as aspects
of the risk management framework resonate with some of the themes
observed in the Investment Services review. Consequently, we are confident
that LPFI will be well placed to address these FCA focus areas due to the
proposed risk management framework improvements already identified, and
the programme anticipated to remediate gaps and weaknesses highlighted
through the Investment Services review.

4.2 Financial Crime Review

A themed review of Financial Crime has commenced and the first part is expected to
complete by end Q1 2023. This review is split into two parts, the first covering Anti-

LOTHIAN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023
PENSION FUND Page 193



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Money Laundering, Counter Terrorist Financing and Sanctions, with the second part
covering Anti-Bribery and Corruption, Market Abuse and Fraud. The purpose of this
review programme is to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the
arrangements in place to manage the risks of financial crime, and consider if there
are appropriate systems and controls to ensure we continue to meet relevant legal
requirements and regulatory guidance.

BDO Compliance Monitoring Programme (CMP)

All testing scheduled for the Q4 2022 period was satisfactorily completed. A total of
7 new issues were identified and are noted below.

Best Execution review

A one-off Best Execution themed review was completed in December 2022 by BDO.
This review by BDO was commissioned earlier in 2022, to evaluate the effectiveness
of LPFI’s processes and controls in relation to best execution — which is the obligation
to execute client orders on terms most favourable to them.

The review concluded that LPFI should formalise execution monitoring procedures
across equity and fixed income portfolios, to be better able to evidence consistent
best execution for clients. The report noted that:

- There is a clear order execution policy setting out LPFI’s approach to best
execution. This policy is issued to clients and is publicly available on LPFI’s
website.

- There is a good understanding across both fixed income and equity teams on
the best execution obligations and the need to obtain best possible results in
the execution of orders.

- However, there are no documented procedures describing how monitoring of
these results is carried out. There is also insufficient evidence of internal
review and sign off of monitoring done, outcomes and resolution.

Findings & Recommendations
The following enhancements were recommended by BDO:

- consistent onboarding training modules for new joiners;

- identify material risk takers, in line with remuneration code requirements;

- improve version control records for committee terms of reference and
policies;

- conflicts of interest documentation, including how they are mitigated;

- registering NEDs as FCA Directory persons;

- establishing a BCP testing schedule, with appropriate reporting to senior
management; and

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023

Page 194



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

- Enhanced best execution procedures, and consistency across equity/fixed
income.

Non-FCA Compliance Monitoring Programme (‘CMP’)

As reported previously, a broader reaching CMP has been developed to provide
more substantive oversight and assurance in respect of non-FCA regulatory
requirements, predominantly covering The Pensions Regulator (‘tPR’) requirements.
We expect to develop this complimentary monitoring further during the course of
2023 and meanwhile the highlights from Q4 results are noted below.

75 tests were undertaken, with 51 of these assessed as ‘fully compliant’. The
remaining tests were not fully compliant primarily due to:

Poor or incomplete record keeping. A number of tests showed no documentary
evidence existed for processes. Follow-up verbal discussions provided some comfort
that processes had been carried out — but unable to independently verify.

Processes not clearly defined or repeatable. This is consistent with findings raised in
other assurance by audit or BDO — general lack of written processes and procedures.

All issues identified above through monitoring and assurance work will continue to
be recorded and tracked through the standard issue management process.

Internal Audit
Details of recent and current internal audit engagements are noted below:
4.12.1 Project Forth Governance

A review in respect of Project Forth governance was completed in Q4 2022.
The findings did not highlight any material observations and have raised some
recommendations regarding project management best practice and change
control. These items have been added to the LPF issue log and will be tracked
and reported on in line with standard procedures.

4.12.2 Third Party Supplier Management

The objective of this review was to assess the adequacy of design and current
operating effectiveness against industry good practices to ensure LPF has
appropriate arrangements in place to manage its third-party suppliers. This
review has concluded and we await the final report.

4.12.3 Information Governance

This review is in progress. It’s objective is to assess the adequacy of design
effectiveness of the key controls over data strategy and information
governance, including how the roles and responsibilities of LPF stakeholders
fit together to ensure that the data is managed well, as well as reviewing data
classification and ownership, and data content management.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023

Page 195



4.13

4.14

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

4.12.4 Adequacy of Technology Security Assurance Arrangements

This audit has been delayed but due to start in late February. The purpose of
this audit is to perform a high-level review of the relevant IT policies,
standards and procedures that have been developed during 2022 to prevent,
respond and manage cybersecurity information security across LPF, as well as
ensuring these are aligned to IT strategy.

Noting earlier support from the Pensions Committee and Audit Sub-Committee, as
well as the LPFI & LPFE Boards in December to extend the scope of LPF internal audit
arrangements to include LPFl and LPFE, exploratory work and analysis has
commenced. Although there is a clear appetite to create a single integrated audit
programme, and to engage directly with an internal audit service provider
(preferably PwC to leverage existing LPF relationship and knowledge), rather than
through CEC arrangements, the steps required to do so are ambiguous. There are
also conflicting views regarding the governance steps required to remove LPF from
the existing CEC arrangements and connected co-source agreement with PwC, with a
view to engaging directly with PwC on a wider LPF ‘group’ scope. Therefore, no
changes will be made to arrangements for the forthcoming audit cycle.

Meanwhile, we have discussed possible reviews for the 23/24 period with CEC
Internal Audit, acknowledging a desire to extend the current LPF arrangements to
ensure the scope of these reviews are relevant to, and appropriate for, LPFl and
LPFE, to provide some independent 3LoD assurance for these entities. Presented to
the Committee separately, CEC Internal Audit will propose and seek approval for the
following reviews to be covered in their 23/24 plan:

- Project Forth: a follow up review to the governance review undertaken
during Q4 22, with scope to be agreed as the merger progresses

- Business Continuity & Incident Response: the audit will consider general
business continuity controls as the organisation transitions to post pandemic
operations

- Senior Managers & Certification Regime: to provide assurance of compliance
with the key elements and prescribed responsibilities of the SM&CR

- People Processes: to provide assurance on the people processes supporting
the employee lifecycle.

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023

Page 196



Issues & Incidents

4.15 Improvements continue to be made to the processes, governance and reporting
regarding LPF Issues and incidents. A summary status of issues and incidents from
Q4 2022 is noted below.

4.15.1 Issues

During Q4, 40 issues were closed and 19 new ones were raised. At the close
of the quarter, there were a total of 49 open issues. These issues comprise
findings from internal audit and 2LoD (including BDO CMP) monitoring and
assurance work, as well as any other self-identified items.

Jpen Issues by date identified Openis.ues by time until due

6
5
1
10
mOverdue | 5
E [ - .
6 10
4 15
5
: _
0 9

w2 Q42021 Q12022 Q32022 Q42022 Overdue 0-3 months 3-6 Months 12-24 months

4.15.2 At the time of writing, there are currently 49 open issues. For those open
issues, 15 of these are overdue, the majority of which are in relation to
information security/technology related findings. 27 issues have a due date
by the end of March 2023 and the Risk & Compliance team continue to
actively engage with issue stakeholders to ensure agreed actions are being
taken.

4.15.3 Incidents
Eleven incidents were raised during Q4 2022, 4 of which were classified as
FCA regulatory breaches, and one as a non-reportable data breach. Required
actions to remediate these incidents were completed during Q4, and all
incidents were subsequently closed.

Incidents reported in 202.

8
6
mClosed
7
2
0

Q12022 Q22022 Q32022 042022

4.16 As the quality of information being recorded continues to improve, over time, more
meaningful reporting will be developed that will support identification of common

11
LOTH |AN Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023
PENSION FUND Page 197




4.17

themes or trends. Meanwhile, 3 further incidents have been raised within LPF
‘group’ in Q1, and remain under investigation.

Further information on issues and incidents is available on request.

Financial impact

5.1

There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.

Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact

6.1

6.2

The Pension Board, comprising employer and member representatives, is integral to
the governance of the fund and they are invited to comment on the relevant matters
at Committee meetings.

Except as otherwise stated in the report itself, there are no adverse health and
safety, governance, compliance or regulatory implications as a result of this report.

Background reading/external references

7.1

8.

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Quarterly Risk Summary as at 7 February 2023

11
LOTHIAN

PENSION FUND

Pensions Committee — 23 March 2023

Page 198



66T abed

Lothian Pension Fund
Pensions Discretions Policy Appendix 1

This is the Pensions Discretions Policy of Lothian Pension Fund (“the Fund”). It is prepared and maintained by the City of Edinburgh Council,
the Administering Authority for the Fund. This statement was agreed by the Pensions Committee on 23 March 2023.

Lothian Pension Fund’s policy where discretion is applicable is shown in the table below. Where further discretion is required, officers’ over-
riding priority will be to act in the best the interests of the Fund by taking into account advice (where applicable) and rulings on similar cases
from the Pensions Ombudsman.

Local Government Pension Scheme

Administering Authority Discretions/Decisions Current Policy

Whether to agree to an admission agreement with a body applying to be an

1 admission body.

2 Agree terms of admission agreement

3 Whether to agree to an admission agreement with a NHS Scheme employing
authority.

Whether to terminate a transferee admission agreement in the event of
e insolvency, winding up or liguidation of the body;
4 e breach of its obligations under the admission agreement;
o withdrawal of approval by HMRC to participate in the scheme; and
e failure to pay over sums due to the Fund within a reasonable period of being
requested to do so.

5 Agree method for paying additional pension with employer Funding Strateqy Statement

6 Whether to set up a separate admission agreement fund.

7 Decide on Funding Strategy for inclusion in funding strategy statement for approval
by Pensions Committee.

8 Whether to obtain revision of employer’s contribution rate on termination of an
admission agreement where underfunding not met by insurer, bond or indemnity.
Whether to obtain revision of employer’s contribution rate if there are

9 circumstances which make it likely a Scheme employer will become an exiting
employer
Whether any strain on Fund costs be paid up front by employing authorities

10 following redundancy, early retirement, flexible retirement, or the waiver (in whole
or in part) of any actuarial reduction on flexible or discretionary retirement.

11 Agree to bulk transfer payment

March 2023



http://www.lpf.org.uk/info/69/funding_strategy_statement

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

Governance compliance statement must state whether the administering authority
delegates their function or part of their function in relation to maintaining a pension
fund to a committee, a sub committee or an officer of the administering authority
and if they do so delegate, state:
e the frequency of any committee or sub committee meetings
o the terms of reference, structure and operational procedures appertaining to
the delegation
12 e whether representatives of employing authorities or members are included
and, if so whether they have voting rights
The statement must also state
e the extent to which a delegation, or the absence of a delegation, complies
with guidance from Scottish Ministers and the extent it does not comply,
state the reasons for non-compliance and

Annual Governance Compliance Statement

considers appropriate

;\JU ¢ the terms, structure and operational procedures appertaining to the local
L(% Pensions Board
N 13 Decide frequency of payments to be made over to the Fund by employers and
o whether to make an administration charge.
o 14 Decide form and frequency of information to accompany payments to the Fund.
15 Recover additional costs arising from employing authority’s level of performance.
16 Whether to charge interest on payments by employers which are overdue. Pensions Administration Strateqy
17 Whether the Fund should appeal against employer decision (or lack of decision).
18 Specify information to be supplied by employers to enable administration. Authority
to discharge its functions.
19 Whether to have a written pensions administration strategy and if so the matters it
should include.
Lothian Pension Fund will decide the form in
20 A pension account may be kept in such form as the administering authority ;V:;Cgu%izﬁgg ;g\zzgngf t?éitkp?r?cgize;ngnin

the most efficient manner that can be
devised.

March 2023



http://www.lpf.org.uk/lpf1/downloads/file/600/lothian_pension_fund_-_annual_report_201314_-_full_audited_version.
http://www.lpf.org.uk/downloads/file/534/pension_administration_strategy_pas

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

Decide, in the absence of an election from the member within 12 months of ceasing
a concurrent employment, which ongoing employment benefits from the concurrent
employment which has ceased should be aggregated (where there is more than
one ongoing employment).

21

If no option is received Lothian Pension Fund
will aggregate the terminated concurrent
employment to the active account that is
most beneficial to the member.

Whether to obtain a satisfactory medical certificate before agreeing to an
22 application to pay Additional Pension Contributions (APCs) or Shared Cost
Additional Pension Contributions (SCAPCS).

Members will be required to produce medical
evidence in support of an application to
purchase additional pension, unless SCAPCs
are being paid in respect of lost pension due
to short-term absence such as career break,
child-related leave or reserve forces leave.
Where that evidence incurs costs, these will
be met by the member.

Whether to accept an application to pay an APC/SCAPC if not satisfied that the

23 member is in reasonably good health.

Where satisfactory medical evidence cannot
be obtained in support of the member’s
application, the request will not be granted.

Whether to turn down a request to pay APCs or SCAPCs over a period of time
where it would be impractical to allow such a request.

TOg 9bed

24

In view of the administration costs involved
for both the Fund and the employer, requests
to pay APCs or SCAPCs over a period of
time to make up lost pension for an absence
of less than 10 working days will be refused.
Members will still be able to proceed but will
be required to make APCs or SCAPCs as a
lump sum payment.

Whether to charge a member for provision of estimate of additional pension that

25 would be provided by the scheme in return for transfer of in-house AVC funds.

Member is entitled to one free estimate within
a 12-month period. If a further estimate is to

be provided within a 12-month period, then a
charge will be made.

Whether to extend the 3-month election period that allows a member on leaving

26 employment (by reasons of redundancy) to capitalise their added years contract.

Lothian Pension Fund will not extend the
election time period of three months for
capitalisation except where a member was
not made aware of this right.

March 2023




20z abed

Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

27

Make an election on behalf of deceased member with a certificate of protection
of pension benefits.

Lothian Pension Fund will determine the pay
figure and make an election on behalf of a
deceased person.

28

Allow extension of period within which a scheme member must submit election
for benefits or alter the date from which they elect to have pension paid.

Members may make an election for payment
of benefits up to three months before their
intended retirement date.

29

Can pay death grant due to personal representatives or anyone appearing to
be beneficially entitled to the estate without the need for confirmation, grant of
probate/letters of administration.

Decide to whom a death grant is paid.

As required Lothian Pension Fund will use its
absolute discretion in accordance with the
regulations and in the first instance consider the
member’s expression of wish form. Where no
valid nomination exists or is considered
inappropriate, before deciding to whom the
death grant should be paid the fund will gather
background information including any valid

will. Where a will has been made consideration
will be given to the deceased’s wishes. Where
no valid will exists, payment may be made to
obvious beneficiaries i.e. spouse, children,
dependant, relative, executors or any other
person who makes a valid claim. In cases
where a number of potential beneficiaries exist,
dependency and intestate law will be
considered as a guide to determining claims

30

Decide to whom any Additional Voluntary Contributions or Shared Cost
Additional Pension Contributions monies (including life assurance monies) are
to be paid on the death of the member.

Lothian Pension Fund will decide, based on
the circumstances of the individual case,
who should receive payment of the
member’s monies, having full regard for the
fact that they must be applied for the benefit
of the member’s nominee, personal
representative or any person appearing to
have been a relative or dependent of the
member.

31

Approve medical advisors used by employers (for ill-health retirement)

Lothian Pension Fund approves and
maintains a list of medical advisors.

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

32

Whether to extend six-month period to lodge a stage 1 Internal Dispute
Resolution Procedure appeal.

The “appointed person”, as nominated by
Lothian Pension Fund in accordance with
Scheme Regulation 69(7)(b), under its
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure, may
extend the time limit depending on the
merits of the case.

33

Date to which benefits shown on annual benefit statements are calculated.

Benefit statements will show benefits
calculated as at 31 March for active
members. Deferred and pension credit
members will show benefits calculated to the
most recent pension increase date.

34

Decide policy on abatement of pensions following re-employment.

Lothian Pension Fund will not abate
pensions of pensioner members on re-
employment (This excludes the abatement
of Compensation Pensions where no such
discretion exists).

35

€0z abed

Allow transfer of pension rights into the Fund

Transfer in of previous pension rights is
restricted to Public Sector Transfer Club
(PSTC). Applications must be made within
twelve months of joining the pension
scheme.

36

Decide whether deferred beneficiary meets permanent ill-health criteria

Lothian Pension Fund will pay early
payment of deferred on health grounds
subiject to ill-health medical certification.

37

For pre 1 April 2009 deferred members, decide whether to allow access to
deferred benefits on compassionate grounds between age 50 and 55, where
the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer.

Lothian Pension Fund will not grant early
payment of benefits between age 50 and 55
unless there are exceptional extenuating
circumstances.

38

Decide evidence required to determine financial dependence of co-habiting
partner on scheme member or financial interdependence of co-habiting partner
and scheme member

Lothian Pension Fund will require at least
one of the following types of evidence from
at least two years prior to the date of death:

1. Joint tenancy agreement/mortgage
statement

2. Council tax charges

3. Joint bank account that shows
regular utility payments i.e. rent,

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

mortgage, shopping etc
4. Utility bills

39

Decide to treat a child who commences full-time education or vocational
training after the date of the member’s death as an eligible child after the child
attains age 18 until age 23.

At the time of a member’s death, a child
over age 17 who is in full-time education
having not having had a break of over one
year will be treated as an eligible child.

40

Decide to treat child as being in continuous education or training despite a
break.

A break of one year will be disregarded so
long as there is a clear intention to return to
education or training following the break.

41

Decide to suspend child’s pension during a break in education or training.

Lothian Pension Fund will suspend a child’s
pension during a break in education or
training.

42

Decide to treat a child who is disabled within the meaning of the Equality Act
2010 as being an eligible child.

Lothian Pension Fund will rely on medical
certification. Where that evidence incurs
costs, these will be met by the child’'s
guardian.

43

0z abed

Decide whether to commute a small pension.

While Lothian Pension Fund’s general policy
is to commute small pensions in accordance
with the provisions of the Finance Act 2004,

should a member not wish such and request
otherwise, then a small pension will be paid.

44

For members subject to the provisions of earlier regulations, decide whether to
commute pension on grounds of serious ill-health

Subject to the member’s wishes and medical
certification that life expectancy is less than
one year, Lothian Pension Fund will
commute pension on grounds of serious ill-
health.

45

Decide, in the absence of an election from the member, which benefit is to be
paid where the member would be entitled under 2 or more regulations in
respect of the same period of membership

Lothian Pension Fund will award the benefit
that produces the best benefit for the
scheme member.

46

Decide valuation day for pension sharing order

The valuation day for pension sharing orders
shall be the date of divorce. The
implementation date for the pension sharing
order will be the last day of the four-month
implementation period from the date of
decree.

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

47

How to discharge Pension Credit liability

Lothian Pension Fund will discharge pension
credit liabilities by conferring appropriate
rights under the Scheme on the ex-spouse
or ex-civil partner. The ex-spouse or ex-civil
partner may request a transfer of pension
rights to another qualifying arrangement.

48

Decide charges to be levied in Pension Sharing cases

Charges are set with reference to the
National Association of Pension Funds
schedule of charges and are increased in
line with the cost of living each year.

49

Agree to pay annual compensation on behalf of employer and recharge
payments to employer

Lothian Pension Fund on behalf of the City
of Edinburgh Council pays compensation on
behalf of employers and recharges
payments to the employer, subject to any
future reviews of the process.

50

Extend the time limit for repayment of a previous refund (16/5/74 to 05/04/1978)

Lothian Pension Fund will extend the time
limit indefinitely.

G0z abed

51

Intervals at which instalments of annual compensation are payable (may agree
different to LGPS pension date)

Lothian Pension Fund on behalf of the City
of Edinburgh Council pays annual
compensation in line with the LGPS pension
date i.e. in arrears on the 15™ of each
month, subject to any future reviews of the
process.

52

Early payment of deferred benefits on ill-health grounds

Lothian Pension Fund will not make early
payment of deferred benefits on ill-health
grounds without a certificate completed by an
IRMP unless there are extenuating
circumstances, or an end-of-life certificate has
been received.

Other Discretions (not covered under the provisions of the LGPS)

53

For upheld complaints, consider any financial awards in line with Lothian
Pension Fund'’s Policy relating to compensation for distress or inconvenience.

When considering financial awards,
consideration will be given to the levels of
compensation awarded by the Pensions
Ombudsman for similar cases.

March 2023




Lothian Pension Fund
Administering Authority Discretions Policy

54

Where a member elects to make Additional Pension Contributions (APCs) by
lump sum; take steps to reduce risk of money laundering

Lothian Pension Fund will require members
to complete a source of funds check in
cases where a member elects to make a
lump sum APC. If the information provided
raises suspicion of money laundering, the
application will be refused and a Suspicious
Activity Report (SAR) will be submitted to
the National Crime Agency

90¢ abed

March 2023




Agenda Iltem 9.1

by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9.2

by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2.00 pm Thursday, 23rd March, 2023
	Contacts
	1. Quorum Check
	2. Order of Business
	3. Declaration of Interests
	4. Deputations
	5. Minutes
	6. Reports
	7. Motions
	8. Resolution to Consider in Private
	9. Private Reports


	5.1 Minutes
	5.1 Confidential Schedule - Pensions Committee - 07.12.22

	6.1 Agenda Planning
	6.1 Agenda Planning 
	Pensions Committee
	Agenda Planning
	1. Recommendations

	Agenda Planning
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Background
	4. Main Report
	5. Financial impact
	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	7. Background reading/external references
	8. Appendices



	6.1 Appendix 1 Agenda Planning (5)

	6.3 Lothian Pension Fund - Internal Audit Update - February 2023
	6.3 LPF Internal Audit Update_ February 2023 
	6.3 appendix 1 Final Report -  LPF Third Party Supplier Management 080323
	6.3 Appendix 2 All LPF outstanding audit actions as at 9 February 2023

	6.4 Lothian Pension Fund - Proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2023/24
	6.4 LPF 2023_24 Annual Plan covering paper_280223
	Pensions Committee
	Lothian Pension Fund – Proposed Internal Audit plan for 2023/24
	1.  Recommendations

	Lothian Pension Fund – Proposed Internal Audit plan for 2023/24
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Background
	3.

	4. Main Report
	4.

	5. Financial impact
	5.

	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	6.

	7. Background reading/external references
	7.

	8. Appendices


	6.4 Appendix 1 LPF 2023_24 Draft Internal Audit Plan 280223
	Contents

	6.4 Appendix 2_Current IA engagement definitions_proposed CIPFA standard definitions

	6.5 External Audit Plan 2022/23 by Azets
	6.5 External Audit Plan Lothian Pension Funds 2022-23
	6.5 Appendix 1 Lothian Pension Fund External Audit Plan 2022-23

	6.6 LPF Cost Benchmarking
	Pensions Committee
	LPF Cost Benchmarking
	1.  Recommendations

	LPF Cost Benchmarking
	2. Background
	2.

	3. Main Report
	3.

	4. Financial impact
	4.

	5. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	5.

	6. Background reading/external references
	6.

	7. Appendices
	Appendix 1
	Investment Cost Benchmarking




	6.7 2023-24 Strategy & Business Plan (including Functional Plan and Budget)
	6.7 Strategy  Business Plan (as at 08032023)
	6.7 Appendix 1 2023-03-07 LPF Strategy and Business Plan 2023

	6.8 2022/23 Business Plan and Budget Update
	6.8 Business Plan and Budget Update
	6.8 Appendix 1 Business Plan and Budget update 

	6.9 Administering Authority Discretions Policy
	6.9 Administering Authority Policy Statement
	Pensions Committee
	Administering Authority Discretions Policy
	1.  Recommendations

	Administering Authority Discretions Policy
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Background
	4. Main Report
	5. Financial impact
	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	7. Background reading/external references
	8. Appendices



	6.9 Appendix 1 Draft Revised LPF Discretions Policy 23 March 2023

	6.10 Risk Management Summary
	6.10 Risk Management Update Mar meeting
	Pensions Audit Sub Committee
	Risk Management Summary
	1.  Recommendations
	2. Executive Summary
	2.

	3. Risk Management Arrangements
	3.

	4. Monitoring & Assurance Summary
	4.

	5. Financial impact
	5.

	6. Stakeholder/Regulatory Impact
	6.

	7. Background reading/external references
	7.

	8. Appendices



	6.9 Appendix 1 Draft Revised LPF Discretions Policy 23 March 2023

	9.1 Project Forth Update
	9.2 Employers Participating in Lothian Pension Fund

